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COMPANY PROFILE
NEEIT

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1871) is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability. The Company’s shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 24 October 2019.

We are a provider of driving training services based in
Zhumadian City, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the
provision of driving training services through our two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School. Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school
established and commenced operation in 2012 which offers
driving training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level | driving
school established and commenced operation in 2014 which
offers driving training services for preparation for driving tests
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

Work Summary in the Year of 2023 and Outlook in the
Year of 2024 of Tong Tai School

Looking back on our work in 2023, we took “doing the best,
pursuing better” as the objective, focused on “fostering
professional and technical talents for the society and
contributing more energy for economic development” as our
corporate mission, actively responded to challenges brought
by the downturn in the logistics industry and overcame
difficulties. We facilitated the teaching and logistics reform, as
we are fully aware that only by expanding our business scale
and enhancing operating effectiveness then we can better
meet trainees’ needs and achieve better business results.
The work of the year 2023 laid a stable foundation for future
development.

Significant Improvement in Teaching Management and
Quality

We have all along been committed to the teaching philosophy
of being “stringent and highly efficient”, actively propelling the
online and offline integration with a full elements and process
teaching model. We constantly optimised subject teaching
plans, teaching materials and methods, as well as integrating
education and training to enable every trainee to enhance the
learning outcome in a relaxed and pleasant atmosphere and to
become more confident under the rigorous training practice.

Further Improvement in Organisational Capability and
Service Quality

During our teaching process in 2023, we valued the opinions
and feedback of trainees by conducting in-depth research
and optimisation in curriculum setting, instructor staffing and
examination services. We strived to implement the service
standard of being “fast, professional and high quality” in the
entire teaching process to ensure every trainee enjoyed high-
quality service and guaranteed safe examination, laying a solid
foundation for each of them to achieve leaping progress.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETEHE (&)

Continuing Our Enrollment Mission

We set a challenging target of new course enrollment for
the year 2023. The Company used various online marketing
software such as wechat public platform and other social
media platform such as TikTok, wechat and tencent cloud
to advertise the schools. Moreover, the Company had set
up enrollment booths at exhibitions in other cities in Henan
Province such as Xinyang, Zhoukou and Nanyang cities.
Although the results were positive and the Group recorded
an increase in standard course enrollments for both Small
Vehicles and Large Vehicles in 2023, the overall number of
course enrollments declined due to the general decrease in the
demand for driving courses patrticularly due to the continuing
deterioration of the market conditions of the logistics industry
as a result of the continuous US-China trade tensions, trainees
were less motivated to enroll in driving training courses for
large vehicles, which has been our primary source of revenue
accounting for approximately 74.2% of our total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2023. To achieve the enrollment
target, we need a breakthrough in marketing. To meet the
potential market demand, we will further launch a suite of
preferential policies and campaigns to gain the support of
trainees and enhance brand reputation and credibility, as well
as brand influence further.

Work Plan in the Year of 2024

In 2024, we remain confident of our revenue growth. Although
the current competition in the driving training market is
intense, however, it still enjoys promising prospects going
forward due to the following reasons: (i) the demand for driving
licenses continues to grow resulted from following urbanisation
progresses and improvement in the economic condition of
families. More people are becoming aware of the importance
of holding a driving license, as a result, the market demand for
driving training services will continue to grow; (ii) the increasing
demand for professional services. With rising traffic safety
and regulation standards, professional driving training service
providers are becoming the choice for more people which will
further boost its market development; and (iii) the progress of
science and technology enables new technologies such as
virtual reality and intelligent driving systems to be applied in
the training of driving institutes. Not only has the application
of such technologies improved driver training effectiveness but
they also bring more business opportunities and competitive
advantages for driving training institutes.
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Constantly Enhancing Our Teaching Quality

In 2024, we will constantly enhance our teaching quality with
a more stringent standard. Firstly, our well-trained driving
instructors will provide more professional and high-quality
driving training services to meet the needs of trainees in
improving driving skills and increasing the passing rate of
existing trainees. We will also develop an integrated online
and offline training model to provide comprehensive support
for trainees’ learning. Our online training for theoretical
examination, which has been set up for more than a year, is
recognised by our trainees and those from the other provinces
have enrolled and trained in our driving schools.

Increasing Efforts in Course Enrollment

We are committed to the concept of “course enrollment as
the primary core work” to meet the increasing demand for
driving training services benefited from the expecting rebound
of the logistics industry this year. In facing the challenge of
course enrollment, we will be more dedicated to publicity
and promotion with an integrated offline and online marketing
approach, at the same time providing continuous training on
marketing techniques to the employees of Tong Tai School
to enhance the effectiveness of these campaigns. We will
strengthen our cooperation with Tiktok through fixed-point
placements to enable more trainees across the provinces to
know our Tong Tai School. We will also enhance our brand
influence through advertising and word-of-mouth advertising
to solicit more trainees. We also plan to continue to expand
our business to other provinces, cities and counties in China
with Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles markets, and use
online marketing software and other social media to present
relevant information about our school. With recovery of
the Chinese economy from COVID-19 pandemic and the
expecting rebound of the logistics industry, the Company is
confident that the number of course enrollments and hence, its
financial performance, would have an improvement in 2024.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETRE®HE (&)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ETEHE (&)

Focusing on Market Competitiveness and Corporate
Culture Building

In January 2024, we assigned staff to conduct research
in remote provinces in China to establish cooperative
relationships with local driving training service providers,
automobile dealers, insurance companies and other related
industries to enhance our competitiveness and expand market
share under a mutually beneficial approach. At the same time,
we will actively facilitate various reforms and innovations to
enhance operating effectiveness and market competitiveness.
We will help trainees to create high-quality learning and test
experiences with more intelligent and professional service
concepts, striving to build the school into a diversified and
comprehensive driving school that moves with the times and
also a top-tier brand from the general users’ perspective.
Lastly, corporate culture is the foundation for the Group to
remain competitive under the intense market competition.
Therefore, each of our employees consciously accepts,
propagates, carries on and innovates our corporate culture
and empowers Tong Tai School for high-quality development.

Qi Xiangzhong
Chairman and Executive Director
29 April 2024

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2023

ENRBGEHEFIFEEXCER

HFIRR2024F1 R MBI AB AERE
HABERNEDET THEMIE RE
WEBRER ABEHER  REATFME
BITERBUGFREF BREEEEFH
AREATERF I BEATHMDEF
> FPIRABIBHEE S BN AR - 12
S AEBBEM T IE B F 7 LIEMNE Bt
IEMEXCHNRBES EMHRETE
BmBENEAARR FMREERTE
RARRBENSZ TIEGEEERER
AERBROE R — Mo &%
TEXERRMERETR NGRS
PRFHEINRE At RMHES—E
BETHBEEMIZM M5 - BE& I
EXL EBREREEXCHAE B
SEE%E-

TR
FERATESE
202448290



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a provider of driving training service based in
Zhumadian city, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the
provision of driving training services through our two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School. Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school
established and commenced operation in 2012 which offers
driving training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level | driving
school established and commenced operation in 2014 which
offers driving training services for preparation for driving tests
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.

Tong Tai School and Shun Da School are currently offering
two types of driving training courses for our trainees, namely
standard courses and premium courses. Standard courses
are designed for trainees who wish to complete only part of
the minimum training hours requirements with lower course
fees and less training hours. Trainees, who have enrolled
in our standard courses, wish to fulfil the minimum training
hours requirements, or for other reasons wish to have
further training, may subscribe from the respective school
for additional training services on an hourly basis. Premium
courses offer to trainees driving training for a number of
training hours that is equal to the minimum training hours
requirements specified in the Driving Training Curriculum. Our
premium courses comprised holidays and weekends courses,
economy courses and VIP courses. Our VIP courses for Large
Vehicles provide different complimentary supporting services
including pick-up services and/or accommodation services.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, our overall
number of course enrollments and number of trainees
attended our driving courses declined. We recorded an
overall negative growth for both the total number of course
enrollment for, and the total number of trainees attended on,
our driving courses for the year ended 31 December 2023, as
comparing to that for the corresponding period in 2022. This
overall deterioration in our business performance is the effect
of decrease in the actual number of training hours provided
by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 due
to the decrease in the demand for driving courses, which had
a significant impact on the number of course enrollments of
Large Vehicles especially, due to the continuing deterioration
of the market conditions of the logistics industry as a result of
the continuous US-China trade tensions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

Our total number of course enrollments recorded an overall
decrease of 3.8% from 9,670 for the year ended 31 December
2022 to 9,304 for the year ended 31 December 2023. Both
Tong Tai School and Shun Da School marked negative growth
in the overall number of course enroliments for the year ended
31 December 2023, as comparing to that for the year ended
31 December 2022. The total number of course enroliments
of Shun Da School amounted to 1,368 (year ended 31
December 2022: 1,393), representing a slight decrease of
approximately 1.8%. The total number of course enroliments
of Tong Tai School amounted to 7,936 (year ended 31
December 2022: 8,277), also representing a slight decrease
of approximately 4.1%. The overall decrease in the number of
course enrollments of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles
is mainly attributable to the decrease in the demand for driving
courses of Large Vehicles especially, which has been our
primary source of revenue accounting for approximately 74.2%
of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023,
due to the continuing deterioration of the market conditions of
the logistics industry as a result of the continuous US-China
trade tensions.

The overall number of course enrollments for standard
courses of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles increased
by approximately 61.5% from 1,886 for the year ended 31
December 2022 to 3,046 for the year ended 31 December
2023 due to our newly designed driving courses of both Large
Vehicles and Small Vehicles with lower course fees providing
less or without training hours has captured the market share
resulting from our sales and marketing and promotion activities
throughout the year 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KRN (B)

The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of T&RHF|EHE2023F12831H LFEE®
course enroliments by our trainees and by types of courses 28 K=Ri2485]8]9RI2IEE A S
for the year ended 31 December 2023, together with the #ll> EEFH E2022F12831HIEEER
comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2022: L8R & ©

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12B31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Number Number
of course of course

enrollments % enroliments %

FEBEAHY % HEBEAH %
Tong Tai School BRER
Large Vehicles AR EH

- Standard courses — EERE 977 10.5 165 1.7

- Premium courses — BIREFRE 3,058 32.9 4,082 42.2
Small Vehicles N E

- Standard courses — EERE 928 9.9 760 7.9

- Premium courses — ShER 2,973 32.0 3,270 33.8
Shun Da School IEZE R
Small Vehicles N E

- Standard courses — EERE 1,141 12.3 961 9.9

- Premium courses — SRR 227 2.4 432 45

Total 4t 9,304 100.0 9,670 100.0

Course FiE

Total standard courses ~ fZZERF2 45t 3,046 32.7 1,886 19.5

Total premium courses B ARER ARGt 6,258 67.3 7,784 80.5

Total 4t 9,304 100.0 9,670 100.0
Driving school EBRER

Tong Tai School BRER 7,936 85.3 8,277 85.6

Shun Da School [[Eb=y- i 1,368 14.7 1,393 14.4

Total 4t 9,304 100.0 9,670 100.0
Driving course BERFE

Large Vehicles ABUEE 4,035 43.4 4247 43.9

Small Vehicles INBY B 5,269 56.6 5,423 56.1

Total 4t 9,304 100.0 9,670 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

We recorded an overall decrease in both the number of
trainees attended our driving courses and total revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The overall number
of trainees who attended our driving courses for the year
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to 10,832 (year ended
31 December 2022: 12,509), representing a decrease of
approximately 13.4%. The total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB39.9 million (year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB47.7 million), also representing a decrease
of approximately 16.4%. The overall decrease in revenue was
attributable to a decrease in each of the number of trainees
who attended our driving courses and the actual number of
training hours of our trainees of Large Vehicles and the overall
decreased average course fees per hour of Large Vehicles for
the year ended 31 December 2023 which offset the positive
effect of the slight increase in revenue from our driving course
of Small Vehicles as a result of the higher average course fees
per hour of Small Vehicles recognised as revenue despite a
decrease in each of the number of trainees who attended our
driving courses and the actual number of training hours of our
trainees of Small Vehicles was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2023. Our provision of driving training services for
Large Vehicles continued to be our primary source of revenue,
accounting for approximately 74.2% of our total revenue (year
ended 31 December 2022: 79.4%). Revenue generated from
premium courses contributed to approximately 91.9% of our
total revenue (year ended 31 December 2022: 94.5%).
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The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of
trainees attended our driving courses, as well as our revenue
by types of vehicles and types of driving courses for the year
ended 31 December 2023, together with the comparative

figures for the year ended 31 December 2022:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

= .

EEBRENm RN (&)

TRESEHE2023F12831HIEFEES
MMEMPEHRENEE A B LIREHE
B E

E&E E2022F12H31H I FEMNLLERE

BREREE O mAME =

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12R31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Number Number
of trainees of trainees
attended RMB’000 % attended RMB'000 %
E22m B2/
ENBE A ARBTFR % EINBEAH AREFT %
Large Vehicles ABER
- Standard courses — 2ERR 410 1,848 4.6 296 550 1.2
— Premium courses - BRER 3,932 27,518 69.0 5,396 37,013 775
- Additional training services ~ — ZBIMEIRTS N/A REH 222 0.6 N/A T 351 0.7
Sub-total Nt 4,342 29,588 74.2 5,692 37,914 79.4
Small Vehicles INELERER
- Standard courses — 2ERR 2,042 976 2.4 2,914 1,456 3.0
~ Premium courses - BRER 4,448 9,141 22,9 3,903 8,072 17.0
- Additional training services ~ — ZBIME IR N/A REH 179 0.5 N/A FE A 292 0.6
Sub-total INE 6,490 10,296 25.8 6,817 9,820 20.6
Total fmst 10,832 39,884 100.0 12,509 47,734 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Ue

Overview

Our overall financial performance for the year ended
31 December 2023 has slightly improved as compared
to that for the year ended 31 December 2022. We
recorded a decline in total revenue by RMB7.9 million
(or approximately 16.4%) from RMB47.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB39.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Our gross profit has
decreased by RMB2.7 million (or approximately 24.3%)
from RMB11.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to RMB8.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Gross profit margin has also decreased by 2.2
percentage points from 23.7% for the year ended
31 December 2022 to 21.5% for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The abovementioned decreases were partially offset
by the decrease in selling and marketing expenses
and administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2023 as compared to that of the year ended
31 December 2022 due to the decrease in sales and
marketing and promotion activities and the decrease
in employees benefit expenses for administrative staff
during the year ended 31 December 2023. The net loss
attributable to the owners of the Company has slightly
been reduced from approximately RMB8.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB8.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023. We also
recorded a net loss margin attributable to the owners of
the Company of 21.2% and 18.2% for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, respectively. We recorded the
loss before income tax of approximately RMB9.8 million
and RMB10.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately RMB7.9 million,
or approximately 16.4% from RMB47.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB39.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. This decrease was
mainly attributable to the significant decrease in revenue
generated from the provision of driving training services
for Large Vehicles of approximately RMB8.3 million
which offset the positive effect from the slight increase in
revenue generated from the provision of driving training
services for Small Vehicles of approximately RMBO0.5
million. This decline in revenue is mainly attributable to (i)
the impact of overall decrease in the average course fee
per hour of driving courses for both Large Vehicles and
Small Vehicles; and (i) the overall decrease in each of
the number of trainees who attended our driving courses
and the actual number of training hours for both Large
Vehicles and Small Vehicles provided by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2023 due to the decrease
in the demand for driving courses, which had a significant
impact on the number of course enrollments of Large
Vehicles especially, which has been our primary source of
revenue accounting for approximately 74.2% of our total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023, due to
the continuing deterioration of the market conditions of
the logistics industry as a result of the continuous US-
China trade tensions.

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Large Vehicles decreased by
approximately RMB8.3 million, or approximately 22.0%,
from approximately RMB37.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately RMB29.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the combined effect of (i) the
decrease in each of the number of trainees who attended
our driving courses of Large Vehicles and the actual
number of training hours of our trainees of Large Vehicles
from 5,692 and 307,968, respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2022 to 4,342 and 257,796, respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and (ii) the lower
average course fees per hour recognised as revenue for
both standard and premium course of Large Vehicles
during the year ended 31 December 2023 as a result of
the decreased driving course fees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Small Vehicles has slightly increased
by approximately RMBO0.5 million, or approximately 4.8%,
from approximately RMB9.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately RMB10.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the higher average course fees
per hour recognised as revenue during the year ended
31 December 2023 due to the forfeiture of course fees
upon expiry of the time limit for attending driving courses
for our standard and premium course of Small Vehicles
which offset the decrease in each of the overall number
of trainees who attended our driving courses of Small
Vehicles and the actual number of training hours of our
trainees of Small Vehicles from 6,817 and 136,972,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
6,490 and 127,783, respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Cost of services rendered

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
our Group’s cost of services rendered amounted to
approximately RMB31.3 million and RMB36.4 million,
respectively. Our cost of services rendered mainly
comprises employee benefit expenses paid to our driving
instructors and other supporting staff, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and rights-of-
use assets and fuel expenses. Our cost of services
rendered decreased by approximately RMB5.1 million,
or approximately 14.0%, from approximately RMB36.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB31.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Employee benefit expenses decreased by approximately
RMB2.3 million, or approximately 17.8%, from
approximately RMB12.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB10.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in salaries paid to
our driving instructors and other supporting staff in
line with the decrease in the actual number of training
hours of our trainees. Our fuel expenses decreased by
approximately RMB1.6 million, or approximately 17.8%,
from approximately RMB9.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB7.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, in line with the decrease
in the actual number of training hours of our trainees. Our
depreciation on property, plant and equipment and rights-
of-use assets is stable at approximately RMB10.8 million
and RMB10.9 million for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2023, respectively.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit from the provision of driving
training services decreased by approximately RMB2.7
million, or approximately 24.3%, from approximately
RMB11.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB8.6 million for the year ended
31 December 20283 in line with the decrease in the
revenue. Our gross profit margin from the provision of
driving training services decreased by approximately 2.2
percentage points from approximately 23.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 21.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Our overall decrease
in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to the overall decrease in the average course
fees per hour and in each of the number of trainees who
attended our driving courses and the actual number of
training hours and the fixed depreciation charges of our
training field and training motor vehicles and amortisation
charges of right-of-use assets, despite the increase in
gross profit margin for driving courses of Small Vehicles
due to the increased revenue contributed from the
forfeiture of course fees upon expiry of the time limit for
attending driving courses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

Our gross profit for provision of driving training services
for Large Vehicles decreased by approximately RMB4.7
million, or approximately 48.0%, from approximately
RMB9.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB5.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. Our gross profit margin from the
provision of driving training services for Large Vehicles
decreased by approximately 8.6 percentage points from
approximately 25.9% for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately 17.3% for the year ended 31
December 2023. The decrease in both gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i) the
decrease in the average course fees per hour and in
each of the number of trainees who attended our driving
courses and the actual number of training hours and (ii)
the fixed depreciation charges of our training field and
training motor vehicles and the amortisation charges of
right-of-use assets.

Our gross profit for provision of driving training services
for Small Vehicle increased by approximately RMB2.0
million, or approximately 133.5%, from approximately
RMB1.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB3.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. Our gross profit margin from the
provision of driving training services for Small Vehicles
increased by approximately 18.4 percentage points from
approximately 15.1% for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately 33.5% for the year ended 31
December 2023. The increase in both gross profit and
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to (i) the
higher average course fees per hour which contributed
higher gross profit margin; and (i) the increased revenue
contributed from the forfeiture of course fees upon expiry
of the time limit for attending driving courses, that totally
offset the negative impact from the overall decrease in the
each of the number of trainees who attended our driving
courses and the actual number of training hours of our
trainees of Small Vehicles.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Other income and losses, net

Our other income and losses, net decreased by
approximately RMBO0.2 million, or approximately 10.7%,
from approximately RMB1.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in income from issuance of
certificate of qualification validation from approximately
RMBO0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMBO0.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 and the decrease in government
subsidies from approximately RMB140,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB39,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Selling and marketing expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses decreased by
approximately RMB1.8 million, or approximately 52.8%,
from approximately RMB3.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in sales and marketing and
promotion activities.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased by approximately
RMB1.2 million, or approximately 8.2%, from
approximately RMB15.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB13.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in employees benefit
expenses for administrative staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

10.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately RMBO0.4
million, or approximately 7.8%, from approximately
RMB4.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. Such decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in interest paid for our new bank
borrowing.

Income tax credit

We recorded an income tax credit for the year ended
31 December 2023 of approximately RMB1.3 million as
compared to our income tax credit for the year ended 31
December 2022 of approximately RMB1.6 million, which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in income tax
credit for the deferred tax assets on tax loss.

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

As a result of the above factors, we recorded loss
and total comprehensive loss for the year ended 31
December 2023 of approximately RMB8.4 million as
compared to our loss and total comprehensive loss of
approximately RMB8.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, which was mainly attributable to (i) the
overall decrease in each of the number of trainees who
attended our driving courses of Large Vehicles and Smalll
Vehicles as well as the actual number of training hours; (ii)
the lower gross profit margin of Large Vehicles due to the
decreased average course fees per hour; and (iii) fixed
depreciation charges of our training field and training
motor vehicles and the amortisation charges of right-of-
use assets, which was offset by the decrease in selling
and marketing expenses and administrative expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2023. Accordingly, we
recorded a net loss margin attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately 21.2% and 18.2%, for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

The Group’s bank balances and cash decreased from
approximately RMB182.3 million as at 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB152.4 million as at 31 December 2023,
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in operating
cash flows and increase in investing cash flows during the
year ended 31 December 2023. The Group has concentration
of credit risk arising from bank balances as there was a bank
which individually contributed an amount of approximately
RMB124.8 million (2022: RMB135.6 million), representing
81.9% (2022: 74.6%) of the Group’s bank balances as at 31
December 2023. The management considers that the credit
risk on liquid funds is low as counterparties are financial
institutions with good reputation and have provided financing
amounted to approximately RMB26.7 million (2022: RMB26.7
million) to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB159.8 million, including
approximately RMB152.4 million in bank balances and
cash, and approximately RMB7.4 million in trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments. The current liabilities
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB82.7 million,
including approximately RMB15.4 million in trade and other
payables and accruals, approximately RMB17.9 million
in contract liabilities, approximately RMB3.0 million in tax
liabilities, approximately RMB45.2 million in borrowings
and approximately RMB1.2 million in lease liabilities. As at
31 December 2023, the current ratio of the Group, which
is equivalent to the current assets divided by the current
liabilities, was 1.93 (31 December 2022: 1.86).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had aggregate interest-
bearing borrowings of approximately RMB45.2 million which
are repayable within one year and approximately RMB9.0
million which are repayable within a period of more than
one year but not exceeding two years as compared to
approximately RMB55.2 million which are repayable within one
year as of 31 December 2022. The decrease in borrowings is
mainly due to the repayment of bank loan in May 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio of the Group,
which was calculated based on total debt, including all
interest-bearing loans and lease liabilities divided by total
equity, was approximately 0.30 times (31 December 2022:
0.30 times).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s total number of
issued Shares was 400,000,000 of HK$0.01 each. On 23
October 2019, the Company issued 100,000,000 ordinary
shares at HKD1.28 per offer share from the share offer.
The use of proceeds from the share offer was for business
expansion and general working capital.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not make any material investments, acquisitions
and disposals during the year ended 31 December 2023.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had aggregate interest-
bearing borrowings of approximately RMB54.2 million
as compared to approximately RMB55.2 million as of 31
December 2022. The borrowings of RMB45.2 million are
repayable within one year and approximately RMB9.0 million
are repayable within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB54.2 million were at fixed interest rates.
As of 31 December 2023, the non-current portion and
current portion borrowings of the Group amounting to
approximately RMB9.0 million and approximately RMB45.2
million were guaranteed and pledged by certain prepaid land
lease payments/rights-of-use assets, office buildings and the
operation rights of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, our Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees and no member of our
Group was involved in any claim, litigation or arbitration of
material importance and no claim, litigation or arbitration of
material importance is known to our Directors to be pending or
threatened against any member of our Group. Accordingly, no
provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of litigation is
necessary.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk related primarily to certain bank balances and
other payables denominated in HK$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2023, we had 210 employees,
representing a slight decrease from that of 295 employees as
at 31 December 2022. The number of employees employed
by the Group varies from time to time depending on need.
Employees’ remuneration is determined in accordance
with prevailing industry practice and employees’ working
experiences and performance. The remuneration policy and
package of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed.
As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Company
participates in various employee social security plans for
its employees that are administered by local governments,
including among others, housing provident funds, pensions,
medical insurance, social insurance and unemployment
insurance.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is determined
by the Company’s remuneration committee which reviews
and recommends to the Board of Directors the executives’
compensation based on the Group’s performance and the
executives’ respective contributions to the Group.

EEBENm RN (&)

HAEE

R2023F 12831 AEBTEITME
ARABBRER ZEBRE QG B
EENSAMBERRE FATMHE B
MEEMA AEEBEAMREATDHE
FRYEMBREBHEANRE  SFAT M
Ho-RA> BEAMBREFASHRIAE
(R

4 GE J2 Bz

R2023F 128310 » A& EE R IMNE
BB B R E T LB T sHEMIRITAS iR
REMENREBEEM A~EBBRILE
SNESESHRBUR 0 AT B IR B 2 B IMNE
Rk WENEEEREEEH HINEE

A
oo O
AN

EEEF

2023 F12H31H » HMIBE2108 EER
2022812831 HBY295% 8 B B8
Lo REBREANEEABRFEERM
FREEH - RBEFMNIRIZIRITITEIER
MEENIFRENRIRET &~EE
EHEREENFHFMNEBRRFR AQ
BRFPEEREAERAEESMZIE
Bt AR EENEELRTE Hb
BiEFREAEE BEEE BERRE T
TR MR RE o

AEBETZTHRASNHFNBEEQSFH
MESEET HFWEESTHIRELE
BHEENTHRAESENEAEEN
BRI RENFMITES S FHE

==
A ©

MR ERZERARAR
B =FFR

21



22

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEES R KD (K)

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme.
For details, please refer to the section headed “Statutory
and General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix V to the Prospectus.

The total employees benefit expenses incurred by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
approximately RMB13.3 million (for the year ended
31 December 2022: approximately RMB18.2 million).

The following table sets forth the total number of
Directors and employees by function as at 31 December

KRB TFERM—IEBRESS -
E—rE F2RERERNEZED

DEER—RER—D.BRES S
—ffio

KEEEHE2023F12831HLEFE
ENEEGM B EENAS AR
13.3B 8t (B E2022F12831H
IEFEE  HARBEI182BETT) °

TERESF2023F12831 BIZH A
SOMNEEREELEE

2023:
Number of %
employees of the total
BEAE (HEHBERL
Function B BE
Directors 5% 6 2.9
Driving instructors BRI AR 125 59.6
Sale and marketing HE R hiBHEE 20 9.5
Finance and accounting Mg st 7 3.3
Teaching affair office 5 16 7.6
Administration T 32 15.2
Vehicle management BWEE 4 1.9
Total #ast 210 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the reporting period, on 16 January 2024, the Company
proposed to conduct the Rights Issue on the basis of one (1)
Rights Share for every two (2) Shares held at the subscription
price of HK$0.2 per Rights Share, to raise gross proceeds of
up to approximately HK$40.0 million before expenses, by way
of the Rights Issue of up to 200,000,000 Rights Shares.

On 20 March 2024, a total of 35,958,192 Rights Shares were
issued and allotted at HK$0.20 per Rights Shares pursuant
to the Rights Issue. Upon completion of the Rights Issue, the
issued share capital of the Company comprises 435,958,192
Shares of HK$0.01 each, and the total amount of paid up
share capital became HK$4,359,581.92.

The gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue are
approximately HK$7.2 million and the net proceeds from
the Rights Issue after deducting the relevant expenses are
approximately HK$6.1 million. As disclosed in the prospectus
of the Company dated 20 February 2024, the Company
intends to apply the net proceeds from the Rights Issue for
the part repayment of the outstanding bank borrowings of the
Group.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised
by the Board at the date of this annual report. Please also refer
to the paragraph headed “Use of Proceeds” under the Report
of the Directors below from pages 116 to 118 of this annual
report for the expected source and allocation of funding for the
Group’s material investment.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERERS

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high corporate
governance standard to enhance the transparency,
accountability and corporate value of the Company and
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. Since the Listing
Date, the Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as fundamental
guidelines for the corporate governance practices of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code. The Company will
continue to review and monitor the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintain high standard of
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all the
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and there have been
no incidents of non-compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Yuxia (Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (resigned on 1 March 2023)

Mr. Chan Siu Wah

Mr. Goh Teng Hwee (passed away on 11 January 2023)
Mr. Wan San Fai, Vincent (appointed on 1 March 2023)
Mr. Xu Jianpo (appointed on 20 April 2023)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” from pages 102 to 110 of this annual
report. None of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) with any other Directors or any chief executive of
the Company.

Meetings of the Board

The Corporate Governance Code states that meetings of the
board of directors of a listed issuer should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four Board
meetings were held. The Board will continue to make
arrangements for holding at least four meetings for every
subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the Directors, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Meetings of
the Board and Board Committees” below on page 41 of this
annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRSE (K)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Accordingly, to ensure a balance of power and authority, the
positions of the Chairman and the chief executive officer are
held separately by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms. Zhao Yuxia
respectively, where Mr. Qi Xiangzhong as the Chairman is
responsible for major decision-making, overall strategic
planning and determining corporate policies and general
management of the Group, and Ms. Zhao Yuxia as the chief
executive officer is responsible for the overall management of
the business operation and financial planning of operations of
the Group.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at
all times met with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule
3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board,
and with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their respective independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers each of them to
be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED

Following (i) the passing away of Mr. Goh Teng Hwee,
who was an independent non-executive Director, and a
member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 11 January
2023; (ii) the resignation of Mr. Cheng Chun Shing, who was
an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
on 1 March 2023; and (iii) the appointment of Mr. Wan San
Fai Vincent as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 1 March 2023, the composition of the
Board comprised two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors and
hence the number of independent non-executive Directors
and members of the Audit Committee had fallen below the
minimum number required under rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. Following the appointment of Mr. Xu Jianpo as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee on 20 April 2023, the composition of the
Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors, which
fulfills the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

Meetings with the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Corporate Governance Code states that the chairman of
the board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings
with the independent non-executive directors at least annually
without the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one meeting
was held between the Chairman and the independent non-
executive Directors, with each of the independent non-
executive Directors present. The Chairman will continue to
make arrangements for holding at least one meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors for every subsequent
year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRSE (K)

Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment with
Directors

The Company had entered the service contract with each of
the executive Directors (namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms.
Zhao Yuxia) in respect of his/her appointment as an executive
Director for a fixed term of three years commenced from 24
October 2022 which shall be renewed automatically, unless
and until terminated by either the executive Director or the
Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Each of the executive Directors is entitled to an annual
emolument of RMB240,000 for acting as an executive Director.
Such annual emolument may be reviewed annually after each
year of service during the term of the service contract by the
Remuneration Committee. Each of the executive Directors is
also entitled to a discretionary bonus, if so recommended by
the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board,
having regard to the operating results of the Group and the
individual performance of the executive Director.

The Company had entered the letter of appointment with the
non-executive Director (namely Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong) in
respect of his appointment as a non-executive Director for
a fixed term of three years commenced from 24 October
2022 which shall be renewed automatically, unless and
until terminated by either the non-executive Director or the
Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
The non-executive Director is entitled to an annual emolument
of RMB120,000 for acting as a non-executive Director. Such
annual salary may be reviewed annually after each year of
service during the term of the letter of appointment by the
Remuneration Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the independent non-executive Directors, the Company
had entered the letter of appointment with Mr. Chan Siu Wah
(“Mr. Chan”) in respect of his appointment as an independent
non-executive Director for a fixed term of three years
commenced from 24 October 2022 which shall be renewed
automatically, unless and until terminated by either Mr. Chan
or the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing at any time, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (“Mr. Wan”) had been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director effective from 1 March
2023 and had entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commenced on the
same date which shall be renewed automatically, unless and
until terminated by either Mr. Wan or the Company by giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing at any time,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Mr. Xu Jianpo (“Mr.
Xu”) had been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director effective from 20 April 2023 and had entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term
of three years commenced on the same date which shall
be renewed automatically, unless and until terminated by
either Mr. Xu or the Company by giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing at any time, subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company. Mr. Chan and Mr. Wan are entitled to an annual
emolument of RMB120,000 for acting as an independent
non-executive Director and Mr. Xu is entitled to an annual
emolument of RMB60,000 for acting as an independent non-
executive Director, respectively. Such annual salary may be
reviewed annually after each year of service during the term of
the letter of appointment by the Remuneration Committee.

For further details of the emoluments of the Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2023, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Emoluments of Directors and Senior
Management” under the Report of the Directors on page 126
of this annual report, and Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRSE (K)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for, among other things,
the leadership and control of the Company and the business,
strategic decisions and financial performance of the Group.
Each of the Directors takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

To ensure a sound framework of responsibilities and
accountabilities, the Board is scheduled to meet for at least
four times a year. Between scheduled meetings, senior
management of the Group provides the Directors with
information on a timely basis on the activities and development
in the businesses of the Group and when required, additional
Board meetings are held. Alongside having meetings, the
Directors would also approve various matters by way of
passing written resolutions.

The Company Secretary would assist in preparing the agenda
for the Board meeting and ensure that all the applicable laws
and regulations regarding meetings of the Board, as well as
the Articles of Association are complied with. Minutes of the
meeting of the Board and Board Committees are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available to all the Directors for
inspection.

All the Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the Company Secretary and senior management. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances and at the Company’s
expenses, for discharging their duties to the Company.

Each of the Directors would also disclose to the Company
details of other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to
perform his or her responsibilities to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated by the Board to the senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Under the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Accordingly, each
of the Directors has received formal and comprehensive
induction tailor-made by the legal advisers of the Company
as to Hong Kong law on the first occasion of his or her
appointment to ensure full awareness of the responsibilities
and obligations as a Director under the Listing Rules and
the relevant laws and regulations. During the year ended
31 December 2023, relevant reading materials, including
regulatory updates, seminar handouts and briefings, have also
been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal action against its Directors and senior
officers.

Please also refer to the paragraph headed “Permitted
Indemnity Provision” under the Report of the Directors on
page 125 of this annual report for the permitted indemnity
provisions in force and in place under the Directors and
officers insurance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRSE (K)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is primarily responsible for determining the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company and performing
the corporate governance duties and functions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, including, among other things,
reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices of the Company on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct applicable to employees and
Directors; and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the following work, among other things,
have been performed by the Board:

— directed the Board Committees to review the existing
policies and procedures of the Board and the Board
Committees;

— engaged Hong Kong legal advisers to provide corporate
secretarial and compliance services to the Company with
reference to the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations;

— engaged an external professional consultant to conduct
a review and further enhance the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;

—  reviewed the level of compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code; and

—  reviewed the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices,
the Board had established three Board Committees on
19 September 2019, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of the Group. Each
of these Board Committees comprises mostly independent
non-executive Directors who have been invited to serve
as members. The Board Committees are governed by the
respective terms of reference that are in compliance with
the applicable rules in Listing Rules and principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and were
approved by the Board. The terms of reference of each of
the Board Committees are published on the websites of the
Company (www.china-oriented.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Wan San Fai Vincent (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Siu Wah and
Mr. Xu Jianpo, all being independent non-executive Directors.
The duties of the Audit Committee include, among other
things, reviewing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, overseeing financial reporting, financial control, internal
control and risk management systems of the Group, and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two meetings
of the Audit Committee were held. The Audit Committee
will continue to make arrangements for holding at least two
meetings for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Meetings of the Board and Board Committees”
below on page 41 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Audit Committee had performed,
among other things, the following work:

—  recommended the re-appointment of Moore CPA Limited
(formerly known as Moore Stephens CPA Limited) as the
external auditor of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023;

- reviewed and commented on the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2023 and the interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2023;

- reviewed and commented on the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023;

— engaged and coordinated with an external professional
consultant to review the financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems of the Company;

- discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit
function; and

— reviewed the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2023, including the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor and recommended to the Board
the same for approval of the Shareholders at the AGM.

The Board agreed with the proposal of the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of Moore CPA Limited (formerly known
as Moore Stephens CPA Limited) as the external auditor of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2024. The
recommendation will be put forward for the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

For an analysis of remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by Moore CPA Limited (formerly known as Moore
Stephens CPA Limited) during the year ended 31 December
2023, please refer to the paragraph headed “Auditor’s
Remuneration” below on page 45 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED

For the review on the internal control and risk management
systems of the Company, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Risk Management and Internal Control System”
below from pages 41 to 43 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (as the chairman), Mr. Chan
Siu Wah, and Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent. Save for Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, who is an executive Director, all the members
of the Nomination Committee are independent non-
executive Directors. The duties of the Nomination Committee
include, among other things, reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, establishing and reviewing
the policies and procedures on the selection, appointment
and reappointment of Directors, reviewing the policy on
diversity of the Board and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, three meetings
of the Nomination Committee were held. The Nomination
Committee will continue to make arrangements for holding at
least one meeting for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the
Nomination Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Attendance Record at Meetings of the Board and Board
Committees” below on page 41 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee had
performed, among other things, the following work:

—  reviewed the structure and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

— reviewed the nomination policy on the identification,
selection, appointment and re-appointment of individual
as Directors and succession planning for Directors;

- made recommendations to the Board on the re-election
of Directors in the AGM;
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i

XEBRBSE (])

reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company, in
particular the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives as set out in the policy;

assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and made recommendations to the
Board on their respective re-elections; and

recommended the appointment of new Directors during
the year.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy
which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March 2020. The
nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring the
Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business
of the Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is
suitably qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination
Committee shall take into account, among other things:

the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and
experience of the individual candidate;

the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations;

the potential contributions that the individual candidate
can make to the diversity of the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service;

the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the
individual candidate (and where appropriate, adequate
background checks and other verification processes shall
be conducted against the individual candidate);

the current structure, size and composition of the Board
and the Company’s corporate strategy;

Board succession planning considerations and the long
term needs of the Company;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED

—  (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence
criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and
the guidance and requirements relating to independent
non-executive directors set out in the Corporate
Governance Code; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination
Committee may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy
at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that
may be required, and recommend the same to the Board for
approval.

Board Independence

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board ensures the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors and at least one-third of its members
being independent non-executive Directors. Further,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to
Board Committees as required under the Listing Rules and
as far as practicable to ensure independent views and input
are available. The Nomination Committee strictly adheres
to the independence assessment criteria as set out in the
Listing Rules with regard to the nomination and appointment
of independent non-executive Directors, and is mandated
to assess annually the independence of independent non-
executive Directors to ensure that they can continually exercise
independent judgement. No equity-based remuneration with
performance-related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive Directors as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence. Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are entitled to seek further information from the
management on the matters to be discussed at Board
meetings and, where necessary, independent advice from
external professional advisers at the Company’s expense. A
Director (including independent non-executive Director) who
has a material interest in a contract or arrangement shall not
vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board resolution
approving the same.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
compliance with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, a policy
concerning diversity of the members of the Board were
adopted by the Company on 19 September 2019 and applied
and reviewed by the Nomination Committee at least annually.

In assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various measurable
objectives as set out in the board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
measurable objectives including the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity
policy at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates
that may be required, and recommend the same to the Board
for approval.

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender
diversity was generally followed in the workforce throughout
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023. As of the
date of this annual report, approximately 83.3% of Directors
and approximately 83.3% of total workforce were male. The
Company will continue to take steps to promote diversity,
including gender diversity, at workforce levels.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the board diversity policy during the year and considered it
was appropriate and effective.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Siu Wah (as the chairman), Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, and Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent. Save for Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, who is an executive Director, all the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive
Directors. The duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, among other things, reviewing and approving the
remuneration proposals of the management with reference to
the corporate goals and objectives of the Board, reviewing the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management and developing policy and structure on
remuneration of all directors and senior management.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code and under
the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
the Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, three meetings of
the Remuneration Committee were held. The Remuneration
Committee will continue to make arrangements for holding at
least one meeting for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Attendance Record at the Meetings of the Board and
Board Committees” below on page 41 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee had
performed, among other things, the following work:

reviewed the policy on the remuneration structure of all
Directors and senior management;

— assessed the performance of the executive Directors;

—  reviewed and approved the remuneration proposals by
the management of the Group with reference to corporate
goals and objectives;

- recommended on the remuneration packages of the
newly appointed Directors during the year; and

- recommended on the remuneration packages of all
Directors for the financial year ending 31 December
2024.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2023
is as follows:

BIECEEATH SHREEAS (BF
BRIN) MEE2023F12A31HIEEEMN
MR B DU

Number of individuals

Remuneration band EFINEEE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 EZF 1,000,000 7T S

For further details in respect of the emoluments of the
Directors and senior management for the year ended 31
December 2023, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management” under the
Report of the Directors on page 126 of this annual report and
Note 12 of the consolidated financial statement.

Policy on the Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee has developed a remuneration
policy which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March
2020. The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the
principles that the remuneration packages of executive
Directors and senior management of the Company should
be reviewed annually and determined by the Remuneration
Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each
individual executive Director and senior management staff,
performance of the Group and the remuneration packages
paid by comparable companies in the same industry based
on the prevailing market conditions. No Director or any of his/
her associates should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee will review the remuneration
policy at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates
that may be required, and recommend the same to the Board
for approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINU D)

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The attendance of each Director at Board and Board
Committees meetings of the Company, whether in person or
by means of electronic communication, is detailed in the table
below:

tEEA®RS (8)

EEEREEZRS
G
SEERORBBEFEASILES
AREFEREEERTEHNERN
TRFTRE

FEOH

Attendance/number of meetings held

during the year ended 31 December 2023
REZ2023F12831HLEELE BT EHE

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director EENY BXE BRZEY wHEEE RYLZEE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong TEREE 4/4 - 3/3 3/3
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEERL 4/4 - - -
Non-executive Director FRTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong meXEL 4/4 = = —
Independent non-executive Directors BIIFHITES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BhERYE 4/4 2/2 3/3 3/3
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing HEF L4 (R20235F
(resigned on 1 March 2023) 3E1H##MT) 1/1 0/0 11 1/1
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee BERLE (R2023F
(passed away on 11 January 2023) 1B11 B g ) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent BATERE (1220234
(appointed on 1 March 2023 SE1HEZD) 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. Xu Jianpo R E (1020235
(appointed on 20 April 2023) 4F200E &) 1/1 1/1 0/0 0/0
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL EREERAINEERLG

CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board is primarily responsible for maintaining and
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an on-going basis. Reviews on the systems
are conducted at least annually. The scope of review, which
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee
and approved by the Board annually, covers all material
controls, including but not limited to financial, operational and
compliance controls; risk management functions; and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
connection with the accounting and financial reporting function
of the Group and their training programmes and relevant
budget.

EFEgT 2R RFEERKREELRER
WEREERNEEZERR - HREHN
BEEVLEBFET R -BEHLEH
BEREZECBENER ISFEESR
GHUE REPTAEEANIES BEETR

REH BERGRESH ; AREER
fE URETHEANERENE MM

REBESTEESHARENER B
R A&k HIEdst B MERRERE
BIEIE

B R RIZER A RAE
B =FFR

41



42

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRSE (K)

The Board, having considered the nature of business and
the organisation structure of the Group, designed the risk
management and internal control systems with the aims of:

safeguarding the assets of the Group;

— maintaining appropriate accounting records and financial
reporting;

— achieving efficiency of operations; and

— ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Board has continued to engage an external professional
consultant to conduct a review and further enhance on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2023. The overall control environment of the Group, including,
among other things, the organisational structure of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees
and the division of responsibilities among the management
of the Group, were reviewed. An assessment of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was also conducted by the
external professional consultant. The categories, extent,
consequences, seriousness, and probability of such risks and
uncertainties were identified in the assessment. The Board has
also assigned relevant person-in-charge to develop, implement
and review appropriate measures in connection with the
potential risks and uncertainties. The external professional
consultant is of the view that the current risk management
and internal control systems of the Group is effective and
adequate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINU D)

The Corporate Governance Code provides that a listed issuer
should have an internal audit function. Currently, the Group
does not have an internal audit function. Having assessed the
scale, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board is of the view that it would be more cost effective
to appoint an external professional consultant to perform the
internal audit functions for the Group should the need arises.
The Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function on an annual basis.

To enhance the system of the Group on handling and
disseminating inside information, and to ensure timely and
accurate disclosure of such information pursuant to the
relevant provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules, the
Group has also formulated and adopted an inside information
policy on 27 March 2020. Certain measures and procedures
that have been implemented are as follows:

—  the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

— the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

— the Group regularly reminds the Directors and the
employees about due compliance with all policies
regarding inside information, as well as keeps them
appraised of the latest regulatory updates.

The Board will review the inside information from time to time
and may made any amendments and/or modifications that it
deems necessary or desirable.

Overall, the Board is of the view that the current risk
management and internal control system is effective and
adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27 March 2020.
Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider
whether to propose a dividend out of its distributable profits
and reserves and determine the amount of dividend by taking
into account the following factors, including but not limited to:

(i)  the general financial condition of the Group;
(i)  the earnings and cash flow of the Group;
(i) the expected working capital requirement of the Group;

(iv) the statutory fund reserve requirements of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC; and

(v) any other factors that the Board deems relevant and
appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company may be limited
under the financing agreements that the Group currently has
or that it may enter into in the future. It is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
the laws of Hong Kong, the Articles of Association of the
Company, and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any predetermined dividend
distribution ratio. The Board will review the dividend policy
from time to time and may make any amendments and/or
modifications that it deems necessary or desirable. There is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
particular amount for any specific period.

The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally-binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
engaged Moore CPA Limited (formerly known as Moore
Stephens CPA Limited) as the external auditor of the Company
and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The remuneration paid or payable to
Moore CPA Limited in respect of their audit services and non-
audit services during the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out as follows:

tEEA®RS (8)

A% B4 BT e B

RE E2023F 128318 EFE > NEH
REREENESMERFERAT
EA 2R B B9 SN BE 1% B4 6M 0 B == BN A%
BONREBEAGERBILE-REE
2023F12B31HIEFE M AREEHKSE
FEEMERER AN ZEIRFE K IE
ZHRFE B BN ET T ¢

RMB’000

AREFx

Audit services — Annual audit ZHRB—FEZE 1,136
Non-audit services — Interim review IEZEPARFE— BT B 110
Proposed right issue EEMER 72

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (“Mr. Tsang”), the Company Secretary, plays
an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that the Board policies
and procedures are duly followed. To assist the Board in
functioning effectively and efficiently, the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors. All
Directors may call upon the Company Secretary for advice
and assistance at any time in respect to their duties and the
effective operation of the Board and the Board Committees.

To uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and the applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engages an external service provider to
assist the Company Secretary to discharge his duties as
the Company Secretary. Mr. Tsang is the primary corporate
contact person of the Company in respect of the engagement.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
Secretary took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company strives to provide ready, fair, regular and timely
disclosure of information that is material to the investor
community. Therefore, the Company works to maintain an on-
going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meeting and other general meetings or other
proper means. The Chairman, all other members of the
Board including independent non-executive Directors and the
chairmen of all Board committees will attend the forthcoming
AGM to meet with the Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

In addition, the Company has developed a shareholder
communication policy with the objective of maintaining
effective and timely dissemination of the Company’s
information to its Shareholders and the market, including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments and governance, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in a timely and informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has maintained and
regularly reviewed the policy in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code to ensure its effectiveness. Reference has
also been made to the shareholders’ communication policy
of other listed issuers in Hong Kong to ensure the Company’s
shareholders’ communication policy is on par with market
standard.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) may be convened by
the Board on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company at the
date of deposit of the requisition.

The requisitionists must state the objects clearly in the
requisition, sign the requisition and deposit the same to the
Board or Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

If the requisition is found to be proper and in order, the EGM
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM within
21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself/itself/themselves may proceed
to convene the EGM in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board. Such
enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary in
writing by post to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1508-1513, Nan Fung Tower, 88
Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or by email to
calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn.

Procedures to put forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM
following the procedures as set out in the paragraph above.
As regards to the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director, Shareholders may refer to
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director of the Company” which is available on
the website of the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Upon the Shareholders’ approval by way of a special
resolution at the annual general meeting held on 29 June
2022, the Company has adopted the second amended and
restated articles of association. Details of the changes made
in the document can be found in the Shareholders’ Circular
dated 22 April 2022. An up-to-date consolidated version of
the Company’s Articles of Association has been posted on
both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

tEEA®RS (8)

BERSIEE
K& mE AR

MREEERWEEESE
REFANAZENEEZE
B0

EREEEXREAE-_+—HAR X
EREMERCHRABBRRFIARGZE
FrAE2EBRALABEEURKRAR
EHIER MEZBERATHESZGZ
BRAMEENFESERXBHEIQTE
MIEZEZRAET

MESFEFHEANER
KREIHMEEEFEHERN BHEAEH
—Juiﬁ'ﬁiﬂiﬁiﬁﬁiﬁ’&ﬂﬁf%}%

EXEME (FEBPIRTFHEETSS
s»‘ir'iﬂjcr“wos 15613%) ' HEHE
calvintsang@zmdittjx.cn > U A A A )
MhEE o

RIRRAE LIREBRBNER

MR BREARE LIFHREFARER
PRBEAERTIER BB ARKE
BRARGET BRRREEETAA
THEREFNRLERF RRISH
MR EETAALERETIRTES
WRZ2ERFICETNERNAEREEIL

(www.china-oriented.com) ©

BEREXH

202268290 BHNKREBFEARE

J:D(ﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ?@?ﬁ’ZIK
NEFRNE R ETREYHBER

Al - HXHEEEFFHNEHES

202254822 H IR BB BR| © KA B) AR 48

ERMANNENGESRATIEREAT
2 B 32 By 48 3 o

MR ERZERARAR
B =FFR

47



48

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERHRSE (K)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023 which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company has provided all members of the Board with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from
pages 134 to 222 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the fourth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (ESG Report) of China Oriented International Holdings
Limited (“the Company” or “China Oriented”) along with its
subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group” or “we”). Based on
the principles of openness and transparency, we report to
all stakeholders on the Group’s ESG performance in 2023
in a comprehensive and objective manner. For corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 24 to 48 of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility to
ensure the integrity and truthfulness of the report and confirms
that to the best of its knowledge, this report addresses all
material topics related to the Group and fairly presents the
Group’s ESG performance and environmental impacts. The
Board of Directors has reviewed and approved this report.

Reporting Standard

This report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”)
and the actual situation of the Group. Data is analysed and
presented such that a year-on-year comparison is easy for the
reader. During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group
has applied the reporting principles stipulated in the ESG
Reporting Guide as follows:

o “Materiality” — The materiality assessment was
conducted to identify material issues, thereby adopting
the confirmed material issues as the focus for the
preparation of the ESG Report. The materiality of issues
was reviewed and confirmed by the Board and various
departments. Please refer to the sections headed
“Identification of Material Topics” for further details.

o “Quantitative” — Supplementary notes are added along
with quantitative data disclosed in the ESG Report
to explain any standards, methodologies, and source
of conversion factors used during the calculation of
emissions and energy consumption.

o “Consistency” — The preparation approach of this ESG
Report was substantially consistent with the previous
year, and explanations were provided regarding data
with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RE-#HEREBRS (&)

Reporting Period and Boundary

The reporting period is the fiscal year from 1 January to 31
December 2023. The Group’s business focus on the driving
training operation. Unless otherwise specified, this report
covers operations of the driving training service of our two
driving schools, which are Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School located in Zhumadian City, Henan Province, China.

Feedback

This report is published in both Chinese and English. In
case of any discrepancy between the two versions, the
Chinese version shall prevail. We are committed to providing
more comprehensive and accurate ESG information to our
stakeholders and welcome your comments and suggestions
on this report. You may provide your valuable comments by
telephone or email:

Telephone: +852-53136535
Email: calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

Dear stakeholders:

| hereby present the fourth ESG Report to all stakeholders.
| believe the world faced unprecedented challenges due to
the outbreak of COVID-19, nevertheless, the Group exerts
the greatest effort and work hand-in-hand to fight against the
pandemic before the cancellation of the traveling restrictions
in March 2023. We continue to fulfilling our corporate social
responsibility by assisting the society after recovering from
the setback of pandemic. Corporate social responsibility is
embedded deeply into our business. A total of RMB40,000 is
donated, and volunteer works are conducted as a return to
the society via various social welfare activities. With actively
donating of goods, the stress on material shortage of the
needy shall be relieved. On the other hand, we recognize
the looming crisis of climate change. We have identified
the potential climate risks and developed mitigation plans
accordingly.
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People-oriented

To pave a way towards sustainable development, it is crucial
to ensure the retention and satisfaction of employees which
are the foundation of the Group. During the year, we continued
to carry forward talent training from three aspects, including
orientation training, corporate training, and professional
training. The trainings are capable to improve the quality of
instruction and training for driving instructors and strengthen
the professionalism of employees meticulously, contributing to
overall upgrade of the Group’s operation. We also organized
various employee activities during the year to enhance the
relationship among the teams and promote their sense of
belonging. During the year, the Group has invested a total of
RMB308,000 on employees’ welfare.

The Group prioritise employees’ occupational health and
safety at all times. Road safety inspections, safety education
and training seminars, safety education, and mental health
and emotion management activities are arranged regularly to
ensure correct driving practices, enhance employees’ safety
awareness, and promote consciousness of physical and
mental conditions. A vehicle management team is also set
up to regularly maintain, inspect and repair vehicles in order
to lower the risk of car accident. It is our conviction that with
well-managed health of employees and training vehicles,
the performance of the business operation can be taken to
the next level. Moreover, mitigation plans are established to
ensure the minimization of physical risk that could threaten
employees’ safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to Society

During the year, the Group donated RMB40,000 to alleviate
the pressure on the society by participating social welfare
activities, such as providing convoy for the examination
candidates, and visiting front-line staff in pandemic control
and so on, with a total of 1,568 hours volunteer working.
Simultaneously, training was offered to individuals in need,
equipping them with the skills to drive and work.

Sustainability is a material issue with growing attention
around the globe. It has always been a significant part of the
Group’s business operation that accompanies with notable
environmental and social impacts. To attain the vision of
sustainable operation and fulfill stakeholders’ expectations,
we will keep on reviewing and revising the management,
policies and measures, and tracking of activities. The Group
is committed to endeavour better environmental and social
performances and create value in the coming future.

Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
29 April 2024
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SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainability is the goal of the Group. Combining the concept
of sustainability and the Group’s development strategy, we
manage and supervise sustainability-related matters through
multi-department collaboration.

Sustainability Management Structure

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility of
overseeing and setting out ESG management approach
and strategy for the Group with the assistance of various
departments. The sustainability-related matters of the Group
are handled by functional departments, including business
operations, logistics support, teaching affairs office, the office,
the vehicle management team, etc. The performance of each
department is reported to the Board of Directors on a regular
basis, and the Board of Directors continuously monitors
sustainability related information, such as trainee satisfaction
and energy consumption. The functional departments also
review the Group’s ESG performance through key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) from various ESG aspects, in order to
review progress made against ESG-related goals and targets.
By conducting regular materiality assessment, they assist the
Board of Directors to evaluate, prioritise and manage material
ESG-related issues. In the future, we will continue to improve
the sustainability management structure of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Identification of Material Topics

In order to understand the concerns of various stakeholders of
the Group and identify material topics that have a significant
impact on its operations, the Group has complied with
the “ESG Reporting Guide” of HKEx to conduct an online
survey to identify material topics through four steps, namely
Identification, Prioritisation, Verification and Review. The six
material topics are “Customer health and safety”, “Product and
service quality”, “Occupational safety and health”, “Employee
training and development”, “Anti-corruption” and “Exhaust
emissions management”. During the year, after review, these
six material topics were found closely linked with the Group’s
operations.

We actively responded to concerns of stakeholders, disclosed
the Group’s performance and impact on material topics in
detail, and took corresponding measures to further improve
the sustainability management during the year.

‘# ! Identification

e il

Commissioned a third-party independent
consultancy to conduct materiality
assessment of the Group by referring to
the HKEx ESG Reporting Guide.

LZEE=ABIUBEBATE BB2EH
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MR o
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Prioritisation 6
(=2 ‘,

Invited stakeholders and the management of the Group to
participate in an online survey to gauge their views on the
significance of potential material topics. Prioritised and confirmed
the material topics based on two dimensions, namely “significance
of economic, environmental and social impacts” and “influence
on stakeholders’ assessments and decision making”.
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) Review
N
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Reviewed possible improvements in

the materiality assessment process, and
identify areas for improvement.
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Verification :-

R

The management of the Group closely monitored and confirmed
the assessment results of material topics, and they will

be disclosed in this report.
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Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns

The table below summarises the actions taken by the Group FFIN FREERAEB T HHERE 5 RE
in respect of the topics that stakeholders concerned about >¥s%RE _EFTIREXAYITEN o

during the year.

Stakeholders
FEHEAER S

Customers

zR

Topics of concern

Mz BB A RREEE

e Product and Service
Quality
EmEREES

e Customer Health and
Safety
ERREEATSE

e Customer Satisfaction
ERMERE

e Customer Privacy
Protection
KPR RE

[o] & #1) 2= 48 BR 75

Actions taken

FRERERBYITEN

Detail the relevant regulations on the
process of appointment, training, and exams
participation for trainees

A2 BRI EREII R2REAE
i@%%ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁ RE

Set up a supervision centre to manage the
teaohing work and the training progress
RERERL BEEHREHSTIFRES
taqulaf’Er;

Train and assess driving instructors and
logistics personnel irregularly
EHAE B B R A 2 3 A B E1TIE I R
EZ1Z

Standardise trainee complaint procedures
and establish complaints management
measures

REBERFAE RUBERFEEIE
Conduct trainee satisfaction survey
MERZ2EWEERE

Take corresponding measures to improve
service quality at registration centre, training
centre and recruitment office
BRI H0 s8R R O A8 A A R ENAR
iR ARGES

Establish trainees’ personal information files
and assign special personnel to protect their
privacy

RIIZEBPAEERBE XHEAEETE
HyREZENE

China Oriented International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023




Stakeholders

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Topics of concern

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)

Actions taken

Mz tERA S = AE B 75 BR SE 3R RE Fr#REXBY1T Eh
Employees e (Occupational Health and e Establish internal talent management system
8T Safety RIAIAT BIEFE
BEREHELZR * Provide high-quality remuneration and
e Training and Development benefits, and salary adjustment plan
Bl R REEEFHFEEEN UM AT A %
e Employee Retention and e Regular team building activities
Benefits EHRASE X ERED
BT#HEBRER e Regular employee trainings
e Employee Communication ERREITE T
Channels e Set up various employee communication
BT &E@EEE channels and carry out improvement work
based on suggestions
RIUZBETBBRE UHHEZRETN
ET1E
e Prevent child and forced labour
MABE T k&G THITA
e |dentify health risks faced by employees and
implement preventive measures
58 Al B T BR B 48 R B B 0 42 L1 7 sE A T
e Provide safety training and mental health
education
RETREZ2EIROEREAS
e Strengthen pandemic prevention and control
measures to ensure employee safety
msaiEiE REEIZE
Suppliers e Supplier Management e Pre-procurement supplier assessment
HFE™ HEMEE BB A FE R s T

Annual supplier rating record

ETFEEHERT DL

Shareholders and
investors

RERRKEE

Company Operation
NEES

Corporate Governance
TrEER

Risk Management

JE| Bgg S 3

Regular employee training
ERRETE TEI

Strengthen anti-corruption work
IN5R = $& 82 T 1F

Compliance with laws and regulations
BTERER

MR ERZERARAR
T =FFR
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BE-#HEREBRS ()

Stakeholders
FAERA A

Government

B

Topics of concern

F =2 HH A 75 BRE R RE

e Company Operation
NEVESE

e Environmental
Compliance
REEH

e Anti-corruption
RERE

Actions taken

FRr % EX B9 1T &

Require all employees to comply with laws
and regulations
EREBEILETERER

The inspection team regularly checks the
work system and effectiveness of each
department every month regularly
ER/NVEESA TN R IFTTIESE KRR
EITHE

Encourage employees to report violations
BB TRRERTH

Establish relevant systems to regulate
employee behaviour
RIUERGIERLETITH

Communities

&

e FEducation
S0
e Poverty Alleviation

731

Actively respond to the national call for
poverty alleviation and assist in poverty
alleviation

BB ERERKERD  BRE TIF
Organise activities to help with exams
HBZLBIE EE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE CARE

The overall quality of the training team is crucial to the
Group’s operational efficiency and service quality. The Group
is committed to creating a warm, harmonious, and humanised
working environment with room for employees’ growth and
striving to build a high-quality team of driving instructors.

Talent Management

We are committed to building a dynamic and competent
team. We strictly implement the employment standards,
recruitment methods, selection methods, trial requirements
and employment principles for new employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations’ and the Group’s
internal “Employment Management Methods”. At the end
of each year, each department determines employment
needs for the upcoming year and reports it to the office for
recruitment applications. We conduct recruitment through
various channels, such as internal referrals, government
agencies and public recruitment. The candidates are required
to pass at least one written test and two interviews before
they are eligible for appointment. New employees are subject
to a probation period of 1 to 6 months, and those who are
excellent performers may apply for formal offer, which is
reviewed and confirmed by the office and a formal labour
contract is signed.

Remuneration and Benefits

Since employees are the greatest force for the Group’s long
term development, the Group is committed to maximizing
employee satisfaction by providing them with competitive
remuneration. We have established a standardised
remuneration management system. Employees are not only
entitled to statutory benefits according to the law, such as
reasonable leave, five social insurances and one housing fund,
but also receive life insurance and other additional benefits
purchased by the Group for employees, such as free lunches,
staff dormitory and holiday benefits.

i Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for talent management
related laws and regulations
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RE-#HEREBRS (&)

In order to embrace the development of the Group, give
full play to the incentive role of remuneration and benefits,
and provide competitive remuneration and benefits for
employees, Tong Tai School updated its remuneration
management system during the year, which is relatively
closed, revolving, scientific, and reasonable. Tong Tai School
established a remuneration management committee with
the General Manager acting as the chairman, members of
which comprise of the Assistant General Manager, the Vice
President-in-charge, the Chief Financial Officer and the head
of the administration and human resources department.
Remuneration management committee is responsible for
reviewing the remuneration adjustment strategies and other
forms of incentives (such as year-end bonus, patent award,
innovation award, improvement proposal recommendation
award, etc.) proposed by the administration and human
resources department, as well as individual remuneration
adjustment, overall remuneration adjustment plans,
recommendations and exercising the right of determination.

Training and Development

The Group has formulated the “Employee Training
Management Policy” internally. Each department determines
the training needs according to its own business development
needs and the ability of the personnel for the position. The
training can be divided into internal and external training
according to the organisation. It can also be separated into
orientation training, corporate culture training and professional
skills training according to training objectives.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Orientation

training

AR S T

Introduce employees to

the basic information

of the Group, personal
performance evaluation
process, attendance system,
job responsibilities, work
regulations as well as safety
production system, etc.
REINBAEENERF
MNMENEEZIEZE)
B E S EABE - TIERER
HLREEFIES

Introduce development
pathway, strategic planning of
the Group, etc.

AR E R E B -~ BB
REF

Employee training category

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

B TEGI4ER!

2
o\
25e

Corporate culture
training

= EEE

Help employees understand
the history of the Group,
development outlines and
strategies, goals, recreational
activities, employee
development channels, etc.
HEOEBT THRAEEMNES
BEERAZ KRR BR-ER
HNXEES BT REBES

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)

Professional

training

EEEFIN

Provide top instructors
training, driving skill training
R TR REE Bl
B asiEl

Strengthen employees’
professional skills, such as
accounting , audit, statistics,
human resource management,
sales, networking, etc.
HPHMBETIRSE =k
KFEBINBSE G B|
5t #Et s ANEREE
EHEEE

B P EEERBRA R
BT FEER
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RE-HERELBRSE (B)

During the year, a total of 209 employees received training
with total 3,502 hours of training and a training rate of 100%.
For details of employee training data, please refer to the
“Performance Data Summary”.

Professional training

Digital marketing has become an integral part of modern
business strategies. To respond to this trend, during the year,
the Group has newly introduced Douyin training which is to
enhance digital marketing skills of the employee and offers
diverse career opportunities to them.

Health and Safety

The Group has been providing driving training services for
many years with a certain scale and position in the industry
and is well aware of the occupational health and safety risks
faced by the instructors. The Group attaches great importance
to physical and mental health and safety of the employees,
and strives to provide a healthy, safe, and comfortable working
environment for the employees, so as to ensure a smooth
running of teaching activities and daily operations under safe
and controllable conditions.

Safety and Health Training
Programme organised for
the employee
mHESEMZ 2 EERE
ERIZ
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Orientation training organised
for the new employees to
help them familiarize with the
"~ Group’s value and operations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Road and vehicle safety

As a driving training service provider, road and vehicle safety
are the keys to safety at driving schools. We organise road
safety inspections once a month and require our drivers
to strictly comply with traffic regulations and safe driving
practices. We also arrange for driving instructors to participate
in safety education and training seminars on a regular basis. In
addition, the Group has set up a vehicle management team to
regularly maintain, inspect and repair vehicles. We also require
driving instructors to consciously take care of vehicles in daily
teaching work, not to lend vehicles to personnel of external
units, and strictly record and manage each vehicle in use to
ensure the normal and safe use of training vehicles.

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)

BBEREFLE
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Safety Training

In order to enhance employees’ awareness of occupational health
and safety, enhance their ability to respond to safety incidents and
reduce the occurrence of occupational hazards and accidents, we
regularly organise various safety education activities.

Tong Tai School has established a leading group for the
“Fire Warning Publicity and Education Month” to carry
out the publicity and education activities. The purpose of
the event was to reduce the possibility of fire accidents in
driving schools, improve the ability of disaster prevention
and enhance the fire safety awareness and self-rescue
ability of employees and trainees. In addition, we also
carried out various activities and training programs to
enhance employees’ safety awareness, such as fire hazard
investigation, fire safety knowledge training and emergency
evacuation drills.

Regular professional training for the driving instructors and
administrative staff
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RE-#HEREBRS (&)

Safeguarding Employees’ Health

We are aware of the potential health risks of our driving
instructors and other employees during their normal work and
have implemented certain protective measures against these
risks.

RIEET B RE

HPTHRBREREME THEFRIF
PRI RTAE IR B (R R LRG> I # H S L

ERRR T —ERI SR A

Health risks of employees

ETRERE

Driving instructors

BRI

Other employees

FHHET

/ e |ong-term fatigue can easily lead to o
Liver-Qi stagnation
RHRS Z2REFREE

e |aryngitis caused by excessive use of o
the throat
Health M Mg 15 3 5 | 38 P <K
Risks e |umbar disc protrusion caused by
2 B2 JEL B long-term work in the car .

RAEAEAE FTEM ol EHRER Y

e |ong-term exposure to car exhaust may
cause lung disease and anemia
REEESERE R AR EME &l

o

Back pain caused by long-term sitting
and standing

RIS I MBS B

Working on the computer for a long time
can easily cause eye disease and eye
fatigue

REAEH B S 5| 2 R% > R RS
Using mouse for a long term can easily
lead to ankylosis

REIAGERAERZ SR ERE

~

%

/ e Combine on-board and off-board e Encourage employees to move their
teaching cervical spine, legs and wrists in real time
. B FHBENMETHEES B8 TEREETEME « BREPAN K
Protective * Provide tea and throat lozenges for e Sit upright, drink plenty of water, and
Mef_sirfaf driving instructors wash hands frequently
ik ey #ER B IR A KFHIE S R/ ihE R E > ZFK o EEF
e Purchase accident insurance for driving
instructors
N BRREMEENG

<
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Mental Health Education

Driving training is a job that requires driving instructors
with a higher level of skills and mental quality. In addition
to physical health, mental health is also an integral part of
occupational health. Therefore, we continued to conduct the
science popularisation lectures on mental health and emotion
management during the year. The science popularisation
lecture mainly focused on four major topics, namely, the
definition of mental health, the method of psychological
adjustment, the state of mood and how to do well in mood
management, so that the driving instructors can understand
the basics of mental and mood health, improve their mood
management ability and benefit for mental health.

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)
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Regular science popularisation
¥ lectures to provide mental health
| and emotion management
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RE-HERELBRSE (B)

Employee Composition

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 209
employees, with 167 male employees, accounting for
approximately 80%. About 63% of the employees were
between 30 and 50 years old. The Group had 8 management
employees, accounting for approximately 3.8% of total
number of employees. All employees were located in China.
During the year, the employee turnover rate of the Group was

BT

B ZE2023FE12831H » ZEE T HF209%
ET - BHETHE1674  £91h80% 4
63%HY & T R 30-508% 2 [ o AN B
BEEEBHSA A1h3.8% FIEETH
IR R AEBMNE TREAEXES
46.5%°

46.5%.
Gender Profile Age Profile
553 Fhen
4%
35%
@ Make Female 30 or below @ 31-50 51 or above
% Z 30T T 31-508% 51 |k
Turnover Rates by Age Turnover Rates by Gender
HEERE| BRI =R R B 5 R R =R
78.26%
80 60— 56.43%
70 50
59.46%

30-50

2022 @ 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Employee Communication

We attach great importance to the quality of employees’ work
and therefore have established a comprehensive feedback
and communication system to actively listen to employees’
suggestions and opinions on the Group’s internal operations
and adjust operational measures to improve employees’
satisfaction. The Group has established an internal review
team for reasonable suggestions. If an unreasonable situation
is found in daily work, employees can report to the department
head every Friday, and the person-in-charge screens and
reports to the review team. The team reviews and approves
implementation of specific plans to improve internal operations
after discussion.

Employee Activities

During the year, the Group organized various activities for
employees to enhance their value, build stronger bonds,
and promote their overall well-being. One such activity
was a sightseeing trip to #ZIEF R E4SEE, which aimed
to promote physical and mental health for employees in a
historical attraction. During the trip, employees supported
each other and fostered a positive team dynamic,
strengthening their relationships and cohesion.

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)
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RE-#HEREBRS (&)

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with national laws? and SA8000
standards and prohibits child and forced labour. To ensure
compliance, all candidates are required to fill in the Group’s
“Entry Registration Form” and the personnel department
reviews their identity cards and health certificates. The office
staff checks whether the content filled is consistent with
the submitted certificates. If any problems are found, they
are rectified accordingly. In the event that child labour is
found to have been negligently employed, the child worker
is suspended immediately, and health checks are arranged
after which he/she is returned to his/her parents or guardian
as soon as possible. In addition, we maintain contact with the
parents or guardians of the child to ensure that the child will
return to the school for education.

Compliance with laws

We strictly comply with laws and regulations and have
established effective policies and procedures to ensure
that the Group’s business is in compliance with laws and
regulations in all aspects. The management of the Group
closely monitors the latest regulatory developments and
provides necessary training to relevant personnel. Same
as 2022 year, during the year, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunities, anti-discrimination, other benefits
and welfare, prevention of child and forced labour, provision
of a safe working environment and protection of employees
from occupational hazards; and there were no cases of work-
related fatalities or occupational diseases or incidents of
material penalties due to violation of labour-related laws.

2 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for child labour and
forced labour-related laws and regulations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Compliance is essential for the Group’s smooth operations.
In order to continuously promote excellence in operations
and management, we have implemented various measures
in multiple aspects such as service quality, supply chain
management, information security and intellectual property
protection.

Service Quality

The Group is committed to continuously improve service
quality, trainee satisfaction, and strictly comply with
the laws and regulations® related to training services of
driving schools. To ensure compliance, we set out in the
“Management Approach of the Teaching Affairs Office”
about the relevant requirements for the process of pre-
training, training, and examination participation of trainees,
and clarify the responsibilities of each department to ensure
the implementation of professional and compliant teaching
services. Due to the Group’s business nature, disclosure on
product recall procedures and number of products recalled are
not applicable.

g Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for driving training
quality-related laws and regulations
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Teaching Quality Management HEESEE

In order to ensure the quality of driving training, standardise
teaching behaviours, and provide first-class teaching services

for trainees, we adhere to the training concept of “people- T AZ&Z ISR WIZIIES

oriented and warm service”, and continuously improve internal

systems and policies, strengthen the team management of KB IREHZBKF o
driving instructors, and improve teaching level.

Internal policy
improvement

TERBBE

Management
of driving
instructors team

HREERER

Teaching
affairs

disclosure

26 YN

Establish and improve various rules and regulations of the Group to provide system
guarantee for effective management of teaching and training, and all tasks have rules
and laws to follow

BUR2AEEZRERSHE  SANEEHSEIIRHFERE BELFEHIIEE
A& > BIE Rk

Set up a supervision centre, which is mainly responsible for the management of
instructors’ teaching arrangements and the situation of trainees
HIEMEUREER L T EAEEERMRERELH TENEZEER

Strengthen the construction and assessment of instructors’ business ethics, supervise
and inspect coaches’ teaching conditions
BICHBREREBREEREAZ R HHBRAEBRETEERS

Instructors must have the appropriate qualifications, and regularly review the teaching
level and business ethics, and publish the teaching quality rankings of the instructors
YREBEBHEEEL U EHAHARENHE K TNHEBEETIS AHHKRE
NHEE2EEHTIER

We will not tolerate behaviours that harm the interests of trainees. Those who violate
business ethics will be punished or expelled from the driving school
HREZSBEFGNTE BIEE HHEERBEEENAS ER—BHATHEER
7 2B RR

Implement the academic affairs, timely disclosing the issues and major issues that
instructors and trainees are concerned about
BIRBRR BHARERBZEAONEBREAEENREEF AR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition, we hold regular trainee seminars, administer
surveys and organise online exchanges to understand their
opinions and suggestions on training, education, teaching
and management services, and make timely adjustments to
continuously improve the level of teaching services.

Improve Trainee Satisfaction

The Board of Directors pays high attention to our trainees’
satisfaction, therefore closely monitors the complaints
handling and passing rate performance. The Group regulates
the complaint handling mechanism through the “Complaint
Management Methods” and the “Complaint Process” to
ensure that issues raised by the trainees can be responded
to and properly handled in a timely manner. Upon receipt of
complaints from trainees, the relevant employees solve the
problems of trainees timely in accordance with the principle of
“rapid, efficient and satisfactory” to improve their satisfaction.
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Complaint handling process

KEFEERE

Receive complaint

information Analyse reasons Follow-up and summary
KK 3R 2 * SRR * iR A
e Analyse the issues, confirm e The responsible department e Follow up the process

whether it is possible

DRFES BREESE

analyse the cause and
recommend solution

RIERIRIBRE

Al AE B EEBFI D M7 1% 5 IR Rt e Summarise complaints to
BERIEFZE improve service levels, and

e Determine the responsible
department o
e & &L PT

solution
FTEBEMTREELZE

To enhance trainees’ sense of identity, apart from training and
assessment of driving instructors and logistics staff from time
to time, the registration centre, training centre and recruitment
office of the Group have taken the required improvement
measures to improve service quality.

The supervisors approve the

reduce the occurrence of
customers’ complaints
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e ©

&

Registration centre

BBHPO

Adopt a reasonable division of
labour, improve the efficiency
and quality of registration
work, and flexibly arrange the
examination time
HEESIED T iRERA LI
KERES BaZEE ARG

Clarify the refund system,
reduce disputes due to refunds

BREIREHIE - B EREY

Inform the examination and
appointment related matters
for trainees
BHBEEETREHETBINE
=R

Speed up problem handling,
and solve the problems
reported by the trainees as
soon as possible

PR RE R IR > B IRARIR

"we

Recruitment office

BEM

Make a return visit to the
trainees, and report the return
visit questions to the training
centre in time

her 22 S Bl5h » i K B i [B15h
5 7B PE 4R R 5 10 8l AR R

BRI B 5 [ BRAY &

Information Security and Intellectual Property Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information security
and intellectual property protection. To this end, the Group has
established relevant management procedures and systems
such as the “Security System” and the “Intellectual Property
Management System”. All employees are required to comply
with relevant systems, laws and regulations*, strictly control
internal management, ensure information security and protect
intellectual property rights.

We have set out in the “Security System” measures in
relation to the Group’s internal information such as financial
statements, payroll tables and market research reports,
requiring employees not to disclose major events and
important information of the Group. We strictly prohibit any
leakage of confidential documents, and effectively protect
internal information. The “Intellectual Property Management
System” provides guidance for the Group to manage
intellectual property related matters, effectively protect the
Group’s intellectual property rights from infringement, and
encourage employees’ enthusiasm for invention and creation.
We organise relevant training activities to popularise the legal
knowledge of intellectual property to employees, and strictly
combat any infringement of intellectual property rights. We
encourage our employees to innovate and reward employees
who have made outstanding contributions to technology
transfer and intellectual property protection.

& Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for intellectual property
rights-related laws and regulations
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Privacy Protection

We attach great importance to protection of trainees’
personal information. The Group has set up separate personal
information files for all trainees, which are managed by special
personnel. In general, we seldom make personnel changes
except for special reasons to protect the privacy of trainees.
If reviewing is needful, the borrowing registration procedures
and the approval of the director of the training centre must be
completed before the access of the trainee information.

Anti-corruption

Business integrity is highly valued. The Group strictly abides
by the relevant national laws and regulations®, regulates the
behaviours of relevant functional departments and employees,
and prevents the occurrence of fraud. We have established
a series of internal anti-fraud systems and monitoring
policies that define non-compliance that may cause damage
to the Group’s economic interests, the purpose being to
safeguard the Group’s reputation and interests. We require
each employee to sign the “Corrupt Practices Commitment”,
and employees are required to ensure that disclosure of the
Group’s trade secrets and the use of trade secrets to make
profits for themselves or others is prohibited. They need to
strictly comply with national laws and the Group’s rules and
regulations and the promote individual private interests under
the guise of serving the public is prohibited.

In order to further strengthen the integrity of the Group and
supervision and management of school-level practices, we
have set up an inspection team system to regularly investigate
the working system and implementation of each department
on a monthly basis.

Whistleblowing mechanism

The Group has established an “Anti-fraud (Reporting) System”,
and we encourage employees to report violations, disciplinary
violations, illegality, fraud and acts that are detrimental to the
interests and image of the Group through various channels. If
the reported incident is verified after investigation, the whistle-
blower is rewarded accordingly.

9 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for anti-corruption
related laws and regulations
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The inspection team, as a standing body for anti-fraud work B&E/NEBEANERKER TEDRE
of the Group, is responsible for accepting complaints and BEEZEKXFEKR  HIERHEHEL
reports, formulating investigation plans, and conducting relevant #{THERAEE - BEE R BB B/ NHE
investigation. After the investigation, the inspection team #HRBAETRELHEIEBELR-
prepares an investigation report and report to the management.

If the report finds the accusation wrong, punishment is TZBENRREIE FREAEEN
awarded to the whistle-blower according to the Group’s rules R EH|IEH R |R AL FTEEMNER
and regulations, and the responsibility of the relevant person is I BB FTAHBMEETANSEE ; HNE
seriously investigated. For general complaints such as adverse BE={T -BLAAE—HREBHFEIE BE
comments and unconscionable behaviours, the inspection /NEFEAISKIEREA B> WA TLETRIREE ;
team should interview relevant personnel and give warning ¥5BIEERITA > BRFIE &REEZE
reminders. For suspected illegality, we promptly transfer them A% RERRIE o

to the judicial authority for handling.

Whistle-blowing and handling procedures
BHRRE

The inspection

Employee

report cases
BTHHE

team accepts
and confirms the
information
BR/AZIEIE?
ERED

The inspection

team investigates
the reported issues

BERNVERERR
AR

e Employees can e Accept the reported e Develop and e |Interview persons
report the cases to information implement the involved in
their supervisors SEBARES investigation plan noncompliance and

74

rank by rank or to il EFE 5 R HETT issue warning

the inspection team e Record reported HE BT R —MIBRRTT

directly content ABHUAEB-BTFER

BT A& E LR SOERRIBAR e Complete the bl

BRIE M 7R Al E A investigation report

B&/NAB R Determine the type of and report to the Compensate for the
report: major report management Group’s economic
at the Group level, 4R S ¥R e I FE R losses or refund the
report from senior EEIEE economic benefits

audit managers, and

obtained

general report Determine the EEEHEGR A E
MERRLEL £ solutions BB BLRIRER
fEEE KER Tt TRIE B IR T BRI B R i
SEEEASER
— AR 2R IR Transfer suspected
offenders to judicial
authorities
KBRS BIEENE
BREEAKREIE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition, we have also established systems to protect
the privacy and security of whistle-blowers by keeping their
personal information confidential and prohibiting any kind of
retaliation. The inspection team and the relevant departments
involved in the investigation keep the personal information
confidential, such as the name and phone number of the
whistle-blower and the contents of the report. When accepting
a report or verifying the situation with the whistle-blower,
it is ensured that the identity of the whistle-blower is not
exposed. The identity information of the whistle-blower is kept
strictly confidential when publicizing, reporting and awarding
the whistle-blower. We strictly prohibit any retaliation, and
those who violate the rules and disclose the information of
the whistle-blower or retaliate against the whistle-blower are
dismissed and the labour contract is terminated. Cases of any
violation of the law are transferred to the judicial authority.

Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are our close partners and the foundation for us
to maintain a stable supply chain. The Group’s suppliers
mainly consist of fuel suppliers, suppliers for training and test
vehicles, suppliers for on-board equipment and monitoring
equipment, and suppliers for construction works. During the
year, we had a total of 12 suppliers.

Selection and evaluation of suppliers

The Group has formulated the “Supplier Evaluation Process”,
the “Procurement Management Measures” and other system
documents to regulate the procurement process and ensure
that the products and services provided by suppliers meet
our requirements. The Group selects suppliers based on the
cooperating principles of high-quality, low-price, contract-
emphasis, honesty and trustworthiness, effective management
and close range. Before procurement, we evaluate suppliers
through interviews, on-site visits, and background checks, and
record the evaluation information in the “Supplier Information
Survey Form”, which is reviewed and approved by the director
of the procurement department before purchase.
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Credit status

EERR

Products and
services

E KR

Cooperation

model
SEER

Supplier assessment criteria

{4 FE i T ik R 35
Litigation incident
HENE ¢
Mortgage and pledge of assets
BERERRKR

Inquiries, comparisons and bargains
#HELEERZEEB

Visit suppliers’ plants or warehouses if necessary
WEREFEEE IRRAE

Procurement amount
RIBEEE
Payment methods

NV

Obtain the information from its cooperators about the cooperation model, shipments,
reputation, etc. if the supplier is an agency

AHEEAAER IHERNSFIERERBERANSFEN - HEE 8%

In addition, we also conduct annual assessment on all b9 FFITRE B HER ETEET
suppliers to ensure the quality of products and services fii> UERMHEFMIRENE BERE
provided by them, which in turn ensures the quality and safety B2 > EMRFAEFFTIIXFNRE
of the Group’s training business. MZso

China Oriented International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Green procurement

To fulfill the aim of environmental sustainability in supply chain
management, procurement of eco-friendly products is given
priority where possible and economically viable. The Group
has been closely working with our suppliers to strengthen
our sustainability portfolio and minimise risks throughout the
supply chain and is committed to promoting sustainable and
responsible operational standards. Despite that we consider
the environmental impact on our supply chain is insignificant,
the Group prefers local suppliers whenever possible to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation and to support the local
economy. During the year, all suppliers of the Group were
located in China.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the
importance of compliance with laws and regulations and
have formulated corresponding prevention, supervision and
detection measures to ensure obeying laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and laundering. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to advertising, privacy matters, health and
safety of services provided; nor was it aware of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and
laundering; nor any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or our employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to striking a balance between business
operations and environmental protection, contributing
to a greener environment through energy conservation
and emissions reduction. In the future, we will continue
to improve our environmental management approach,
optimise environmental performance and achieve sustainable
operations of the Group.
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Environmental Management

The Group recognizes its social corporate responsibility
in environmental protection and commits to promoting
responsible operation in its business. The Group has
established the Green Office Policy with an aim of creating
a green working environment and raising our employee’s
awareness. The policy focuses on relevant environmental
aspects to the Group’s business including energy saving
practices, paper-free office, water conservation, and
good indoor air quality. Also, the Group has established
Environmental Protection Policy to delegate the responsibility
of consumption monitoring and promotion to different
functional departments. We strictly abide by national
environmental laws and regulations®, continuously establish
and improve various energy conservation and environmental
protection systems and strive to reduce the impact of our
operations on the ecological environment. The environmental
management of the Group is led by the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, while the business department and the logistics
support department guide and supervise the relevant work
of the teaching affairs office, office, and vehicle management
team respectively, and report to the Board of Directors on
a regular basis. Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
we do not consume any packaging materials in our daily
operations, and the impact on the environment mainly comes
from fuel consumption and emissions of the vehicles.

& Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for environment-related
laws and regulations
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RRE-HERELBRSE (&)

Organisational structure of environmental management
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For details of environmental data, please refer to the

“Performance Data Summary”.
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Energy Management

Energy consumption in the Group’s daily operations mainly
includes petrol, diesel (direct energy) and purchased electricity
(indirect energy). During the year, the Group’s total energy
consumption was 12,060.59 thousand kWh, with an energy
consumption intensity of 0.30 thousand kWh per thousand
RMB revenue. Among them, the direct energy consumption
was 11,012.51 thousand kWh, and indirect energy
consumption was 1,048.08 thousand kWh.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions generated by the Group
include direct emissions from fuel combustion of vehicles
(Scope 1) and energy indirect emissions from the use of
electricity (Scope 2). During the year, the Group’s total GHG
emissions amounted to 3,416.79 tCO2e, which consisted of
2,777.35 tCO2¢ direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) and 639.43
tCO2¢ energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2).

Compared with prior year, the GHG emission generated from
the Group was lower than 2022. Both direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1) and indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) were lower
as the Group had a smaller energy consumption in diesel,
gasoline and purchased electricity during the Year. The lower
energy consumption was mainly due to efficient energy policy.
As the energy consumption varies with the business activities
of the Group’s vehicles, the Group targets to maintain the
energy consumption intensity and GHG emissions intensity
not higher than 5% of the level during the year (FY2023) in the
coming 5 years. We aim to achieve such targets through the
measures below.

Fuel consumption of vehicles is a major component of the
Group’s energy consumption. We have continued to adopt
various measures to save energy and improve efficiency. We
carry out training, publicity and education activities related to
energy conservation and emission reduction from time to time
to enhance the awareness of all employees and encourage
energy conservation and emission reduction in day-to-day
operations. At the same time, we strive to create a green,
environment-friendly, low-carbon and energy-saving office
environment, practice green office culture, start with details,
saving electricity and office supplies.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Driving training
B ErEI
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PR Il 55 51| BE - R 1T B

0,

Electricity
saving

HARE

RERRE B EE

BB R A B AR B R EE

Prioritise to use water-saving appliances
BARAEKEEE

REHKFEKEERR DRI » BRIRK

conservation

A9 Ak

THAREMBKEBARTEER
Repair or replace the valve in time
e R E IR 5 SR P

Restrict training vehicles from driving on the road

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)

Use customised versions of driving school training vehicles

Turn off lights, computers and other electrical appliances in time

Use natural light to illuminate when sufficient to avoid turning on electric lights

Check whether the faucets are closed from time to time to avoid leaking water

Check that all taps are fastened before knocking off

Advocate paperless office, double-sided printing, or handing around the documents to
reduce paper use, and encouraging the use of renewable paper

RESBKCHA  EEITNHIUERXHNF R  BAHEENARSK > 785 Bh 58 8 T B £ 4K
Use recyclable items such as refill pens, toner cartridges and rechargeable batteries
FRITEHRATHE NN TEEMEF I BIREANY @

Encourage to purchase environmentally friendly items

ERRBRARY &

Water Conservation

The Group is well aware that water shortage is an increasingly
serious challenge and therefore we have implemented a series
of water-saving measures in our daily operations and continue
to cultivate employees’ awareness of the need for water
conservation. We post “Water Conservation” signs at water
taps in the office and require employees to turn off the water
taps immediately after use. During the year, the total water
consumption of the Group was 11,449.82 tonnes and the
water consumption intensity was 0.29 tonnes per thousand
RMB revenue. The Group did not have any issue in sourcing
water fit for the purpose.

The Group targets to maintain the water consumption intensity
at the level during the year (FY2023) in the coming 5 years to
ensure the effectiveness of the above water saving measures.

E1EKER
NEBFIAKEREHA H & BRI B
BoBRMREBEERER —RIEK
B WiTEEE 8 THRIA R o F
R A ER/KBEBERE R B4Rk &
ThE T ERETHFAEKEER &
N REBMNAEFEKEA11,449.82MF »
BEKkEEASTTAR®EZE$£%0.29
WA o ZS £ B W S E (] JE BN A KR B/
F'Eﬁ%"

AEBENERSNARAFEREKEE
RN AFEE (2023 FHBFE) K
DR LB KB Z B R

MR ERZERARAR
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RE-#HEREBRS (&)

Emissions Management

Exhaust Emissions Management

The major exhaust emissions generated from the Group’s daily
operations are nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and
particulate matter (PM) emitted from vehicles. During the year,
we generated 18.21 tonnes of nitrogen oxides, 0.02 tonnes

B E IR
B B HE
rEBHEEEELENBERSEAYETE
%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬂﬁtﬁﬂzmﬁﬂft%(lﬂom k=l
1E¥)(SOX) LA K F&F ML+ (PM) o £ Y » T
1P9 [ BB & A ,Ma%%&@s 21ME R & 1b

of sulphur oxides and 1.78 tonnes of particulate matter from %7~ 0.028BFR A 154 Kz 1.7 8MERE S FZ K F o
vehicle fuel consumption.
Exhaust emissions Unit
BERBEE By 2023 2022
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) tonnes
K81ty U 18.21 23.17
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) tonnes
ety U 0.02 0.02
Particulate Matter (PM) tonnes
BERLF 7 1.78 2.28

i LUR D BE SR s 2

K BRI RS

I&iﬁ o

We continue to adopt a series of measures to reduce
emissions and to protect the environment.

Y HERR > (R EE

Emission reduction measures

L HEE

Formulate emission management rules
and strictly manage vehicle and canteen
soot emissions to reduce the impact on
the environment
%‘JEET**T‘L%TEZEHHU’}Eﬁmfiﬁﬁﬁg_ﬁ#
B BEHES UREHRIENZE

Regularly conduct vehicle evaluation and
maintenance, and promptly replace vehicle
environmental protection equipment, such as air
filters, diesel filters, etc., to avoid unnecessary
emissions due to the aging of the equipment,
and gradually eliminate the vehicles with heavy
fuel consumption and emissions

EHTEEREABRLERRE  RFEHR

BHEIRARE MERRS B EE  BR

IEEWEE% REECEETVENERIER
WED EAFEHER  ERBFNERA B

Motor vehicles shall undergo annual
inspections in accordance with
regulations to ensure that emissions meet
national requirements

P BN B IR E1T A R E RBERA
BEIRENK

Use clean energy in the canteen, as well
as the soot separation equipment to
control air pollution caused by the soot in
the canteen
REZERABRER WA HE DSBS
B MG B 2 hE SRV ZE &5
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Wastewater Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, our daily
operations do not involve industrial wastewater discharge.
The wastewater generated by the Group is mainly domestic
wastewater from office and cleaning areas. The canteen
wastewater and toilet wastewater generated by us are
transferred to the sedimentation tank and septic tank
respectively through the sewage pipe network, and the
relevant local departments are responsible for recycling and
treatment. During the year, all domestic wastewater generated
by the Group was treated and discharged in accordance with
the requirements of the laws and regulations of the places
where it operates. The data for wastewater discharge was not
available.

Waste Management

Food waste generated from the Group’s canteen is the major
non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group. To mitigate
the disposal, the Group has adopted various measures
in the canteen area, including delegate supervision in the
canteen and prohibit food wastage, thus closely monitor the
effectiveness of the measures.

The Group regulates the waste discharge procedures by
setting up a fixed waste collection and storage point in the
waste-generating departments to collect recyclable and
non-recyclable waste separately. For general wastes that
cannot be handled timely, protective measures such as anti-
diffusion and anti-blowing are taken to prevent secondary
pollution during storage. When the amount of recyclable
waste is accumulated to a certain level, the logistics support
department is responsible for handing it over to qualified waste
disposal companies for recycling.

Hazardous waste such as waste engine oil is generated
during the Group’s vehicle maintenance process. As vehicle
maintenance work is undertaken by third-party service
providers, hazardous waste generated is not included in the
Group’s waste data. During the year, the Group produced
a total of 91.17 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, including
general office waste and food waste generated from office and
canteen areas, with non-hazardous waste intensity of 2.28 kg
of waste generated per thousand RMB revenue.

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)
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Due to the aforesaid measure being effectively implemented,
the waste intensity of the Group was lower than 2022. the
Group has confident to maintain the non-hazardous waste
disposal intensity at the level during the year (FY2023) in the
coming 5 years to ensure the effectiveness of the above waste
reduction measures.

Climate Change

The Group recognizes the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore
closely monitors the potential impact of climate change on
our business and operations. In accordance with the reporting
framework developed by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures, there are two major categories of
climate-related risks, physical and transition risks.

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as typhoons, storms, heavy rainfalls, and extreme
cold or heat bring acute and chronic physical risks to the
Group’s business. The Group’s capacity and productivity will
be reduced under extreme weather events as the safety of our
employees is threatened and the operational sites might be
damaged, which exposes the Group to risks associated with
non-performance and delayed performance, leading to direct
negative impact on the Group’s revenue.

To minimize the potential risks and hazards, the Group
has established mitigation plans, including flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad or
extreme weather conditions such as typhoon and black
rainstorm. The Group will explore emergency plan to further
reduce the vulnerability of our installations to extreme weather
events in order to enhance business stability.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2023

MR ANMER LMER REENER
YRERIR2022F - AEBBEOLER
MEFEAREEBRRYREZERETE
AEE 2023/ ) BIKF > LUBEMR L4t
Il B +E T B9 RS

RIREE
AEBHD > BB RHEEXREE

MEE+SES RSB @
CHRPESREENBELE 1R
SRS S S RE LS TR
LiEL REARRMARD BYERBE
BB A o

I 1L /3 B

e &~ B2~ BRI RS B K B A
mRREHHENRRRBEEREELL
B SEAEENEFHRTHRRE
BRYEMERR - EBBHRREGFT A
EENEREKREENRE TR AAE
THRERIRE  BEMBOIERIE
EREAEREERENEOMIEERED
BRI AR EMmE AEERIRA LN
ERaETE-

PARBERBAECEEREERNM ~&H
BRI ERtE BEERAKRERE
BREZIEHNBIHERRIFE L RS
TEREREMER AEEFRERE
metE E—F R DB RREGH R
PN ZERENERS  EMMBREHR
EfE o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Transition Risks

According to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(“IPCC”) special report, a more aggressive greenhouse gas
reduction target is needed to address the increasing threat
from climate change. To achieve the global vision on carbon
neutrality, the Group expects evolution of the regulatory,
technological and market landscape due to climate change,
including the tightening of national policies and listing rules
and the emergence of environmentally related taxes. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose enterprises
to higher risks of claims and lawsuits, which might incur
additional compliance costs and affect the reputation of the
Group.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors any changes
in laws or regulations and global trends on climate change to
avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines or reputational
risks due to delayed response. In addition, the Group
has been taking comprehensive environmental protection
measures, including GHG reduction measures, has set targets
to gradually reduce the Group’s energy consumption and GHG
emissions in the future.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the
importance of compliance with laws and regulations and
have formulated the corresponding prevention, supervision,
and detection measures to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations on environmental protection. During the year, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

As an enterprise with a strong sense of social responsibility,
the Group remains committed to giving back to the society
and pursuing the common development of the enterprise
and the society. During the year, we actively participated in
social welfare activities, such as convoy for the examination
candidates, and visiting front-line staff in pandemic control.
The Group donated a total of RMB40,000 in social welfare
activities, and employees participated in public welfare
activities for approximately 1,568 hours with a total of over
200 volunteers from our employees.

The Group fully aware of providing support to the needy
and the hands-on contribution of employees to the society.
The Group organized a number of welfare activities, mainly
donations and volunteer work.

Donations and Volunteer

Our employees actively participated in supporting the high
school entry examination by providing essential supplies to
duty officers and assisting with operations. Additionally, the
Group has been providing free transportation services for high
school entry students taking the exam to the examination
halls, demonstrating our commitment to supporting education
and our community.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Employees providing donations to the duty officers
and transportation to the students during the high
school entry examination
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Volunteer training

The Group has also utilized the specialty of the business
and provide volunteer training to furnish the needy with the
capability to drive and obtain employment opportunities.
We aim to enhance with awareness of our employees on
community involvement and promote the spirit of contributing
to our society.

Social Recognition

In view of the Group’s effort in promoting road and vehicle
safety, we were awarded as the Excellent Organization in
Suiping County “cargo driver skills Competition” during the
year.

02 FXBBEF "Rk LR

TC Rk BE 2R

Over the years, the Group has continued to lifting our ethical
standard. We were awarded as the “Company with integrity” in
the year.

V
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BE -#H@rEa8SE (8)

LAWS AND REGULATIONS ERBGER
The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and ZHAEBRKETHBNEREE > GF
regulations, including but not limited to the following: BARBERUTREA
Applicable Laws and Regulations Corresponding Chapter
BERNZERRER HESH
A1 Emissions e Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Environmental Protection
ATBERH) Republic of China — Emissions Management
(PEARSENBEIRIRREE) IRIBRE—BINEIE

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
(REARIENBARSREEZE)

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(FREANRHEMBEATREEEED

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste
(FPEANRENHEREEY S RIRIR A E)

B1 Employment e Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China Employee Care —
B1{E1E (FPEARSEMEESBE) Talent Management)
e Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of ETRE— A4 EIE
China

(FEARZENBESEERE)

e Provisions on the Administration of Road
Transport Employees
(ERMEHNEABEERRTE)

e Special Rules on Labour Protection of Female
Employees

(X T HERERHIRE)

90 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRAKERRER

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China

(FEARZENBEZ2EEZE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on Road
Traffic Safety
(FEARENBERBLEE)

RRE-HERELBRSE (&)

Corresponding Chapter
HEEE

Employee Care — Health
and Safety
BETHAR-RREZE

B4 Labour Standard

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the

Employee Care —

Regulations of the People’s Republic of China on
Road Transport

(PEARKLMEEREHF)

B4 T #8) Protection of Minors Prevention of Child and
(FPEAREMBEIREFAFREE) Forced Labour
e Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child E TRE—#E=ET KA
Labour %5 T
(BIEEAETRE)
B6 Product e Regulation on the Implementation of Road Traffic | Operational Excellence —
Responsibility Safety of the People’s Republic of China Service Quality
B6EmET (REAREMEBEIERIIBLEETIRAD SHEE-RBEE

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TR&S

Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(PEARHEMBIRAEEFHRF L)

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

(REARZLMBENE)

Operational Excellence —
Anti-corruption
SHEE-RAS

‘P EEZERARA S
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RE-HERELBRSE (B)

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY

Environmental Data

HERREE
IRIFEIE

2023 2022
Greenhouse Gas Emissions’ RAERBEIEKRE
Scope 1 Direct emissions (tCOze) SENEEZHEN
(| ES) 2,777.35 3,222.97
Scope 2 Indirect emissions (tCOze) B E 2 HE
(M- ERES) 639.43 801.77
Total GHG emissions (tCOze) /mifﬂ‘*%ﬁ%}@é
(—EERES 3,416.79 4,024.75
Emission intensity BEREE (WM_StRES
(tCO2e per RMB1,000 revenue)? ST ARBEZEEEE)? 0.09 0.08
Air Emissions EEREEE
Sulphur oxides (SOx) (Tonnes) EE¥(SOx) (HB) 0.02 0.02
Nitrogen oxides (NO.) (Tonnes) K8 1E¥(NOx) (fig) 18.21 23.17
Particulate matter (PM) (Tonnes) & FERL(PM) (FR) 1.78 2.28
Waste EEEY
Food waste production (Tonnes) BarEEE () 65 95
Waste cooking oil production (Tonnes) BEEHELE (M) - -
Office waste generation (Tonnes) MANEBEEYELE (W) 26.17 35.15
Total non-hazardous waste disposal BEBEEYRERS (W)
(Tonnes) 91.17 130.15
Waste intensity BEY=ZE (T /8T
(kg per RMB1,000 revenue) AREEEEE) 2.28 2.73
Resources Consumption EIRHE
Diesel (Litres) Sl (AF) 815,631.17  973,607.57
Petrol (Litres) R (B F) 235,530.59  246,274.34
Electricity (kWh) B (TRF) 1,048,076 1,314,162.00
Total energy consumption ('000 kWh) WEERHFE (THETER) 12,060.59 14,121.66
Energy intensity FEERE (TETRE
('000 KWh per RMB1,000 revenue) ST AREB S 0.30 0.30
Water (Tonnes) k= (8) 11,499.82 9,987.09
Water intensity FEOKEE (Mg,
(Tonnes per RMB1,000 revenue) t?m)\ﬁﬁ%éﬁgﬁ) 0.29 0.21
Note: B 5E
1. GHG emissions are calculated with reference to the Greenhouse Gas 1. BEREHRMNFER Z2E8E JFLES
Protocol. The emission factors for the calculation of GHG emissions are B E T =(Greenhouse Gas Protocol) ¢
referenced from the HKEx “How to Prepare an Environmental, Social EREHRNGENHREFSE 5/%“
and Governance Report — Appendix II: Environmental Key Performance Fr{ZEHFRIE - T EREARS — Wik
Indicators Reporting Guidelines”. T RIERRANIEIRERIES] ) o
2. The total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2. ZAREEH FE20234F K2022F12H31HIEE

2023 and 2022 amounted to approximately RMB39,884 thousand and
RMB47,734 thousand, respectively. The data is also used for calculating
other intensity data.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2023

EWNRIWADAR ARE39,884F TR
Q%%Mjm?ﬁohﬁEWQ%W%ﬁﬁ



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE - HEREBRS (&)

Social Data HEEE

2023 2022

Total Headcount BTHAHY 209 290
By Gender % 31 5
Male B 167 237
Female pogd 42 53
By Function B BE 2 0
Management (=il 8 5
General staff —mRAE 201 285
By Age FHeoMh
<30 <30 9 26
30-50 30-50 131 200
>50 >50 69 64
By Geographical Distributions & 5
Mainland China ki 209 290
Hong Kong 55 0 0
By Employment Type EREER S
Full-time £ 209 290
Part-time R 0 0
Employee Turnover - By Age BT RKBR—IZFEHR
Number of Employees Lost MEAH
<30 <30 11 27
30-50 30-50 82 130
>50 >50 23 29
Turnover Rate mARE
<30 <30 59.46% 78.26%
30-50 30-50 49.85% 53.83%
>50 >50 34.59% 36.94%
Employee Turnover - By Gender BT RXER — %%
Number of Employees Lost BIREAH™
Male B 106 169
Female g 42 17
Turnover Rate MARE
Male B 42.48% 56.43%
Female 7% 21.05% 30.91%

B REEERARAS
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BE -#H@rEa8SE (8)

2023 2022

Employee Training Performance - BTIEINERN — HREAE
By Function
The Percentage of Employees Trained Z3IBEXR
Management (=il 100% 100.00%
General employee —mRET 100% 89.82%
Average Training Hours Per Employee | A 39152l B 8(
Management =il 16.00 2.40
General employee —RET 16.79 3.40
Employee Training Performance BTIEIER — =R
- By Gender
The Percentage of Employees Trained Z3I&E &%
Male B4 100% 91.56%
Female Z% 100% 83.02%
Average Training Hours Per Employee | A 39153l B 2%
Male B 16.80 3.26
Female Z % 16.57 3.45
Performance of Occupational Safety Bi¥LZZ2@EEN
and Health
Number of work-related injuries AITZEAH 0 0
Lost days due to work-related injury ATEB/EXTEAH 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities RTIIET AH 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities R TFETEEE 0 0
Public Welfare (RMB) AmBA NEE) 40,000 29,250
Hours participating in social welfare 2HENTIEHRH
activities 1,568 2,114
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CONTENT INDEX A

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT FAEHMASXZEBRARIEE
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF #He&R&E&ai#EIEScIRNA =L
HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHE -E@-
—MRIRER

ik g gvEistd

Description

fi

Aspect A1: Emissions

Section/Declaration

=6 BH

EEA1 - B
General Information on: Environmental Protection —
Disclosure (@) the policies; and Emission Management
—iRINE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact | IRIZ{R:E —BEREE
on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERORERBH  AKRIMNEE S - BEERBESEEYNELSH :

(@ BR; &

b) BFHEFETABEAXENERERERANER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Protection —

RS A BIEIEALA

HERA R R AR R BB R

Emission Management
RIRRE-FREE

KPI A1.2
FREMIEIEA.2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

i @BE1) RERER (EE2) BERBHRE B8 & ER) ZE (@
UEESEE - SEREFE)

Performance Data Summary

YERREER

KPI A1.3
PR A ISIRAL.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.
FFEXEEEEYEE UETE) REE -

The Group’s vehicle
maintenance process which
may involve the generation of
hazardous waste is handled by
third-party service, while other
daily operations do not involve
the generation of hazardous
waste
REBA T REERENE
ENEHEETERHE=A
REmEE HiH B EET
T REEEEMNESL

KPI A1.4
MR EMISIRAL4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.
FMELBEERYEE UMtE) REE-

Performance Data Summary

FERREE

‘P EEZERARA S
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHE -E@-
—MRIRER

AR AEM ISR
KPI A1.5

A A IE1RA1.5

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE -#H@rEa8SE (8)

Description

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
AT I NN E B IR R A ERE L B R R & 5 o

Section/Declaration

=6 BH

Environmental Protection —
Emission Management

RIBRE—HRERE

KPI A1.6
PSR IE1RA1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HIMRIEEERBREEZEYNA L REMAIIINABEERRAESELER
FRERERBY 2 B3 o

Environmental Protection —
Emission Management
RIBRE—FREE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 : EiRfEA

General Disclosure

—RIKEE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BHERABER (BFEETR KR EMERMR) WEEE-

Environmental Protection —
Resources Conservation
RIEFE-HOBER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. Environmental Protection —
RIREMIGIEA21 | RELBDNEER JUEEEREEENEE Resources Conservation
RIBGRE-HNER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data Summary
RIBEMISIEA22  BEKERBE- HERERE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. | Environmental Protection —
FREMIEIZA2.3 | HAFEI IR RERANGE B ERAERE L BIEFMEMN TSR Resources Conservation
RIERE—HNER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | Environmental Protection —
FABEMIEIEA2.4 | water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Resources Conservation
HAKREGEA AR A EAEE URMTINAKEEEERAZIEEE RERE-HNER
TP ERER A 27 B o
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and with reference | The Group’s daily operations
PR 4EIEIEA2.5 | to per unit produced. do not involve in use of

Sk P A EEMENEE UMEEE) heEER LS

packaging materials
AEENBEEER T REE
R B FE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE - HEREBRS (&)

Subject Areas, Description Section/Declaration
Aspects, General
Disclosures and

KPlIs

TEHER -E@- fi =6 BH
—RIRER

RREIER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEAS : IRIEERXRAEIR

General Disclosure | Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and | Environmental Protection

— RN E natural resources. IRIERE
HEFTARBRERRAEREREATENEBR

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural | Environmental Protection

FAE4EIE1ZEA3.1 | resources and the actions taken to manage them. BiERE

B EBEHHRRERRAAE RN EATERERNEESAZENTH -
Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4 . RIFEE

General Disclosure | Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which | Environmental Protection —

—REIE have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Climate Change
A REHEERAIEGHETAELELENEARGHEASENBER RIERE-RBEEE
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and | Environmental Protection —
FASRAEMIEIEA4.1 | those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. Climate Change
HABEKEKRAIEERETAELXENEARBHEBASE KEHTH RIRfRE—REZE
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : &
General Disclosure | Information on: Employee Care — Talent
—RRiREE (@) the policies; and Management

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact | 8 TRE— AA B2
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

BRFMNRERE - BERSA S TERE-RA - TEHE 2ot  RERUK

HMFGBREME

(@ B ; &

b) BFHBFETABEAXEBNEBEERRRANER o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age | Performance Data Summary
FAMEMIEIEB1.1 | group and geographical region. YIERIPEE

IR BIFEHE 2B FRE) FiRAR R ER DHNESRR -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Performance Data Summary
REMIEIEB1.2 | RMEH FRAER MR HHNEERKLEEX- HERERE

‘P EEZERARA S
TEC=-FER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHE -E@-
—MRIRER

AR AEM ISR

AR E (&)

RIE-HHEKRE’

Description

fi

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2: 2RRE%EE

Section/Declaration

=6 BH

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

EMRt 22 THRREERAEESHRHELELEN

(@) B &

b) BFHETABEAZENARBEERROMNER

Employee Care — Talent
Management
ETRE-ALEE

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years | Performance Data Summary
FASRAEMIEIEB2.1 including the reporting year. HEBERRBEE

BE=F (BEERERE) SFRATITHRNAB KR
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data Summary
FgENIEEB22 RAIGELXIFEHHC HIERFHE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are | Employee Care — Health and
FA#E4E%351EB2.3 | implemented and monitored. Safety

HFT R B R R 2 2 URABRRITRERS -

BETHE-RERAZE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : 3 & RkIE:

General Disclosure

—RIKEE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.
BRARF B BB 1T TIER & RO 8 A 5 SERYBUR - it 55 5l &3 o

Employee Care - Training and
Development
ETRE—EEER

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. | Performance Data Summary
RASE4EMIS1EB3.1 | senior management, middle management). YERRBE

R REERN NERERE - PREERES 2oNZiEEE DL
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee | Performance Data Summary
FAENIEIEB3.2 | category. HIEREHEE

BRI R EERRE D SHESRRRIN TR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE - HEREBRS (&)

Subject Areas, Description
Aspects, General

Disclosures and

KPIs

FEHE -E@- i
—MRIRER

AR AEM ISR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JBEB4 : & T8

Section/Declaration

=6 BH

General Disclosure | Information on:

—RIGE (a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BB BT RESTH !

(@ BR; &

b) BFHETABEAXENERERERANER -

Employee Care - Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
EBTRE—MHEET AT
T

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
RAREMISIEB4.1 labour.
H AR 5T R BE 1B I A9 T B AR o B T Ko 5@ 5ll%5 T o

Employee Care - Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
EBTRE—MHEET kAT
T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
FREXNIEIEB4.2 | HMERIRERIE R HRE FISPTEREAY 2 BY o

Employee Care — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
STRE-HEET Rakls
T

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 : HEREE

General Disclosure | Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

Operational Excellence —

—REE BEBERNIRIE RS RREBUS Supply Chain Management
SHEEHEREEE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Operational Excellence —

RRSREMISIEBS.1 | MMEB DMEEREE -

Supply Chain Management
SHEE—HEREE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers | Operational Excellence —

R A I51EB5.2 where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and | Supply Chain Management
monitored. SHEE-HEEEE
HMMBRMERMEENES nERTAERMBANEREEHE  LUREREN
HITREBERAEC

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the | Operational Excellence —

FAEEMIEIEB5.3 | supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A BB e S EIRANRE RS RREAER > U RAERRIT MERA
o

Supply Chain Management
SHEEHEREEE

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
FAE4EL3IE1EB5.4 | services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HAEREREEREFLIRARFRERKRBNEGF URBRAATRERS
*o

Operational Excellence —
Supply Chain Management
SHEE—HEREE

B REEERARAS

TEC=-FER
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHE -E@-
—MRIRER

AR AEM ISR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE -#H@rEa8SE (8)

Description

fi

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmAE

Section/Declaration

=6 BH

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and methods of redress.

BRFMEHERNRBNEREZS \BE RERMDBEEURBRAEDN :

(@ B &

b) BFHEFETABEAXENERERERANER

Operational Excellence —
Service Quality

FHEE-RBEE

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and | Operational Excellence —
PR 4E%3I51EB6.1 | health reasons. Service Quality
BEREEXEREHPRL 2 BREREAMERKNE DL SHEE-RHEES
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | Operational Excellence —
RASEEMIEIEB6.2 | dealt with. Service Quality
RN EmRRBHR I E U EH 5% o SHEE-RBEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property | Operational Excellence —
FARENIEIEB6.3 | rights. Information Security and
Fia 2t £ 4 28 T R P R SR EE R R A VB 461 o Intellectual Property Protection
SHEE-ERE2RAHE
HERE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Operational Excellence —
FIRENIEIEB6.4 HIEERTEBRERERLOKER - Service Quality
SHEE-RHES
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are | Operational Excellence —
FASEEMIEIEB6.5 | implemented and monitored. Information Security and

BB EEERMRERM BB URERATRERS %

Intellectual Property Protection
SHEE-ERLEERABE
R
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPIs

FEHE -E@-
—MRIRER

AR AEM ISR

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE - HEREBRS (&)

Description

fi

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EBEB7 . RES

Section/Declaration

=6 BH

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRARS LEHREE ~ 313 s lGRE RO B8 ¢

(@ BR; &

b) BFHETABEAXENERERERANER -

Operational Excellence — Anti-
corruption

FHEE-RES

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the | Operational Excellence — Anti-
R A MIEIEBT A issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. | corruption
RERBANHETAREEERELESENE SHARHNUBERFAER SHEE-RES
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they are | Operational Excellence — Anti-
FAREMIEIEB7.2 | implemented and monitored. corruption
GBI B RIZT  URBRAITRER % SHEE-RES
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Operational Excellence — Anti-
FAREMIEEB7.3 | HiRESEKETRENKETEC corruption

FHEE-RES

Aspect B8: Commun

[BEB8 : tERE

ity Investment

General Disclosure

—RIKEE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRUHE2ERTREEMTHRRENRREXBEHEZ RHLRIEM
136

Community Engagement
HESH

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour | Community Engagement
FASRAEMIEIEB8.1 | needs, health, culture, sport). HtE2H

SIEMEE GINHE BREEN B TERBR Xt EF) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Performance Data Summary
MBENIEEBS.2 EHIEEMHABER BIMEHHEE) HERBERE

‘P EEZERARA S
TEC=-FER
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEHREEANAENBESFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, aged 47, is the founder of the Group,
the Chairman, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He served as a Director since 22 February 2017.
He was then redesighated as an executive Director and also
served as the Chairman since 22 May 2017. He is primarily
responsible for major decision-making, overall strategic
planning and determining corporate policies and general
management of the Group.

In December 2012 and April 2014, Mr. Qi as a founder
established Shun Da School and Tong Tai School,
respectively. He has served as the executive director and legal
representative of Tong Tai School and Shun Da School and the
executive director, general manager and legal representative of
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (&t 55 &
BRLEIE B R /A F) since their respective establishments.

Mr. Qi was appointed as a member of the 3rd executive
committee of Zhumadian City Federation of Industry and
Commerce* (BEEB/EM IEE S E)in March 2016 and
a member, standing member and vice president of the
7th executive committee of Suiping County Federation of
Industry and Commerce* GZF & THEEt&E)in May 2016.
Also, Mr. Qi was appointed as the chairman of the Driver
Training Service Industry Council of the Zhumadian City Road
Transport Association* (5t 5 /& B8R ER HE &R a5
TERE)in March 2017. In addition, Mr. Qi is elected as a
deputy to the 4th Zhumadian City People’s Congress (5t & /&
mEOEARAKRAKEAR) In April 2017,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zhao Yuxia, aged 53, is the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer of the Group and an executive Director.
She served as a Director since 22 May 2017. She was then
redesignated as an executive Director and also served as the
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the
Group since 22 May 2017. She is primarily responsible for
the overall management of the business operation as well as
financial planning of operations of the Group.

Ms. Zhao obtained a Diploma in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Anyang City Accounting School* (& [z ™ BF
FER)in July 1992. She further completed an Accounting
Program from Henan Province School of Economic* (] =g B 4%
%) (now known as Henan Province University of Economics
and Law* CAIEI RS BUEAAE)) in June 1997 and obtained
the Assistant Accountant* (Bh¥2 & 5t£M) Qualification from the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (FRZE A R H B EE0) in
December 1997.

From December 1992 to July 2001, Ms. Zhao served as a
financial audit assistant, responsible for handling audit work
and preparing financial statements and audited reports, of
Suiping County Audit Firm* (XFEAZETEMEFEFT), which
is an accounting firm in the PRC. From August 2001 to
September 2009, Ms. Zhao served as a financial audit
assistant, responsible for handling audit work, of Suiping
County Yongxing Joint Audit Firm* GXF R x BB A g5
EMEEF5FR), which is an accounting firm in the PRC. From
October 2009 to April 2014, Ms. Zhao was a finance manager,
responsible for overseeing the accounting and financial
management, of Zhumadian City Hongyuan Packing Company
Limited* (B BEREZBEBRAT), which is a company
principally engaged in the sales of cardboards and paper. In
May 2014, she joined our Group as the financial controller of
Tong Tai School, and was responsible for our Group’s financial
management.

ESkEREENAENEEF#E (B)

HMEEBRT 535 ARERITHAEAR
B AR M HITE R - R B201745H22
HiERFESE - B2017FE5H22B 1
ERATAFITER TEEZTAKRE
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ERE) NG ERRE  WHNM9975FE128
erhE AR XM EEEIGEIE g 5t
EEAE o
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESkEREENENEEFRE (B)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong, CFA, aged 61, is the non-
executive Director. He served as a Director since 8 June 2018
and was re-designated as a non-executive Director since 19
September 2019. He is primarily responsible for advising on
finance and investor relationship of the Group.

Dr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience and
knowledge in corporate finance, corporate governance and
investment in various asset classes, such as fixed income
securities and equities. From October 1995 to April 2000,
Dr. Yeung served as the executive director of Great Wall
Electronic International Limited (now known as EPI (Holdings)
Limited) (Stock code: 689), a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was
principally engaged in manufacture of consumer electronic
products. He was responsible for corporate planning, business
development, information technology strategy, financing
activities, accounting function and supervision. From April
2000 to January 2010, Dr. Yeung was the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited
(now known as Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited) (Stock
code: 332). He also served as the executive director of the
said company from April 2000 to February 2010. The said
company is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and was previously engaged in investment holding. Its
subsidiaries were principally engaged in design, manufacture
and sales of electronic products and sales of motorcycle parts.
He oversaw the finance and accounting, legal affairs, human
resources, general administration, information technology and
corporate planning and development. From January 2014 to
July 2014, Dr. Yeung was an adviser to China Caston and
its subsidiaries. From July 2014 to October 2023, he served
as the chief executive officer of China Caston, the holding
company of Greater Sino. China Caston is principally engaged
in investment in equity securities and debt securities. He
was responsible for the day-to-day management, strategic
planning and the execution of the strategic decisions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Dr. Yeung was one of the licensed representatives of
Silverstone Investments Limited, a corporation licensed by
the SFC to carry on Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO for
the period from February 2016 to January 2021. Dr. Yeung
was one of the responsible officers of Success Advance
Investments Limited, for Type 9 (asset management) and Type
4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO
from 1 August 2022 to 9 November 2023. Success Advance
Investments Limited is a corporation licensed to carry on Type
9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising on securities)
regulated activities under the SFO. He was responsible for
investment management advisory. Since December 2017,
Dr. Yeung has been appointed as the Adjunct Professor of
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, the PRC.

Dr. Yeung graduated with a Professional Diploma in
Accountancy with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
November 1986. He further obtained a Bachelor degree of
Science in Economics from the University of London, the
United Kingdom, in August 1990, a Master degree of Laws
in Corporate and Financial Law from The University of Hong
Kong in November 2007, a Bachelor degree of Law from The
Manchester Metropolitan University, the United Kingdom,
in July 2008, a Master degree of Science in Finance and
a Doctor degree of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong in October 2010 and July 2014,
respectively.

He was admitted as a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant) in January 1991.

Dr. Yeung is a CFA charterholder since February 2021.

Dr. Yeung has become a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since November 2021.

In January 2021, he was appointed as a pro-bono director

of Manchester Metropolitan University Chapter Hong Kong
Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESkEREENENEEFRE (B)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wah, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director. He served as an independent non-executive Director
since 19 September 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the
Board. Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and finance. From August 1996 to April 2000,
Mr. Chan worked in W.M. Sum & Co., an accounting firm,
as an auditor and was responsible for performing audit and
taxation assignments. Mr. Chan then joined Arthur Andersen
Hong Kong as an experienced staff accountant in May 2000
and as a senior in September 2001 in the Assurance and
Business Advisory Services Department. From July 2002,
subsequent to the combination of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Ltd. and Arthur Andersen Hong Kong practices, Mr. Chan
was transferred to PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. as a senior
associate, responsible for taking charge of a group of audits.
Mr. Chan left PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. in January 2003
as a senior associate. From February 2003 to August 2007,
Mr. Chan joined Sunray Holdings Limited as a financial
controller and was responsible for taking charge of group
accounting, financial reporting and listing compliance matters.
Sunray Holdings Limited had been listed on the Main Board of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited between
November 2003 and March 2014, principally engaged in
the development, manufacturing and marketing of medical
systems and consumables for the women’s healthcare
market in the PRC. From October 2007 to April 2012, Mr.
Chan served as the financial controller and joint company
secretary of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited where he was
responsible for the financial reporting and company secretarial
matters. Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited has been listed on
the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited since September 2008, whose principal business is
the production and sales of Chinese white wine. From April
2012 to August 2013, Mr. Chan served as an audit manager in
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

S.W. Chan & Co., an accounting firm, and was responsible for
performing audit, taxation and company secretarial services.
Since July 2013, Mr. Chan has served as a director and
practicing certified public accountant at Alliance Ascent CPA
Limited and is responsible for overseeing the development and
operation of the accounting firm.

Mr. Chan graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from The University
of Hong Kong in November 1996 and received the Master
of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2011.

Mr. Chan was admitted as a member and was further admitted
as a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in October 1999 and October 2004 respectively.
Mr. Chan was admitted as an associate member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in March 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Chan was registered as a certified public
accountant (practising) in July 2013. Mr. Chan was also
admitted as an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries (now known as the Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute) in April 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESkEREENENEEFRE (B)

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive Director. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 March 2023 and is mainly responsible
for providing independent judgement and advising on the
issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group. Mr. Wan is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Wan obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1996. He was admitted
as a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2002. Mr. Wan has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Tian Cheng Holdings
Limited KEEKRBRAT (formerly known as Yue Kan
Holdings Limited #E11ZERABR/AE], Stock code: 02110.
HK) on 1 November 2022. Since May 2022, Mr. Wan has
been serving as company secretary of Zhong Ji Longevity
Science Group Limited. He has been the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Pan Asia Environmental Protection
Group Limited (Stock code: 00556.HK) since 2007. Mr. Wan
has more than 20 years’ experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management.

Mr. Xu Jianpo, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 20 April 2023 and is mainly responsible for
providing independent judgement and advising on the issue of
the strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct
of the Group. Mr. Xu is also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Xu completed an undergraduate program in Accountancy
from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics* (Ja] &g B 4%
E2[7) (now known as Henan University of Economics and Law
Com B & BUEARE)) in June 2002. He has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since September 2007. He obtained a Professional and
Technical Personnel Title Certificate of Henan Province* (A
MEEERMASHMEEE)as a senior accountant issued
by Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province GRS & A &Rt B RIEEE) in December
2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Xu joined Henan Kunzheng Joint Accounting Firm (General
Partnership)* CAIEHREMES G5t EHEM (EBE%))
(formerly known as Suiping County Yongxing Joint Accounting
Firm (General Partnership)* GX ¥ fx B & S 5o B AT (&
5%))) in January 2000 as a project manager, responsible
for audit work, and is currently the principal partner. Since
July 2020, he has served as an independent director of Henan
Huiqiang New Energy Material Technology Corp., Ltd.* GAIEg
BB FEME R KRB BERAR), a company principally
engaged in high quality lithium battery separator development,
production and sales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Changling (3R %8), aged 68, joined the Group
as a vice principal and the head of administration department
of Tong Tai School in September 2014. He has been mainly
responsible for supervising our Group’s general logistics
work and administration work, vehicle maintenance and file
management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Suiping
County Waterworks* (& ¥ 8 B2 /K ) as a treasurer,
responsible for financial management, from December 1975
to December 1978. He then worked for Suiping County
Shenzhai Town Finance Office* (&84 LZEER EFR) as a
vice director (8 FTf) between December 1978 and December
1989 mainly responsible for preparation of budget and final
accounts. Mr. Zhang was then transferred to Suiping County
Quyang Road Finance Office* (3 - &4 2 F% 17 18 ¥ =5 55 B B P)
as a director (Fff) from December 1989 to December 2005
and responsible for business operations management.

Mr. Zhang passed the National Civil Servant Training Course
and was granted a certificate by Personnel Department of
Henan Province* (Al & A E ) in November 1994,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESkEREENENEEFRE (B)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (Z&&), aged 49, is the company
secretary. He served as the company secretary since 22
May 2017 and has been mainly responsible for the company
secretarial and related matters of our Group. Mr. Tsang is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has more than 15 years of experience in
audit and accounting. Mr. Tsang joined Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Business Services Limited as an auditor in October 1999
and left the company as a senior auditor in February 2004.
In March 2004, Mr. Tsang joined Grant Thornton Hong Kong
as a senior in the assurance division and was subsequently
promoted to supervising senior in October 2004 responsible
for supervising the field work staff and reviewing the working
papers. He was further promoted to supervisor in October
2005 and was entrusted with a portfolio of the firm’s clients
and also assisted the audit manager in the review function.
He held the same position when he left the firm in March
2007. From May 2007 to July 2008, Mr. Tsang joined Reyoung
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, as a group financial controller mainly responsible for
the finance and accounting functions of the group companies.
From May 2009 to September 2009, Mr. Tsang was employed
by Luxworld Limited as a financial reporting manager,
responsible for financial reporting functions. From November
2009 to February 2014, Mr. Tsang served as chief financial
officer in Zuoan Fashion Limited, a company previously listed
on the New York Stock Exchange and was responsible for the
finance and accounting functions of the group companies.

From November 2013 to July 2021, Mr. Tsang had served as
an independent non-executive director of Xinhua News Media
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 309). From January 2017 to
August 2018, Mr. Tsang was a company secretary of Swee
Seng Holdings Limited. Since April 2021, Mr. Tsang was
appointed as the company secretary and financial controller
of Micron (International) Group Holdings Limited, and Mr.
Tsang was appointed as the company secretary of RENHENG
Enterprise Holdings Limited (Stock code: 3628) since May
2022 and has been mainly responsible for the company
secretarial and related matters.

Mr. Tsang graduated from The University of Hong Kong in
December 2009 with a Bachelor of Accounting and was
admitted as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 2006.

* For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to submit its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of driving
training services through its operating subsidiaries, namely
Shun Da School and Tong Tai School. Details of the principal
activities of the operating subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As required under Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations,
a review on the business, an analysis on the financial
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from pages 7 to 23 of this annual
report. A description of the future development in the business
of the Group is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” from pages 3 to 6 of this annual report. Both of
the above form part of this Report of Directors.

A description and analysis of the principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023 and the particulars of important events
affecting the Group since the end of the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out respectively in the paragraphs
headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” and “Events after
Reporting Period” below from pages 127 to 129 and on page
132 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
ExgHs (&)

A discussion on the environmental policies and performance
of the Group and an account of the key relationships of
the Group with its stakeholders, including the employees,
customers and suppliers and others that have a significant
impact on the success of the Company, are set out
respectively in the paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies
and Performance” and “Relationship with Stakeholders” below
on page 131 of this annual report. Further details on the
performance of the Group by reference to the environmental
and social-related key performance indicators and policies, as
well as compliance with the applicable laws and regulations
are provided in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report from pages 49 to 101 of this annual report.

A discussion on the compliance of the Group with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group is set out in the paragraph headed “Legal and
Compliance” below on page 130 of this annual report. A
further discussion on the corporate governance practices of
the Group is set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 24 to 48 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND SUMMARY

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 143 of this annual
report.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 223 of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

On 27 March 2020, the Board has adopted a dividend policy,
pursuant to which, the Company may consider whether to
propose a dividend out of its distributable profits and reserves
and determine the amount of dividend. For further details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Dividend Policy” under
the Corporate Governance report on page 44 of this annual
report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately RMB40,000.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AND
DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange at the stock code
1871. The initial public offering comprised the public offering
of 50,000,000 new Shares and the placing of 50,000,000 new
Shares. For further details of the IPO, including, among other
things, the reasons for making the issue of and the issue price
of the Shares, please refer to the Prospectus published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of
the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other shares or debentures
were issued by the Company since the Listing Date and for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, or that requires the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19
September 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Company to grant options to the employee,
adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer, partner
or joint-venture partner of the Company or any subsidiary
(including any director of the Company or any subsidiary)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise
engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at the time when
an option is granted to such employee, adviser, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner or any person who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board has contributed or may contribute to the Group
(the “Eligible Participants”) as incentive or reward for their
contribution to the Group to subscribe for the Shares thereby
linking their interest with that of the Group. On and subject
to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and all applicable
statutory requirements, the Board shall be entitled at any time
within 10 years after the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme to make an offer to any Eligible Participants as the
Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe for
such number of Shares as the Board may determine at the
subscription price.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes for the time being of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed such number of Shares as equals
10% of the issued share capital of the Company. Any further
grant of share options to any eligible participant in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the other schemes (if any) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”’) as at 19 September
2019, being the date of passing the resolution by the then
Shareholders through written resolutions approving and
adopting the Share Option Scheme. The Company may seek
approval of its Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time in accordance with the
Listing Rules.
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The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Group if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

Unless approved by the Shareholders in the manner set out
below, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted
to each grantee (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to
an Eligible Participant would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to
be granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue, such further grant
must be separately approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Participant and his/her close
associates (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant is a
connected person) abstaining from voting.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an
Eligible Participant concerned in respect of all Shares which
are offered to such Eligible Participant when the duplicate
letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
Eligible Participant, together with a non-refundable remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company within 21
days from the date of offer or within such time as may be
determined by the Board.
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Any offer may be accepted by an Eligible Participant in
respect of less than the total number of Shares which are
offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot
for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral
multiple thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Company (i) has not granted any share
option under the Share Option Scheme; and (i) does not
have any share options outstanding for issue under the Share
Option Scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds from the
IPO were approximately HK$108.4 million after deducting the
underwriting fees, the Stock Exchange trading fee, Securities
and Future Commission transaction levy for the new shares in
the Company and the listing and other expenses in connection
with the IPO.
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As at 31 December 2023, a total of approximately HK$39.5 /22023F128H31H » NEBERELUTFR
million had been utilised by the Group according to the &M EIEEESASHELS9.58EBTT:
allocation set out hereinbelow:

Utilisation
during the
period from
the listing
date (i.e 24
October 2019) Unutilised
Net to amount as at Expected
% of net proceeds 31 December 31 December timeframe
proceeds from IPO 2023 2023  for intend use
BLmAMH
(Bn2019%F
10824R) E
2023
ZEN 12A31H 420235
FRERIESE  AMZREZ IEEE  12A31BZ HEREMN
AR FERERE BRRERL ABALE TR R R
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TET
Acquisition of a parcel of land U EE— 123133 45.7 49,547 - 49,547 By the end of
December 2024
(Note)
F2024F128
(Hizt)
Construction of training fields 2R I5HI5H 12.3 13,333 - 13,333 By the end of
December 2024
(Note)
F2024F128
(Hizt)
Purchase of training vehicles EEilsmE 9.7 10,517 8,462 2,055 By the end of
December 2024
F2024F128
Recruitment and training costs ~ 1BEE K& 1404 9.6 10,408 6,459 3,949 By the end of
for 40 new driving instructors ~ FERAGENER December 2024
F2024F128
Repayment of bank loans EBRIRTER 12.7 13,769 13,769 = -
Working capital and general HEEE R K
corporate purposes NERE 10.0 10,844 10,844 = =
Total a5t 100.0 108,418 39,534 68,884

The Board does not anticipate any changes to the intended ZEEE&T8st: AN BREZFAIKEFR
use of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus. SRIEFRENRER AR T HIRE A&
o

‘P EEZERARA S
TEC=-FER
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Note:

To prepare for the increase in demand for driving courses, it is the Company’s
current intention to increase its training capacity by acquiring a parcel of land
and constructing training fields in accordance with the future plans and use of
proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus. The Company believes that the new
training fields will provide additional operational capacity which will allow Tong
Tai School to offer desirable and flexible training hours for its trainees and
attract new trainees in the future, which may strengthen the market position
of Tong Tai School in the driving training industry. However, as a result of
COVID-19 pandemic, there was insufficient commercial land supply during the
years 2020 to 2023 and the Company had been unable to identify a suitable
land parcel. The Company will continue to actively locate a suitable land parcel
and with recovery of the Chinese economy from COVID-19 pandemic, the
Company expects to identify and acquire the suitable land parcel by the end
of 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
For the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, reserves of approximately
RMB40,133,000 were available for distribution to our
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong'
Ms. Zhao Yuxia?

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong?®

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wah*

Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent®

Mr. Xu Jianpo®

U Mr. Qi Xiangzhong was appointed on 22 February 2017 and was
redesignated as an executive Director and was appointed as the
Chairman on 22 May 2017.

s Ms. Zhao Yuxia was appointed on 22 May 2017 and was redesignated
as an executive Director and was appointed as the chief executive
officer and the chief financial officer of the Group on 22 May 2017.

& Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong was appointed on 8 June 2018 and was
redesignated as a non-executive Director on 19 September 2019.

& Mr. Chan Siu Wah was appointed on 19 September 2019.

J Mr. Wan Sau Fai Vincent was appointed on 1 March 2023.

e Mr. Xu Jianpo was appointed on 20 April 2023.
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Articles 84(1) of the Articles of Association provides that
notwithstanding any other provisions in the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one- third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. Accordingly, Dr. Yeung Cheuk
Kwong and Mr. Chan Siu Wah shall retire from office by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves to
undergo re-election at the AGM. For the biographical details of
the Directors who will undergo re-election, please refer to the
section headed “Details of Directors Proposed for Re-election”
in Appendix Il to the AGM Circular.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, a letter of confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee considered and the Board took the
view that each and every independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

With effect from the Listing Date, service contracts were
entered into between the Company and each of the executive
Directors. Letters of appointment were also entered into
between the Company and each of the non-executive Director
and the independent non-executive Directors.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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For further details including, among other things, the principal
terms and the names of the Directors having material interest
in such service contracts and letters of appointment, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Service Contracts and
Letters of Appointment with Directors” under the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 28 to 29 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company existed or was entered into between
the Company and any person who is not a Director or not
engaged in the full-time employment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director and
the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2023 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE COMPANY AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (OR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES)

Furthermore, no contracts of significance between the
Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and a Controlling
Shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries), or contracts of
significance for the provision of services to the Company (or
any of its subsidiaries) by a Controlling Shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) were entered into as at 31 December 2023 or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which was recorded by the Company in its register
of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short position
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise should be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long position in Shares

Capacity/nature

Number of Shares

EFShE E?‘Tﬁ)&éﬁ"ﬂ&ﬁ S
18 BA A= 153 T 15 55 BY 2 P 33K

2023F12A31H  EFH AR TR
SITHABRA AR HEAAAERERE
(E&REBFRBERFRMEXVE) B
{9\*HE%HQT%&TE%EPEEE@%%%%&
HAG R GIE352F R EBERARE B
ﬁ\/\§$7§zﬁ+ﬁﬁ)\ﬁ$&s EZ/JL)E'
S DA a ’EJZﬁEWJF?F
AR & A A B KB A2 PR B R ’)%':QD
T

() RIZVEFE

Percentage of

Name of interest held/interested shareholding
FR¥E A

H B HEmME DR OEE FRRBa AL

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Interest in a controlled 206,400,000 51.6%
corporation (Note 1)

TARSEE RREGEBNE S 206,400,000 51.6%
(MFEE1)

Note: b 53

1. The Shares are registered in the name of Alpha Leap, the entire 1. E\Z BOTUAERZ2EER MA

issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong.
Accordingly, Mr. Qi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Alpha Leap for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation

Name of
associated

Capacity/nature

ERERTRARTOREEES -
ltlz P IR 5 A B RO X VER -
TRERGANERBAFEEHRN
HhYEA

(i) RAEEEZERGOTS

Percentage of
shareholding in

Number of the associated

Name of director corporation of interest share(s) held corporation

R EE BB
EENS B E B B/ mtE FRiFRHEE B
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 1 100%
TR L B EREAA
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) will have interests or short positions in Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who will be directly
or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the issued shares
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries:

() Long position in Shares

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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FERRMNIRID BRERERS S
B HE 2 R ik

FL2023F12H31H HEESFA > T4
AL CFEFHARATRSITHRAR) &
RERMSERRMERREESREE
1R BISEXVEE 552K 370 & Z R XA M 7
A B) e B 3T PR K BB E’J%“@Zm)ﬁ , WE
EREREAREREANTREAERLT
REABDAEEANBARRRRE L
RENEHENREAZEZETRMAEE
10%80 L LRI -

() BRIPEVFE

Number of

Capacity/nature Shares Percentage of

Name of interest held/interested shareholding
Frfs BN

wa, LB B/ HmtE i #E FREaL
Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 206,400,000 51.60%
E): ERERBA 206,400,000 51.60%
Ms. Gao Dongju (Note 1) Spouse interest 206,400,000 51.60%
BEFHELT (M) [ 206,400,000 51.60%
Cosmic Hero Beneficial owner 39,600,000 9.9%
1 ERERBA 39,600,000 9.9%
Mr. Ling Wai Leung (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 39,600,000 9.9%
ERRELE (HiE2) KR EGEE R 39,600,000 9.9%
Ms. Hui Ching Ping (Note 3) Spouse interest 39,600,000 9.9%
Lt (HEE3) FofB 39,600,000 9.9%
Great Sino Beneficial owner 42,000,000 10.50%
fRiE BmEEA 42,000,000 10.50%
Ample Star (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 10.50%
BE (524) KRG ZEN#R 42,000,000 10.50%
China Caston (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 10.50%
HEER (5E4) KR EGEE R 42,000,000 10.50%
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Notes:

T Ms. Gao Dongju is the spouse of Mr. Qi Xiangzhong. She is deemed to
be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Qi is interested in under Part XV
of the SFO.

2. The Shares are registered in the name of Cosmic Hero, the entire issued
share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai Leung. Accordingly, Mr.
Ling is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Cosmic Hero
for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Ms. Hui Ching Ping is the spouse of Mr. Ling Wai Leung. She is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Ling is interested in under
Part XV of the SFO.

4. The Shares are registered in the name of Greater Sino, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Ample Star, which is in turn
owned by China Caston. Accordingly, Ample Star and China Caston
are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Greater Sino is
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interest or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the
register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Neither the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their offices (provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of such Directors).

Directors and officers insurance are currently in force and
in place to protect the Directors and/or the directors of its
associated company against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Directors. Permitted
indemnity provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS
None of the Directors has any interests in any business which,

competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

INTEREST IN COMPETING

The Directors has confirmed that other than business of the
Group, none of the Directors holds any interest in business
which directly or indirectly competes or is likely to compete
with the business of the Group.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emolument packages of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board with
reference to the recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee, and having regard to, among other things, the
operating results of the Group, performance of individual
Directors and senior management and comparable market
statistics.

For further details in respect of the policy on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Policy on the Remuneration of Directors
and Senior Management” under the Corporate Governance
Report on page 40 of this annual report.

For further details on the emoluments of the Directors and
the five highest-paid individual of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023, please refer to Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other payments have been
made or are payable, during the year ended 31 December
2023, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

The Group participates in a state-managed defined
contribution retirement scheme organised by the relevant local
governmental authority in the PRC. The Group is required to
make monthly contributions to the retirement scheme for the
eligible employees at specified percentage of the payroll and
the local governmental authority is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees upon their retirement.

No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) were used to reduce the existing level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 to reduce future years’
contributions.
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For further details, please refer to Note 4(o) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The financial condition, results of operations, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Hereinbelow is a list of principal risks and
uncertainties identified by the Board with the understanding
that the list is by no means exhaustive or comprehensive,
and there might be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Company
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

1. Business risks: The revenue and profits of the Group
are greatly affected by the level of course enrollment and
the fees that the Group is able to charge. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was
under pressure to downward adjust the course fees for
our driving courses of both Large Vehicles and Small
Vehicles because of keen competition following the
continuing deterioration of the market conditions of
logistics industry as a result of the continuous US-China
trade tensions, putting further pressure on both Tong
Tai School and Shun Da School in adjusting course fees
to capture market shares and affected by the overall
decrease in the average course fee per hour of driving
courses for both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles and
the overall decrease in each of the number of trainees
who attended our driving courses and the actual number
of training hours for both Large Vehicles and Small
Vehicles provided by the Group. If the Group is unable
to adjust the level of course fees for driving courses and
increase the level of course enrollment and actual number
of training hours in the future, the gross profit margin
for driving training services business may continue to
decrease.
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Operation risks: Operating risks refer to the risks
resulting from inadequate internal processes and the
risks resulting from human errors in internal operations
or other reasons. In order to manage these risks, the
Company has established an internal control system
so as to minimise the adverse effects of such risks on
the Company. However, failure to maintain an adequate
internal control system may potentially lead to financial
loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

For further details in respect of the internal control and
risk management system of the Company, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control System” under the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 41 to 43 of this annual report.

Legal and regulatory risks: All of our operations are
conducted in the PRC and are governed by the PRC
laws, regulations and rules. The PRC legal system is a
civil law system based on written statutes, and prior court
decisions can only be cited as reference and have limited
precedential value. As many of these laws, regulations
and rules are relatively new, and the published court
decisions are scarce and of non-binding nature, the
interpretation and enforcement of the laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC may involve uncertainties and
may not be consistent or predicable as in other more
developed jurisdictions. Furthermore, since the Shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date,
more effort is incurred to comply with the applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not limited to
those relating to securities transaction, listing, disclosure
and corporate governance. Any litigation or regulatory
enforcement action in the PRC or Hong Kong could
result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and
management attention.

For further details in respect of the compliance with laws
and regulations and the corporate governance practices
of the Company, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Legal and Compliance” below on page 130 of this
annual report, and the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 24 to 48 of this annual report.
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4. Financial risks: The business and operation of the
Group are exposed to financial risks on foreign currency,
credit, liquidity and interest rate.

For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 7 to
23 of this annual report, and Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In response to the aforesaid potential risks and
uncertainties, the Board will continue to implement and
maintain internal control and strategies to adapt itself to
cope with such risks and changes. The Board will also
develop and review strategies, policies and guidelines
on risk control from time to time to enable the Group
to monitor closely and formulate business strategies to
respond to risk promptly and effectively.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, approximately
18.9% of the total purchase of the Group were attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group, and approximately 72.8% of
the total purchase of the Group were attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group.

Due to the nature of our business, there were no customers
accounted for more than 5% of the revenue of the Group and
the five largest customers of the Group did not account for
more than 30% of the revenue of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any of the Shareholders
holding more than 5% of the Shares have any interest in any of
the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE

Legal proceedings

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group was not engaged in any litigation, arbitration,
administrative proceedings or claim of material importance
pending or threatened by or against the Group, which could
have a material adverse effect on the financial position and
results of operations of the Group.

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group is not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the
principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as fundamental guidelines for the corporate governance
practices of the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

For further details of the corporate governance practice of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 24 to 48 of this annual report.

Compliance with the Model Code

For details of compliance with the Model Code, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Securities Transactions”
under the Corporate Governance Report on page 24 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Due to the nature of our business, our operational activities
do not directly generate industrial pollutants, and we did
not directly incur any cost of compliance with applicable
environmental protection rules and regulations.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group did not receive any complaints from any other
parties concerning any environmental protection issues, nor
did the Group experience any material environmental incidents
arising from its operations.

For the details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report from pages 49 to 101 of this annual
report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that a good relationship with its
employees, customers and business partners are keys to
achieve its long-term goals. The Group has been striving
to establish and maintain an effective communication
channel with its employees, providing quality services for
its customers, collaborating with business partners and
supporting the community.

For further details in respect of the relationships of the
Group with the stakeholders and how the Group has been
responding to stakeholders’ concerns, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns”
under the Environmental, Social and Governance Report from
pages 56 to 58 of this annual report.
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DATE OF THE AGM AND BOOK CLOSURE
PERIOD

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 27 June 2024. The notice
of the AGM, together with the AGM circular and the proxy
form will be published on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.china-oriented.com) and dispatched in due course in
the manner as required by the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws and regulations.

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 20 June 2024 to Thursday, 27 June 2024,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the AGM, during
which period no transfers of Shares will be registered. To be
eligible to attend the AGM, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 19 June 2024.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

Shareholders who are unsure about the taxation implications
of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the Shares, are suggested
to consult an expert.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2023 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 on 27 March 2024, being the date on which
the audited annual results of the Group were published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For further information in respect of, among other things,
the composition of and the work performed by the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Board
Committees — Audit Committee” under the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 33 to 35 of this annual report.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 have been audited by Moore CPA
Limited (formerly known as Moore Stephens CPA Limited).

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM for the
re-appointment of Moore CPA Limited as the independent
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

29 April 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BIZBENRE S

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Oriented International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 143 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2023

Moore CPA Limited g X
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, B E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong B B
Fo
T +8522375 3180 b=y
F +852 23753828 i
N =
www.moore.hk = =

Hm P EFIERERABRKRER
(RHRSESEMMILNERATF)

==
=

Rz (U TEBIESE)) EEHYE
RE143E 2228 MR EERIZERB R AT
(TERE) REWBAR IUTHBAS
TEEE)) NRaMBRE LGS/
B EBIEN2023F 12831 NGRS
B ERBEEZALEEENGSER
REMEAKRGR GoEREHRN
FEERERER UAGEEHFRERMN
HoBEEAGHHRENBE

BERA ZERFEAVFERRERBRES
A Ag (EEGENAE)) 84
NEBHHBRSER (EBMBREE
B) BEEAFHMIRM T BHHEER2023
F1I2B31HNGEMBRIZUAREEE
ZHIEFENGEVBERRENREGESERES
T2 wEBBREBABKABERT
G AHE o

ERNER
ESCREZBSSHAMAERMHNES
Bt 2R (BBEFHER) EITHESTo
EFEZFENTAENSEIEERRK
RN E 547 5 B IR T AR IERIE
F—HE—SEL - RESBEHMA
CNEX BB ETA (TR &
ERUN EEE UERITTREHN
HingRaE -EFHE EFMERH
Bt REERTERBEMSESHER
RMHERE-



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIAZAEHRSEE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTER AR ESTEIE

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional FRAEZEtFIEZRIEESAEE A
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the FRAHRAFELSRSHBZREINESRE
consolidated financial statements of the current year. This BN EIE ZEETESHITEEES
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the HMBEHREKEEERERERE - EELY
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming Fh&EBIREEBNER

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on this matter.

Recognition of revenue from driving training services
B BIE A AR S W A
Refer to Notes 4(k) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
55 2 Hk o I B # A M 5E4(Kk) K6
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R RS EENEHNMAHRAREFFTEETERE

We identified the recognition of revenue from Our procedures in relation to the recognition of
driving training services as a key audit matter due revenue from driving training services included:

to the significance of the amount of revenue to EENMBERRKBERBIRFTZHRANRERFE
the consolidated financial statements as a whole #& :

and the large number of customers as the Group

operates two driving schools in Zhumadian City, e Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
Henan Province, the People’s Republic of China. revenue recognition policy (including
HRY SEERPEAREMNBE A EAREEEML forfeiture, and refund) and key controls over
EMPMERERARZEAR > BEFEINRBE WAL revenue recognition;
REMBRREEMSBEAN RHILESHERE o T SEENRmSESEER (BFERNKR
FIARFS A HESS A RAR B St EIH o RIR) R b SR RO BRI SR IZ I 5

° Evaluating the accuracy of revenue

recognised based on the output method
by checking their computation on a sample

basis;
. BBHEREHAESR  SIEERBLE
SOHIUR A RO ZEREME
o Inspecting to customers’ files, on a

sample basis, checking the corresponding
supporting documents, including but not
limited to, customers’ identification card,
driving license, agreements with customers,
registration forms, attendance records and
payment receipts; and

. HETHRERER B EEEAREEIE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Recognition of revenue from driving training services

HE DR B A AR WA

RISt FH (1)

/%’efer to Notes 4(k) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements

58 2R G B R M a2 4(k) K6
Key audit matter

HEESEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFNEMAHARSE

SHERETRE

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises driving
training service income which is derived from
offering packaged driving courses for preparation
for driving tests to large number of customers and
during the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recognised approximately RMB39,884,000
of revenue from these driving training services. As
set out in Note 4(k) to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognition is based on
output method by measuring the training hours
provided to the customer relative to the total training
hours promised under the contract.

BEEENRG T EOEARETREFEREZEM
RUBHIFIEBZEREFME LR RIF RS K
AN U RE&E2023F12A31BILEFE > E5£EME
RZEEREFINRFBUA L AR EES39,884,0007T ©
Mix & M BIMRM T4 S > W s BN E N
BB ENEAGENREIINEAEERHTER
E’]iDDJHE%FﬁO
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Assessing the accuracy of the Group’s
record of training hours provided for
customers during the year by matching
them, on a sample basis, with driving
training records certified by the relevant
government body.

N EBEEEFTFARERRHEE
ik £ A5 FE] IS AT 1 48 58 58 B0 B8 B 1T
BRUCAD » AT SCER AV ZEME M o

3l Bf B9 52
all 52 %



KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Impairment assessment on non-financial assets

FEREERENG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIAZAEHRSEE (&)

RSt FH (8)

F?efer to Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

DR e RN 15K 16
Key audlt matter

BB R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEHNMAHRAREASTHEETRE

Refer to the significant accounting policies in note
4(d), critical judgements and key estimates in note 5,
and relevant disclosures in notes 15 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FR2RREMBRRMT4ANERG STER W&
5HY & B H1 i Ko BA 82 1 5T A Re MY 5 15 %2 16 RV AH R 12

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
RMB83,072,000, and RMB45,159,000 respectively.
1L2023F12831H E&EEDHEME -KEK
HREREAEEE ARTS3,072,000t K AR E
45,159,0007T °

The management of the Company had performed
an impairment review in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets in relation to these non-current
assets.
ERNEEEECRESEGTEAEICREERE
M FIFRBE EEITRERET -

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue from driving training services included:
EENBEERREEREBIRBZRANEFE
EEIN

° Understanding the key internal controls
and the procedures on preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts and by
assessing the future revenue and operating
results and by comparing with historical
performance and business development
plan;

. T 4R S AL IR 3R £ M 2 TR ORI AV B 8 9 &R 1
HIRERF FERThARRN G R EEE
MUkt E S R R =R E

° Obtaining and inspecting the valuation
results prepared by the management on
which the management’s assessments of
impairment of non-financial assets were
based;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIizAEMHk S E (&

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Impairment assessment on non-financial assets

FEREERE G

RISt FH (1)

Refer to Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements

DR G RN 15K 16
Key audit matter

HEESEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFNEANMAHAREAFTRETREE

We identified the impairment assessment of these
non-current assets as a key audit matter due to
the required exercise of significant judgements and
high level of estimation uncertainty by management
concerning the estimated future cash flows and
other key inputs on the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash generating units of the driving
training business (“the CGUs”) to which non-current
assets have been allocated.
EERNZEIFRBEENRET GRS —IBE
REFSSFSE AARTZEEEMGSRRETRE
FRIFREBEER DN BRI ERHEEEL BN
(MREAEAE ) PJWE £ 5t A H MBS R i
ABRE L B RHAVER % = K e R E 1 o

As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs were determined by management and
based on value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections.
1R2023F12A31H R ELEBANPW[EIEEETS
HEEERARERERAUEREBESELE
EO
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Evaluating the methodology used in the
calculations of the value in use of the CGUs,
challenging the key assumptions and critical
judgements made in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts prepared
by management by comparing key inputs
with historical performance, management’s
budgets and forecasts and other external
available information, and evaluating the
discount rate applied in the discounted
cash flow forecasts by assessing if the
parameters adopted in calculating the
discount rate was within the range of
relevant industry; and
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Evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in
respect of the impairment review in the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
Bz kS E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIizAEMHk S E (&

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine that matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit
matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin
Practising Certificate Number: PO5035

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSNE INCOME
m7r\ & 1& . E LI& '%E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE2023F12831HILEEE

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

iy 55 AREFT ARET T

Revenue 6 6 39,884 47,734
Cost of services rendered B AR A A& (31,324) (36,433)
Gross profit EH 8,560 11,301
Other income and losses, net HAW A KR E518 ($58) 8 1,430 1,602
Selling and marketing expenses HENEHAS (1,620) (3,431)
Administrative expenses THEHR (13,896) (15,130)
Finance costs MEER 9 (4,230) (4,588)
Loss before income tax PR SIRAIES1E 10 (9,756) (10,246)
Income tax credit Friginik e 11 1,313 1,579

Loss and total comprehensive  ZAAFEEABGEEESER
loss for the year attributable to 2 EEE4%E
the owners of the Company (8,443) (8,667)

Loss per share attributable to the ZAF#HE AELSRES
owners of the Company

— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —BEXKREE (ARESD) 14 (2.11) 2.17)

B P EEERBRA R 143
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMTEINR

At 31 December 2023 /220235 12H831H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

MY 55 AREFT ARETT

Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE 15 83,072 72,735
Right-of-use assets FEHRREEE 16 45,159 46,938
Intangible assets mEEE 17 - -
Deposits paid for construction in MERLIREZ MRS 18
progress - 1,739
Prepayment paid for property, ME - BEMRRBEZNN 18
plant and equipment A RIE 360 720
128,591 122,132
Current assets mEEE
Trade and other receivables, B REMEBRHRE - BTk 18
deposits and prepayments A RIE 7,402 770
Bank balances and cash RTEHKRIRE 19 152,359 182,326
159,761 183,096
Current liabilities nEaRE
Trade and other payables and BSREMENREBEBRESER 20
accruals 15,374 17,426
Contract liabilities EE=RE 20(b) 17,862 23,257
Tax liabilities nE&R 3,033 1,432
Lease liabilities HEaR 21 1,158 1,130
Borrowings EEN 22 45,230 55,230
82,657 98,475
Net current assets mEBEERE 77,104 84,621
Total assets less current liabilities 425 ZiF g & & 205,695 206,753
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
iR o MK TR (&)

At 31 December 2023 72202312831H

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

iy 55 AREFT ARET T

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Lease liabilities HESE 21 2,317 2,619

Borrowings R 22 9,000 =

Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 23 4,809 6,122
16,126 8,741

Net assets BEEE 189,569 198,012

EQUITY L

Equity attributable to owners of ZNAF#EE ARG

the Company

Share capital g A 24 3,608 3,608

Reserves B4 25 185,961 194,404

Total equity MR 189,569 198,012

The consolidated financial statements on pages 143 to 222 &N FE143E222B N S ERRLE
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of G R20245E3827 H H B 35 #E 1 4K
directors on 27 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: UTEEARBZETURIE .

Qi Xiangzhong Zhao Yuxia
57 1 TES)
Director Director
=4 EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEEDmEER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;ZE2023F12331HIEFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATER AEML
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
g2 R iEE BAEE EE A REERN et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETRT AR®BTR
(Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 25) (Note 25)
(Bg5E24) (HF5%25) (HF5E25) (H¥5E25)
At 1 January 2022 120221 B1H 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 64,435 206,679
Loss and total comprehensive EE B M2 E BB
loss for the year - - - - (8,667) (8,667)
At 31 December 2022 and ~ §220228128318 K
1 January 2023 2023F181H 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 55,768 198,012
Loss and total comprehensive & EE 18K 2 HEB42%E
loss for the year - = = = (8,443) (8,443)
At 31 December 2023 #2023F12H31H 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 47,325 189,569
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
TEIESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F12H31HIEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

iy 55 AREFT ARET T

Cash flows from operating REFHEENRERE
activities
Loss before income tax BRETISIRAIES 18 (9,756) (10,246)
Adjustments for: AR
Interest income FIRUWA 8 (425) (609)
Loss on disposal of property, HEVE -BERRERSIR 8
plant and equipment 206 177
Finance costs HEER 9 4,230 4,588
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1¥ R R ZEITE 10
and equipment 9,720 10,149
Depreciation of right-of-use FRHEEEZINE 10
assets 2,758 2,500

Operating cash flows before ZEZELEHFLCEHERE

movements in working
capital 6,733 6,559

(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 57 KkEMEREIE B E KM
other receivables, deposits and ~ TE{TFIE (1E0) /&L

prepayments (6,272) 2,587
Increase in trade and other B REMENRIERESER

payables and accruals 10 219 226
Decrease in contract liabilities anadERD (5,395) (7,208)

Cash (used in)/generated from &% (Frf) /Fii8IRE
operations (4,715) 2,166

Income tax refunded/(paid) BRE/ (BfY) FIEM 1,601 (2,330)

Net cash used in operating K& ZHFMAREFE
activities (3,114) (164)

B P EEERBRA R
B =FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

mERERER (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;£2023F12H31HLEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E ARET T ARET T
Cash flows from investing REZSREBRERE
activities
Construction cost paid and ENEERME KR
purchase of property, BEWME -BREKRRE
plant and equipment (21,495) (1,054)
Interest received BUWFH B 425 609
Proceeds from disposal of HEME BEKRKREMEFIE
property, plant and equipment 700 106
Net cash used in investing RETHFFAREEE
activities (20,370) (839)
Cash flows from financing REFHFFRRERE
activities
New borrowings raised MEEMEN 70,730 46,230
Repayment of borrowings BEER (71,730) (32,750)
Interest paid on borrowings BEAIERF B (4,095) (4,452)
Repayment of lease liabilites - {EEHE8E-4&%
principal (1,253) (1,309)
Repayment of lease liabilites - EBEHEE&E-F&
interest (135) (136)
Net cash (used in)/generated REEE) (FFA) FriSR& B4
from financing activities (6,483) 7,587
Net (decrease)/increase in RERFEEEY GAL) /HEm
cash and cash equivalents R (29,967) 7,084
Cash and cash equivalents at E#{REKRFEEZEY
the beginning of the year 182,326 175,242
Cash and cash equivalents at EXRBERFELZEY
the end of the year 152,359 182,326

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e TSR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & E2023F12H31HIEFE

GENERAL

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 February
2017 under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands.
The address of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company is set out in the
section headed “Corporate Information” of the annual
report issued by the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Alpha Leap Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is wholly-owned
by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (“Mr. Qi”), who is also an executive
director of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
29. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the currency of the
primary economic environment of all the group entities’
operations (the functional currency of group entities).

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs

(@) Application of amendments to HKFRSs

effective from 1 January 2023

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, which are relevant and
mandatorily effective for the period beginning on
1 January 2023 for the preparation of the Group’s

consolidated financial statement:
HKFRS 17 (including the

2022 Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12

Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting

HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Policies

Except for the below, the application of the above
new or amendments to HKFRSs has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and
position for the current and prior periods and/or the
disclosures set out in theses consolidated financial

statements.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Insurance Contracts and
October 2020 and February related amendments

Definition of Accounting

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single

International Tax Reform-
Pillar Two Model Rules
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. it AT R&EETEH

HKFRSs (continued)

BREER (&)

(a) Application of amendments to HKFRSs (a) FHAMN2023FE181HHABER

effective from 1 January 2023 (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments narrow
the scope of the recognition exemption of deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets in paragraphs
15 and 24 of HKAS 12 Income Taxes so that it
no longer applies to transactions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

()  the Group has applied the new accounting
policy retrospectively to leasing transactions
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022;

(i) the Group also, as at 1 January 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and
taxable temporary difference associated with
right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs (continued)

(@) Application of amendments to HKFRSs
effective from 1 January 2023 (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

(continued)

Prior to the amendments, the Group did not
apply the initial recognition exemption to lease
transactions and had recognised the related
deferred tax, except that the Group previously
determined the temporary difference arising from a
right-of-use asset and the related lease liability on
a net basis on the basis they arise from a single
transaction. Following the amendments, the Group
has determined the temporary differences in relation
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
The change primarily impacts disclosures of
components of deferred tax assets and liabilities, but
does not impact the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances qualify

for offsetting under HKAS 12.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for

the first time in the current year.

Presentation of Financial Statements is amended
to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting
policy information”. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of

those financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. it AT R&EETEH
HKFRSs (continued) R EED (8)
(a) Application of amendments to HKFRSs (@) HAR2023F1B1HRABEMR

effective from 1 January 2023 (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (continued)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself
material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information
must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the
“four-step materiality process” to accounting policy
disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are added to
the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance but has affected the disclosure
of the Group’s accounting policies set out in this
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
In accordance with the guidance set out in the
amendments, accounting policy information that is
standardised information, or information that only
duplicates or summarises the requirements of the
HKFRSs, is considered immaterial accounting policy
information and is no longer disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements so as not to
obscure the material accounting policy information
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

RAMI RAEIETEEY

HwSER (R)

(b) AR R 4 RO 5T R AT
ERTE BB RE LR
7 5 [ 11 45 32 2 8 A LU T BB
A58 10 S AE 3 B0 R8T R A1 3T
EEMBREEN

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
AT HEAER
Z BB
FERSHRER
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
BAEMBREZEL KREEHHBEABHNEE LB ZHEN R
B0 REBEET BEHESNRA
2ERIZE285% (IBET 4)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024
Non-current
BEBGFEAUEIR (BT BRI ERREIIERD 202451818
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with covenants 1 January 2024
BAEGSEAEIR (B5]Th) WHERZHBZIFREBER 2024F181H
Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BARBIREGER] ERELZHEHEAE 2024F1HA1H
1658 (BT A)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier finance arrangements 1 January 2024
BAEGSERETR (B5TE) HEMMEZH 20241818
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability 1 January 2025
Bl FR & 5t 2R 52158 RZ A it 20251 81H
(CHEN),
Hong Kong Interpretation 5  Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2024
(Revised) Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
BAREHST MEBRRNET - ERAHBSIBEE 2024%F1H1H

(K& 1E5T) KREZFRRBERER DL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (continued)

The directors of the Company are in the progress of
assessing the impact to the Group’s consolidated
financial performance and position when it adopts
these new and amendments to HKFRSs.

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

(a)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) are stated at cost, less
provisions for depreciation and impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Over the shorter of lease term
or 5% per annum

Over the shorter of lease term
or 5% to 20% per annum

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

20% per annum

20% per annum

20% to 33.33% per annum
12.5% per annum

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

Software acquired separately and with finite
useful live are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

The Group’s intangible assets have finite useful lives.
All intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;E£2023F12H31HIEFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets), the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the value in use of the asset
or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the consolidated profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

4. EXEBREHN (B)

(d)

FERMBEERE
HWEPRBRFERE WA
MEE (EMEERIN ETE
EREANS AEGEEEN
IO 2E - EEM AR [E %
BREENZEEMBRTE
FEUNERBERATER
HEMRE (RS ESE) 5
BowriEREEMEE &
FERMEETAELEERKE
EEBUNEMEENEEM
ARIRERA > ELRBERT
llgnzBEEMBRTEEER
L& E PTHR [B] = 28 o

HEBEERNEERBERB
8 H 0] Y [0 5 BB B T LURE SR ©
RREHh A BER » G5 ARK
REMERARRITEHIZEH
ERFHENTEREESTE
BB B AR B AL BT R AR IR = H IR
B REBENEEENBN
mEBRmANTEEMEEEIRE
— RIS EER PR

REREHR EFEEEE
RIS B S B FE B R AL B
BRAEFNBFEHAEEL
W HEAEZTR Al &G
stATUR B 2R - JCRI L B E R
SBHHERBE ERAREE
ZEENA W EEBNEEE
bediSts GV JEIRRISE:HEI - ER
TERRREETFEILELZ
EERDBEBEMEEEN
AREE GOFRERITE) ° ZR
BEEENEL N HEERE

N TR

MR ERZERARAR
B =FFR

157



158

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include trade and other
receivables, deposit, bank balances and cash, all
of which are classified and accounted for as debt
instruments. Financial assets are recognised on the
trade date.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS15.

All recognised financial assets of the Group are
measured at amortised cost on the basis of the
Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets.

Financial assets that meet the following condition
are subsequently measured at amortised cost: -
the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cashflows.

Derecogntion of financial assets occurs when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets expire or are transferred and substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred or in which the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables and other receivables, deposits,
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

For trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, and
contract assets, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECL. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The
Group has applied loss rates which are reference
to the default rates from international crediting
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

When estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls which is the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive.

The Group considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on
a forward looking basis whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event; and

(c) it is becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(e)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables. Financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assets is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to write off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EXE:HHEER (8)
INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Leases

(9) THE

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

HEHE
HENRRERAEMMETE—
BB B o 2 ) m] 58t Bl B EE 2 R
RN AIZEGNEEEE
A

The Group as lessee KEEELHAAN
Lease liabilities HESE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (continued)
(g) Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

° the exercise price of purchase options, if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the

options; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising

an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;
° any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date, less any lease

incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(g) Leases (continued)

(h)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Leasehold lands
Leased premise
Motor vehicles

2.50% to 20% per annum
17.91% per annum
12.50% per annum

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances
and cash and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(i)

1)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
Provision of driving training service

Revenue from providing driving training services
is recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised
progressively over time using the output method,
i.e. based on the direct measurement of training
hours provided by the Group to the customers
relative to the total training hours promised under
the contracts because the Group has the right to
be paid for work done to date if the customer were
to cancel the service agreement before the driving
training services was fully completed. As a practical
expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration
in an amount that corresponds directly with the
value of the Group’s performance completed to
date, driving training service contracts in which the
Group bills a fixed amount of service provided, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount to which
the Group has the right to invoice.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion are revised if circumstances
change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit
or loss in the period in which the circumstances
that give rise to the revision become known by
management. the customer pays the fixed amount
based on a payment schedule. If the services
rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a
contract asset is recognised. If the payments
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Provision of driving training service (continued)

Payments are typically received from customers
in advance of revenue recognition and they are
presented as contract liabilities under current
liabilities. Customers may not exercise all the
contractual rights of the prepaid driving course upon
expiry of the service period, and such unutilised
portion are referred to as breakage. If an entity
expects to be entitled to the breakage amount in
a contract liability, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue in proportion
to the pattern of rights exercised by the customer.
If an entity does not expect to be entitled to a
breakage amount, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its remaining
rights becomes remote. The Group considered the
breakage arising from the prepaid driving course
is insignificant, and the unutilised portion of the
prepaid driving course is recognised in the profit or
loss upon expiry of the service period.

A refund liability is recognised if the entity expects
to refund some or all of that consideration to the
customers, which is measured at the amount of
consideration received for which the entity does not
expect to be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

U]

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except.—

()  when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

(i) in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

(i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss and at the time of the transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

(i) in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2023

4. EX

U]

BEERER (8)

FRiSIR (@)

IEIEMIRE E TH i A R
BREE AR EARB AR
TR % R AR {7 i AR B AR B9 A 1
BIETUESE - EA®RA R
HIRE R @A > B A LUK
Bl PR B E B 2 R W AS
REBRIBR MRS HERIEA
8 BIESEMIBE ETH T XU

58 WENAERERSD

() WEBR FNRER
MEENREEREBEESE
R LT REIBLIEEH S
HHUXSNEER AR
MES AR ZRHE
SHEA N EERE R
BMEEBRERRZEILE
EEAERERR LA
RERELE ; &

(i) SARRKB ARG BE
NEWREN O F IR
ERUEEEMS RAE
TREEERYERET
E%Xﬁ@ mEH®BAE

FEHIRFERRIER] 7]
%uﬁﬁ&#%ﬁ&%
BE > hERBEILERIE
BEo

FIEMEEENEEETSE
AR T UEBR -EFBEAAE
ERHERR N BUEINZ
EBEREB D AR IRIE R IEE -
B RIE IR IE B AR E B ©
M BERE B AR G R A U
0 2 BB 3 E6 o0 5 WK [B] B9 3R ST
RMEBEEE IESERBERSE
T e R R AR TR
MIBEEE ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the lease liabilities,
and the related assets separately. The Group
recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred
tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (continued)

(m) Borrowing costs

(n)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable. Such grants are presented
under other income and losses, net.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4. EXE:HEZE (B)

INFORMATION (continued)

(0) Other employee benefits (o) HitEEwEH
Defined contribution plans FRE B EHE

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are required to participate in the central
defined contribution pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme
as specified by the local municipal government.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee long service payment

The provision for long service payment is provided
based on the employees’ basic salaries and their
respective length of service in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations in their respective
countries of employment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. TEEHMEE%E’\JIE;E

UNCERTAINTY el

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, RERAAREBRNGSTEER (R4
which are described in Note 4, the directors of FHEA) B RAREEBHKESEE
the Company are required to make estimates and HtREEENEEREBNIRE
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets EFEHM T RBRER - ZE s & E
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other FRZRILENRBEREREMES
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are MENRR BRERIEEZE
based on historical experience and other factors that are HstBE-

considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed KREBERFEWTZE Gt REER
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates HoMB G EtNBIIEREE
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised TEEINEE AIRNZFEERST
if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of MBI EBR AKREKEE ]
the revision and future years if the revision affects both AT R R AR EFEFEFERR ©

current and future years.

The following is the key assumption concerning the UTABERREKNFERS > KX
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty RERBERGSAEEREZNEM
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a FTEREFE BAEHKREKTZER
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the NEEKREBENREELERERR
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next o

twelve months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Estimated useful lives

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, generally from 3 to 20 years or over the shorter of
the lease terms (2022: 3 to 20 years or over the shorter
of the lease terms).

The leasehold lands and building recognised as right-of-
use assets are depreciated on straight-line basis over the
lease terms (2022: over the lease terms), whereas the
motor vehicles recognised as right-of-use assets that the
Group expects to exercise purchase options with minimal
exercise price and the related assets are depreciated over
their useful lives (i.e. 8 years (2022: 8 years)).

The estimated useful lives that the Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the assets. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in useful lives and therefore depreciation and
impairment losses in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. (st FHEETEAZMNETER

UNCERTAINTY (continued) iR (48)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property, ME -BERREURGEHEEE
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets Bt ol E B A B R B (48)
(continued)

Impairment T1E

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets ME-BERZBREBEEER
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and AR RETITERRE (NAE) 7
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is R-NPNETCEERGRER &&E
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make BBITHEHENRELMGE 52
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event FEUTEER ()WEEEEEH
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset NEEMNHRMAETEEER
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be E;QBEENKRAERSRETIK
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of Cl£%E GIERABEMS 1EENE
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows ENFEFCRAMMENERREESR
which are estimated based upon the continued use of SNIREFER) 257 RO
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be WEl%E (BEREREEN&KE
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including EMMIRE) FEANBEEFEZR
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate. HoBMAMGFEBEEE (BEFER
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable BEE) W KEISHER  AEES
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use B EEMBREEEBUNAIK
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount [El&%E - ARABRRGETHEE (8
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong. EREREWATNBRYGIE R
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including R) IERFERERAZEPTANF
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow IRE-

projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax st EVEA IR IE R R IEFR IE
Significant judgement and estimates is required in ErEMEEERZNMEBEAREZ
determining the amount of the provision for taxation and BF 5] 5 B2 F 1 B8 K 8 B A 51 o i
the timing of payment of the related taxation. Where the RERMBERBINNRPBIERNE
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were BORSERERREMFLERER
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income Z AR Z PRSI0 B 46 S iR S 7R TE 8
tax provisions and deferred tax provisions in the periods o

in which such determination are made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the income from provision of driving training services and
is recognised on an over time basis. Revenue recognised
during the year are as follows:

Analysed by types of courses:

6. Yz
U3 (TR E RS 25 SRk
| AR TSRS UR A » 3 BB B R 3 78
FEED o FALE PORESRAI IS N T

R S
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Driving training service income B EPIE I ARFS A
Standard courses RERE
Premium courses SE &
Additional training fees BBIMEINE

Analysed by types of vehicles:

2,824 2,006
36,659 45,085
401 643
39,884 47,734
IRE LB DT -
2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ABRTRT  ARETRT

Driving training service income B BPIE I ARFS U A
Large vehicles RE B
Small vehicles INBLES R

29,588 37,914
10,296 9,820
39,884 47,734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in provision of driving
training services. For the purposes of assessing
performance and allocating resources, the Group’s
operation is regarded as one reportable and operating
segment which is provision of driving training services.
The executive directors of the Company review the profit
or loss for the year of the Group as a whole. Accordingly,

no segmental analysis is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the
Group’s revenue is all derived from the PRC based on the
location of services provided and all of the Group’s non-
current assets are located in the PRC by physical location

of assets.

Information about major customers

The Group offers packaged driving courses for
preparation for driving tests to large number of individual
customers. No individual customer accounted for over

10% of the Group’s total revenue during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 8. Hhg AR > /28
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARET T
Income from issuance of certificate of BEBRDHEHBZFREUHA
qualification validation 392 546
Interest income FEWA 425 609
Value-added tax refund IZERER 84 122
Income on expiry of driving courses B &R B R22IH
withdrawn by trainees PRGWA 450 229
Government subsidies (Note) BT G (95 39 140
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEY% = k& EHEE
equipment (206) (177)
Exchange loss, net EREE FHE (5) (82)
Others Hith 251 215
1,430 1,602

Note: Government subsidies were received from several local
government authorities for skills training and the Group’s
contribution to local economies, of which the entitlement was
unconditional and under the discretion of the relevant authorities.

MEE . BN REREIREERS
WG EENTRBEE TS ERFE
FIUTER » H #7123 28 {5 4 3t 3 48 A
EBPIBYBIR L o

FINANCE COSTS 9. HBEH
2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Interest on bank borrowings RITERNF]E 4,095 4,452
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16)  HESEMAE (H5E16) 135 136
4,230 4,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax has been arrived at after

10. FREF1S IR AT RS 18

FRPRIS MBI BB S HIBR LT & 18

charging: BEN
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR ARETT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) BEHM FsE12) (HEEa))
(Note (a)) 1,357 1,515
Other staff costs (Note () HMETAAE (fisk@)
~ Salaries and other allowances —Fr & R H AR 13,290 16,443
- Retirement benefit scheme —RIAREA B (FEE(C)
contributions (Note (c)) 1,637 1,806
16,184 19,764
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BB 1,136 972
Depreciation of: (Note (b)) e - (Ekb))
— Property, plant and equipment —E BB KRR E (f5E15)
(Note 15) 9,720 10,149
— Right-of-use assets (Note 16) —EAREE (ffs16) 2,758 2,500
Donations 5 HL 40 26
Gasoline expenses HEX 7,431 9,040

Notes:

(@)  Total directors’ remuneration and other staff costs of

approximately RMB10,529,000 (2022: RMB12,804,000),
RMB1,287,000 (2022: RMB1,680,000) and RMB4,368,000
(2022: RMB5,280,000) have been charged to cost of services
rendered, selling and marketing expenses and administrative
expenses, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Total depreciation of approximately RMB10,933,000 (2022:
RMB10,787,000), RMB41,000 (2022: RMB32,000) and
RMB1,504,000 (2022: RMB1,830,000) have been charged to
cost of services rendered, selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses, respectively for the year ended 31
December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FiiSiRik %R

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT") HE{XFREHR (TEERERI)
— Current year —REE - -
— Under provision in prior years - BEFEREIRE - 689
- 689
Deferred tax (Note 23) EERIE (95E23) (1,313) (2,268)
(1,313) (1,579)

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdiction in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax under these jurisdictions during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
during the year ended 31 December 2023 as the Group
does not have income which arises in, or derived from,
Hong Kong (2022: Nil).

No provision PRC EIT has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements during the year ended
31 December 2023 as the Group did not have any
assessable profits for the year(2022: nil).

FEBRRBREENELEBNR
BEREBEREARFZMKREERE
BLE & B E M BT ISR o

B E2023F 128318 L FE > R
HEFERABE LSRR
R FEBBREZSFALEERE
BAERIPIIS (20224 | ) ©

HE2023F12831HLEEFEE > AR
rEBVTEEEEIREEBMNK
AN BEEHERRILBEESDEES S
FBI B (20224 @ ) o

HE2023F12831HLEEFEE > AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before income tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

11.

FRSBER (&)
RIS RG S RE R M
2 E RIS RIS IR R
m

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETTT

Loss before income tax PRPTIE MBI ES 18 (9,756) (10,246)
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 25% BRI E25% (20225 : 25%)

(2022: 25%) STERNRIE (2,439) (2,563)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible R 3073 F % UFR 75 52 28

for tax purpose 1,126 295

Under-provision in prior years BEFERERIE - 689

(1,313) (1,579)

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained earnings
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB102,647,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB106,607,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERESTTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST EFAizEaMMEES
PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EFERESITHRASME
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the FRENIENETERAT
individuals as the directors and the chief executive of BEXREETERAENER A
the Company during the year are as follows: THIMEEBUWT ¢

2023 2022
2023% 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AREBTT

Directors’ fee EEYOES 882 960
Salaries and other allowances e R E A RES 445 523

Retirement benefit scheme BIREH 5T EIHER
contributions 30 32
1,357 1,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ir o B R AE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERES1THRAEM S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST RAisEaMEEE (&)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEREBEITHAEME (B)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12B1BLLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances contributions Total
HEk RAEH
ik Hith28s AR Mt

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR

Executive directors 0HE=x
Mr. Qi (Note (i) TRE () 240 318 30 588
Ms. Zhao Yuxia BEELL 240 127 - 367
Non-executive director FHNTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong mEAREL 120 - - 120
600 445 30 1,075
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BNELE 120 - - 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (Note (i) BSR4 () 20 - - 20
Mr. Xu Jianpo (Note (i) RERLE (ki) 42 - - 42
Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent (Note () BEHES4E (M) 100 - - 100
282 - - 282
Total st 882 445 30 1,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERESTTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

kizmEaMEEE (&)

() EFRRSTHRAEME (&)

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE02E12A31HLLEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances  contributions Total
ek RINEF
e Htn2 8 At st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT ARETR ARETn ARETx
Executive directors WHEZR
Mr. Qi (Note (i) TRE () 240 330 31 601
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HMEBELT 240 193 1 434
Non-executive director FHNTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong mEART 120 - - 120
600 523 32 1,155
Independent non-executive directors B FH{TEE
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BNELE 120 = = 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing (Note (i) BSR4 () 120 - - 120
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee (Note (v)) SERLE (v) 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
Total et 960 523 32 1,515

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group while the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company.

EXFTBRITESEMED A
REEEBEARBREERER
E BB BRFS B & > M £ PR
WIERITEFRBIUIFAITE
SHMTA A REREIERAT
ESHRFEME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. €% K

SITBHASME

—_—
=

s
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST EFAisEaMEEE (18)

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)
(continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Qi is the chief executive of the Group. The emoluments
shown above are also for his service as chief executive of
the Group.

(i) Mr. Cheng Chun Shing resigned as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 1 March 2023.

(if) Mr. Xu Jianpo was appointed as an independent non-
executive director with effect from 20 April 2023.

(iv)  Mr. Wan San Fai Vincent was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from 1 March 2023.

(v) Mr. Goh Teng Hwee passed away on 11 January 2023.

(b) Five highest paid employees (b)
The five highest paid individuals included two (2022:
two) directors of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure in (a) above. The
remuneration of the remaining three (2022: three)
individuals was as follows:

EEREETHRAEME (B
MI5E

() TREDAERNITHMAE-
£ XPR R BYEBN £ 7F R R AE A
EMITEAEHAREME -

(i) EPEFFLEBE2023FE381HEE
HAEBIIIENITES-

(i) BEHLEBE2023F48200
EEZTABIUIFNITES-

(v)  CREMTIESSE H2023F381HiE
ELERBIUIFENTES-

(v) SREMAENR2023F1811H
Eio

IaREMEREE
ARBNAELEESMEALTE
EMG (20224 - W) &5
HMES BN EX@IEE 8T
=4 (2022FF 1 =) A +W9E
Ean R

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT  ARETRT

Salaries and other allowances M HEAMERL
Retirement benefit scheme BRER GBI =R
contributions

The number of individuals whose remuneration was
within the following band:

1,011 1,085
26 11
1,037 1,096

BN FUUT SEERER AL
HEWT

2023 2022
20234 20224

Nil to Hong Kong Dollar £ %1,000,000% 7T (M 7T))
(“HK$”)1,000,000 3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERESTHAEMS
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST RismaMEREE (B)
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(b) Five highest paid employees (continued) (b) ELEEMEES (@)
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the B E A > R EE B
Group to any of the directors of the Company or the HERAEAATEEN AL ES
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to AT EEME 7EA
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation MAREBEGMARERED
for loss of office. None of the directors or the five HENSEABER A E o IS M1E
highest paid individuals of the Group has waived any FEHE ENEBRESED
emoluments during both years. h i E R A T IREE A
BiM o
DIVIDENDS 13. IR 2
No dividend was paid/declared or proposed for ordinary REE2023F12HB31HIEFEEW
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 IR/ BRI BEZIRNT B
December 2023, nor has any dividend been proposed FARANTIZERKEZRE B
since the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil). EHR R M RN E FH IR E AR E
(20224F : %)
LOSS PER SHARE 14. SR E1E
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable KABIEBE ANELSIREREIETY
to the owners of the Company is based on the following RETYEHESTE .
data:
2023 2022
2023% 20224
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable to the ~ AR HEERERBENA AT
owners of the Company for the BEEAELFESRE ARBETT)
purpose of basic loss per share
(in RMB’000) (8,443) (8,667)
Number of shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary R EEREAREBIBNMETH
shares for the purpose of basic loss  Z@EREE
per share 400,000,000 400,000,000

There were no potential ordinary shares in issue for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

HE2023F12831HLEFEE Wi
ERIBE BT EBIEZSER (20225 :

") o

BRI AR AT
BT FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % -BEKRRHE

Leasehold Furniture Office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements Equipment  and fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
fFER
¥ BEEE Bl BE%E HARE e HRIR A

RMB'000 RNIB'000 RMB'000 RMIB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RNIB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn

(Note a) (Note b)
(Ki3ka) GED)

COsT HE

At 1 January 2022 1R2022%1818 32,787 49,558 11,482 1,161 1,881 26,969 - 123,838

Additions RE 56 37 340 16 360 245 - 1,054

Disposals tE S S - - - (2,883 - (2,883)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 14202212831 R K023 15 18 32,843 49,5% 11822 11477 2,01 24,331 e 122,009

Additions AE 757 - - 53 621 216 19,316 20,963

Disposals HeE - - - - - (3.391) - (3,391)

Transfer B 8,076 10,340 - - 5 = (19,316) 5

At 31 December 2023 12023%128310 42,576 59,935 11,822 1,230 2,862 21,156 - 139,581

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION FitE

At 1 January 2022 20251818 6,845 12,878 5,752 656 1,166 14,433 - 4,725

Provided for the year (Note 10) EERA (WH0) 1563 4,187 1460 109 380 2500 5 10,149

Disposals HeE - - - - - 2,600 - 2,600

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 12022E128318 k2023E181A 8,408 17,010 7212 765 1,546 14,333 - 49,274

Provided for the year (Note 10) EREs (i20) 1,798 4315 1,369 17 452 1,669 - 9,720

Disposals tE S S - - - (2,485) - (2,485

At 31 December 2023 *2023E12R310 10,206 21,325 8,581 882 1,998 18,517 - 56,509

CARRYING VALUES KEE

At 31 December 2023 *2023%128310 32,370 38,610 3,241 348 864 7,639 - 83,072

At 31 December 2022 120225128310 24,435 32,585 4610 412 695 9,998 - 72,735

Notes: M 5E -

(a) As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged certain (a) F2023F12B31H  AEEEMH
buildings with carrying amount of approximately RMB22,587,000 —XBTEREDEOARE
(2022: RMB24,123,000) to a bank to secured certain borrowings 22,587,000t (20224 : AR
(Note 22(a)(ii) and 22(a)(iii)). 24,123,0007t) & F1EF » UES

BT ER (MFsE22(a) () K22(a)(i)) °

(b)  The leasehold improvements related to costs of construction of b) HEEXREHEBESUNEELHM LN

the driving training venue which is situated on leasehold lands. EEEIIS A AL A B R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
were allocated to the driving training business’s cash-
generating units (the “CGUs"). The recoverable amounts
of the respective CGUs have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations which use cashflow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors
of the Company, covering a five-year period and pre-tax
discount rate.

When arriving at the key assumptions used in the
value-in-use calculations, management determined the
earning before income tax, finance cost, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA margin”) based on past
performance and its expectations regarding market
development. The terminal growth rate used does
not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
industry. The discount rate is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the CGU.

Based on the assessment, the management of the Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of the CGUs were
higher (2022: higher) than their carrying values as at 31
March 2023, hence no impairment loss was provided as
at 31 December 2023(2022: Nil).

15. Y15 ~ R BB Be sk s (48)

ETRER S ﬁ%l%%%
BERREREBEEEDEKRER
H%%i?%ﬁ%?i%ﬁUﬁ%
EEEMU) - BREEEBUNA
WElEEHEREREESEL X
BE HERAERBEEAATDESEF
HERELFHRBZMBRERR
A AEIRRIRE RETRA

N ERNFEREBAESTE L ATARE
REXFN EEEREBRFREANR
Eﬁ%ﬁ%%F%%%#ﬁﬁ%
BRAIRA MEER ITE KRS
(FEBWDAﬂ/HZﬂ) FIT {88 BB BY 7K
AEXRTEBHITENRATY
BEX BIBEARRMRA > KA
REeEFEUBERNSERR-

BEFE AEBEEETER
2023F3B31HREELEMNNA
WELBEER (20224 : 5 &£
BREE > FILH2023F 128318
EILRBEEIEFTIREE (20224 :

") o

B P EEERBRA R
B =FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. EFREEE
Leasehold Leased Motor
lands premise vehicles Toﬁal
HELTH AEYE "E a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFR ARETR®
(Note)
(Ff51)
CoSsT B4
At 1 January 2022 20221818 45,500 126 7,459 53,085
Additions HE - - 2,794 2,794
At 31 December 2022 and 12022128318 &

1 January 2023 2023F181H 45,500 126 10,253 55,879
Additions HE 836 = 143 979
At 31 December 2023 1#2023%12831H 46,336 126 10,396 56,858
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION E:irE
At 1 January 2022 12022F1818 3,980 68 2,393 6,441
Charges for the year (Note 10) FERY (H:10) 1,354 22 1,124 2,500
At 31 December 2022 and 12022128318 &

1 January 2023 2023F181H 5,334 90 3,517 8,941
Charges for the year (Note 10) FEMY (ME10) 1,466 22 1,270 2,758
At 31 December 2023 #2023F12831H 6,800 112 4,787 11,699
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2023 1#2023%128318 39,536 14 5,609 45,159
At 31 December 2022 12022F12831H 40,166 36 6,736 46,938

Note: As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all motor vehicles in right-of-
use assets are under hire-purchase arrangement with purchase
options. The Group is reasonably certain to exercise the purchase
options and the exercise prices of purchase options, if any, were
included in lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has pledged a
leasehold land with carrying amount of approximately
RMB37,955,000 (2022: RMB39,145,000) to a bank to
secure certain borrowings (Note 22(a)(ii) and 22(a)(iii)).
The leasehold improvements on the leasehold land is
approximately RMB38,610,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB32,585,000).

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

16. EAEEE (@)

R2023FE 128310 ZEBERKRE
B4 A R %37,955,0007T (20224 :
AR #839,145,0007T) FIFH & + i
ERFIRITURESE FTER (MF
22(a)(ii)5z22(a)(iii)) °F22023FE12H
TR EETHMNEEREENA A
FE #£38,610,0007T (20224 : AR #&
32,585,0007T) °

HERGEEaERNEERRENE
AEESHNT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBFT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEAREEZINE (RLEX
(as above) (Note 10) (KzE10) 2,758 2,500
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) HEaENFE (i) 135 136
Total amount recognised in RAR BB MR 4R R
consolidated profit or loss 2,893 2,636
Properties and assets leased for own use HEMFERNMEREE

The Group leases a number of land parcels and motor
vehicles to operate its driving school. The leases of land
parcels are made for fixed periods of five to thirteen
years(2022: five to thirteen years), the leases of motor
vehicles are made for fixed periods of eight years (2022:
eight years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain various different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.

AEEHEETHRAESRBEURKLE
HER MIBHENASEI3ENETE
HARS (20224 : 5FE134) » R&EH
WA NENEBEEAB (20224 )\
F) MHEKRFUBEABERERS
BEERBARNGRANEE -AE
5% AU I 2255 o

B P EEERBRA R
BT FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

16.

17.

China

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own
use

In addition, the Group owns several buildings and is the
registered owner of these property interests, including
the underlying leasehold lands. Upfront payments were
made to acquire these property interests, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the
land lease. The leasehold lands were leased for 40 years
for commercial use. The leasehold land components
of these owned properties are presented separately
because the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The lease liabilities of the Group are arising from the right-
of-use assets, except for the leasehold lands in the PRC
with carrying amount of approximately RMB37,955,000
as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB39,145,000) which
the lease payments had been fully prepaid upfront and
have no corresponding lease liabilities.

16. (EAEEE (18)

REEEREE L MPNFRAER
i

HESh > AEE R IR T I A%
Y EHT (BEEREELIH) /Y
BB A EXIRMRIRIEE
ZEMERD BEARE LM
BEMFRRIFRFEN R HE M
ERBAOEFEERE -BAREN
RIASERI EM DB MZFBEEY
ENHEETMBOREBZY]

AEENHEGBHELRFEHE
EEHER2023F12831HREE
#95 N R %637,955,0007T (20224 :
AR #39,145,00070) W EMEE -
RSN HM BN BB THIE
HETEAEEAES R

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. BB E
System
software
BTG
RMB’000
ARMETFTT
COST B
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 220221 B1H ~2022F12831H
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 2023%F181H &2023%F12831H 540
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Rty
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 202281818 ~ 202241283185 ~
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 2023%F1H1H &2023F12831H 540
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 December 2022 and 2023 20224 2023512831 H -

The above intangible assets have finite useful life. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of five years.

Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 18. B R HMthEURRIE « i%

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS ERFAHIE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

s AR® T AREBTT

Trade receivables B EWEIE (@) 39 60
Other receivables H & W =R I8 1,471 1,500
Less: allowance for expected B TR EEEREEE

credit loss (1,428) (1,428)

Other receivables, net of expected Hi s

credit loss MR BEREEEE 43 72
Prepayments BAMIE (b) 7,680 1,358
Deposits & - 1,739

7,762 3,229

Less: Prepaid service fee in respect of & : DIEAIEREE EMN

property, plant and ME~BRER

equipment classified as REBNENRBTE

non-current assets (360) (720)

Deposits paid in respect of NEAFRBEENY

property, plant and E - BERRBEN

equipment classified as &

non-current assets - (1,739)
Current portion BNEAEE 7,402 770

‘P EEZERARA S 193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

Notes:

(@) The Group’s payment methods with its customers for provision
of driving training services are mainly on cash and through online
payment platforms. Generally, the course emolument fees are
billed in advance with no credit period granted to customers.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice dates:

1. ES RREMBEYIIE %
ERFEAHRIE ()

PEE

@ FEEREHEREREIRBTEER
ARG ETERRERBBEG LM
MEFEe—MRMS RIERBETFRL
B UTERFTEREER -AER
EREFTHHREERUGRIEN R
ERINEERBEERR SHMER
BERBRBAER ~EE L EM
HE S RURIAG SR A EIRR R

REMEBEERF-
BEZHHRZMNE S ERRIERE
DUWT
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFx AREF T

0-30 days 0FE30Xk

The trade and other receivables and deposits are all denominated
in the functional currency of the respective entities in the Group.

(b) Prepayments mainly represent advanced payments to suppliers
of RMB6,900,000 (2022: Nil) for purchasing equipment. Related
contracts were cancelled at the end of 31 December 2023 and
the prepayments had been refunded to the Group on 18 March
2023, 19 March 2023 and 22 March 2023.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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P B 5 e B A WS IE Fe 4% < DA A
EEEREERNEE K E.

(b) FBEENFBEBZEIEECHERBRREE
52 5 B9 7B A R 16,900,0007T (2022
£ ) B EAER20235 12831
HEBUH &BMIEER2023FE38
18H ~ 2023438191 K& 202343522
HEETAER-



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash and bank balances represent cash at banks and
on hand. Bank balances carry interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rate. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

As at 31 December 2023, there was approximately
RMB152,298,000 (2022: RMB182,084,000) denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations in the PRC, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised
banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

19.

IRTTHS R R B &

R RIVTERIERTRFAR
& o RITREBEN G 0 RITERA
EEF BN EH B o RITEBRE N
RSB RIF BILEA N S R AL 860
1T

R2023F12831H AR
152,298,0007¢ (20224 : AR
182,084,0007T) U AR EL 17
RABENIRT AEBEFATTERSR
MAEMEE AT BEFPRHBN
SNEEIBIER REE - EEKRGTE
EEATC AEEEEEBERE
ETINEXZHIRITEARBERIKR
AHEHMEE

TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES 20. B85 KRHEHMEMHRIERIE
AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT SFTERARSNEE
LIABILITIES
(a) Trade and other payables and accruals (a) BEZREMEMTIERESE
H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREBT T
Trade payables (Note (i) B 5 R IE (Ek) 981 1,273
Construction costs payables FET R A A 3,125 5,396
Accrued salaries and st e REME THA
other staff cost 2,525 2,090
Accrued directors’ remuneration [EstEEH & 2,186 1,616
Examination fees payables BNEHE 1,384 2,039
Other tax payables HMEMHRIE 1,263 1,290
Other payables (Note (ii)) HABETRRIE (Y X (i) 3,910 3,722
15,374 17,426

BRI AR AT
BT FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

20. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Trade and other payables and accruals

(continued)

Notes:

(i) No credit period is granted by the trade creditors. Trade
payables are normally settled within 30 days from the
invoice date.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables

20. BB R HMEMNRIERE
StERAKRENER (B)

(a) BEZKRHEMEMRIERESTE
B (@)
F5E -

(0

BZERATERREEN-
ERREOIRE-—RNERAH
HESOR M E(T

REZHH2INEZEAR

presented based on the invoice date: ERERE DT T -
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
0-60 days 0E60F 595 457
61-90 days 61290Kk 109 412
91-120 days 91E120K 90 217
121-365 days 121E365K - =
Over 365 days BiB365% 187 187
981 1,273

(if) As at 31 December 2023, other payables mainly comprised
of accrued audit fee, accrued legal and professional
fees and refund liability amounting to approximately
RMB1,136,000 (2022: RMB972,000), RMB1,209,000
(2022: RMB1,360,000) and RMB662,000 (2022:
RMB870,000) respectively.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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R2023FE 128310 » EfthfE (T
RETECEESEZER
[Est 2R REXERRER
BEIMNHARE1,136,000
7t (20224 | AR#972,000
70) ~ AR #1,209,0007T (2022
£ AR#81,360,0007T) K AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

20. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES 20.B5 REMENSFIERE

AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advance payments of
driving course fees from customers upon enrollment
of driving courses.

stERAKRENER (8)

(b) EHETR
BHERERBVEMRERN
AWEFPERREE R

Movement of contract liabilities is as follows: BHBREESHUWT .
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFT ARBT T
At 1 January R1B1H 23,257 30,463
Decrease in contract liabilities as a R HEE A W m P8 2 M
result of being recognised as revenue &SXEERD > RE A
during the year that was included BHERE
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (17,181) (24,6006)
Decrease in contract liabilitiesasa AR ERERENEER D
result of refund to customers (1,422) (1,219)
Decrease in contract liabilities asa R EIEB W AW R ER
result of forfeiture due to expiry aHadERb
recognised as revenue (450) (256)
Increase in contract liabilities as a FRKBRELZEMERN
result of receipt of customer deposits & 41 & &1 1
during the year 13,658 18,875
At 31 December 128318 17,862 23,257

‘P EEZERARA S 197
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

20. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (continued)

During both years, the Group allows refund of the
total amount of the course fees to the customers
before they complete the driving skill written test,
after deducting the registration fees. Depending
on the contract terms, the Group allows refund
of 51% to 58% of the total amount of the course
fees excluding the registration fees, to customers
after completion of the driving skill written test
but prior to provision of driving training services.
The Group does not allow refund of the course
fees to the customers after the commencement
of providing driving training services to them. The
Group recognises refund liability under “Trade and
other payables and accruals” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from contracts with customers
and expected time to be recognised as revenue:

20. BB R HMEMNRIERE
StERAKRENER (B)

(b)

BHEE (@)

P w8 E AR - A& B b 5T
TEE R Tl E R AEEFA A
FERREENBFRREENRE
BERBE RESQER &%
EESEAERREEARER
HEREINIRBER > IEE P
REREE FEELNRKRR
L E) HBEER51%E58% ° AN
B ERGRE P RHEE
BiEdIfRF R B EFRERE
B-AEBREREREEDR
HEMBARARRTHNIES K
B RIERESER -

TRINTERENEEZRE
TRAOSERBRHRER S
Y BF R

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFRT  ARETT

Expected to be recognised as ~ TAEAR R AU &=

revenue
— Within one year ——&R
— After one year ——F%

198 China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBERRMEE (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21.fHEBE
Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated HEEEEGEMBRRRARTET
statement of financial position as follows: o
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: RUTHERETHNHEESRE
— Within one year ——FRN 1,466 1,481
- Within a period of more than one year ——FL FERBBMEN
but not exceeding two years AR 1,292 1,207
— Within a period of more than two —-MENLEFRBBEEN
years but not exceeding five years MR 1,037 1,376
— Over five years —HREMNE 368 539
4,163 4,603
Less: Future finance charges B R BEEE (688) (854)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAERE 3,475 3,749
Less: Amounts due for settlement within 78 : BREHREI12ES A
twelve months from the end of IS ENEER
the reporting period (shown under (ENAERBEE)
current liabilities) (1,158) (1,130)
Amounts due for settlement after twelve B REHIKRFE12E S %
months from the end of the reporting G ENEE
period (shown under non-current (BARFERBEB)
liabilities) 2,317 2,619

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applied to lease liabilities range from 5.4% to 12.8%
(2022: 5.8% to 13.2%) per annum. All leases are entered
at fixed prices. The Group does not face significant
liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease
liabilities are monitored within the Group’s treasury
function.

As at 31 December 2023, lease liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1,793,000 (2022: RMB2,613,000)
in relation to hire-purchase of motor vehicles which are
secured by corresponding motor vehicles and guaranteed
by Mr. Qi.

FERRHEEaBNIMEFTSIEEE
TEMENFES.4%E12.8% (2022
F :5.8%F13.2%) -FFEAEYH
DEIEEBRIIL ~EBNHEES
Eﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁuu%ﬂ&ﬂﬁ °7Fﬂ§
BENRAEENEERE

e

73920235125315 8170 B R
EERMNEEEBNAARK
1,793,0007T (2022¢ CARK
2,613,0007T) > LUABFERY /S BB 3K
W T AR EER

B P EEERBRA R
BT FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

22. BORROWINGS

22, &3k

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT N
Bank borrowings, secured (Note a) RITER BRI (F5ka) 51,230 52,230
Bank borrowings, unsecured (Note b)  $R4TMEE > EIX3R (MizEb) 3,000 3,000
54,230 55,230
The carrying amounts of the above FRERNEREERR
borrowings are repayable: T HAREEE -
— Within one year ——FQR 45,230 55,230
— Within a period of more than one —BREFHREF—FLUL
year but not exceeding two years BREEMFENHBA
from the end of the reporting
period 9,000 =
54,230 55,230
Analysed into: valil
— Current — e 45,230 55,230
- Non-current — IR 9,000 -
54,230 55,230

Notes:

(@)  As at 31 December 2023, secured bank borrowings consisted of
five (2022: five) bank borrowings:

(i) a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB17,730,000
(2022: RMB17,730,000) was secured by the operation
right of a subsidiary of the Company, Zhumadian Tongtai
Large Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited (“Tong
Tai School”), which operates the Tong Tai School and
was guaranteed by Mr. Qi, bearing a fixed interest rate at
8.0% (2022: 9.8%) per annum and repayable in June 2024
(2022: July 2023). The operation right will be obtained
by the bank if the Group defaults in repayments of the
borrowing;

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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PEE

(a) FR2023FE12831H  BIKIFIRITER
BHH (2022 : F) BIRTTERBER :

& AR M17,730,0007T (2022
£ AR ®17,730,0007T) AR
TERUERATD—RKMBAE
BEEEEZABEKHEERS
BHIBRAE (MERERI &
NEKEBRER) NLKEREE
R ST R EEE
K A8.0% (20224 : 9.8%)il
JAR2024F68 (20224 : 2023
F7R)EB - MAEBEBLORE
BED KEREEIRTHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

22. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB9,000,000
(2022: RMB10,000,000) was secured by the land and
building of Tong Tai School with carrying amounts of
approximately RMB37,955,000 (2022: RMB39,145,000)
and RMB5,534,000(2022: RMB5,969,000) respectively
(Notes 16 and 15) and was guaranteed by the spouse of
Mr. Qi, bearing a fixed interest rate at 6.6% (2022: 6.6%)
per annum and repayable in May 2024 (2022: May 2023);

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB13,500,000
(2022: RMB13,500,000) was secured by the leasehold
land and building of Tong Tai School with carrying amount
of approximately RMB37,955,000 (2022: RMB39,145,000)
and RMB17,053,000 (2022: RMB18,154,000) respectively
and was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and his spouse, bearing a
fixed interest rate at 4.65% (2022: 5.2%) per annum and
repayable in December 2024 (2022: January 2023);

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB9,000,000
(2022: RMB9,000,000) was secured by the operation right
of a subsidiary of the Company, Suiping County Shunda
Driver Training Company Limited (“Shunda School”), which
operates the Shun Da School, bearing a fixed interest rate
at 5.5% (2022: 10.4%) per annum and repayable in July
2025 (2022: August 2023). The operation right will be
obtained by the bank if the Group defaults in repayment of
the borrowing; and

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB2,000,000
(2022: RMB2,000,000) was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and
his spouse, bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.62% (2022:
4.9%) per annum and repayable in July 2024 (2022: August
2023).

As at 31 December 2023, an unsecured bank borrowing with
principal amount of RMB3,000,000 (2022: RMB3,000,000) was
bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.25% (2022: 4.45%) per annum
and repayable in May 2024. (2022: June 2023).

22. 1*%’\ (&)

D@
(#8)
(i

(ii)

(iv)

& AR #9,000,0007T (2022
£ AR%10,000,0007) B
RITEFUREESHOAR
#37,955,0007T (20224 : A
R #39,145,00070) R AR
5,534,00077 (20224 : AR
5 969,0007t) (MIzE165K15) B9

ERERN LM R IET (EIKIT
W THRENRBIER £E
TEF)E #£6.6% (20224 : 6.6%)
I B 2024F58 (20224
2023%58) B ;

& AR H13,500,00073 (2022
£ AR%13,500,0007T) K
RITERUREEINNAR
#37,955,0007C (20224 : A
R #39,145,00070) &R AR &
17,053,0007T (20224 : AR
18,154,0007t) V@B R ERHIFA
B4 R 8 F R IR 2 T
SRERBER FETHE
#A4.65% (20224 : 5.2%) I7A
20244128 (20224 : 2023
F18) B8,

&% AR #9,000,0007T (2022
£ AR%9,000,0007T) AIIR
TEIUERRT—RMEBEA
AR TFHRIEZEEREEINA
RAsE (TEEZER) > Z AT
KEIBEER) Eﬁ 1 R IR
o EBETEMEAE55% (2022
£ 110.4%) W BR2025FE7 8
(20224 : 202348H) EE -
WAEBBOREEREG K
ERBRIRITE ; &

&% AR #2,000,0007T (2022
£ 1 AR%§2,000,0007T) KIEEFT
ERETEERERBER
FEEREAEL.62% (20224F :
4.9%) i ZBF 2024478 (2022
£ 1 2023%8R) EiE e

R2023FE12H31H A& AR
3,000,0007% (20224 : AR
3,000,0007%) B9 IR IRERIT BN E
BEIEFZE24.25% (20224 : 4.45%)

I ZBF 2024458 (20224 : 2023456
B) E&e

B EERER B R AR
B =FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M B HRRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

22. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

22. fgw (#8)
AEENERARNT :

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFRT  ARETRT

,Tj:t E=nd

Fixed-rate borrowings EEER

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings are as follows:

54,230 55,230

AEBBRNERNRLENT

2023 2022
20234 20224F

=

Effective interest rate per annum: ERFENE
— Fixed-rate borrowings —EEMER

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB which
is same as the functional currency of the respective
entities in the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

iR M SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

23. BERIBER (BE)

UTFARENERNERREILERE

Temporary
difference on
depreciation Temporary
of property, difference
Right-of-use Lease plant and on interest Revenue Deductible
assets liabilities equipment  capitalisation  recognition tax losses Total
NE BER
RENEN  ASERLH ANERE
EREER HE&MH ORES ERES Wi it it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AREBTr ARETn AR%ETn  ARETn  AREBTr  ARET:n
At 1 January 2022 (restated) 1220224118 (L&) 321 (321) 3,362 1,896 3,132 - 8,390
Charged/(credited) to profitor MR8,/ (3t A) 185
loss (Note 11) (restated) (izE11) (BE5) 47) 47 136 (148) (867) (1,389) (2,268)
At 31 December 2022 and 1 12022128318 K
January 2023 (restated) 2023F151R (B E3)) 274 (274) 3,498 1,748 2,265 (1,389) 6,122
Charged/(credited) to profitor B8/ (3t A) 8%
loss (Note 11) (Hzk11) 134 (136) (734) (148) (207) (222) (1,313
At 31 December 2023 1420235128310 408 (410) 2,764 1,600 2,058 (1,611) 4,809

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB6,445,000 (2022:
RMB5,556,000) available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the operating subsidiaries in the PRC.
Based on the business plans of the Group, it is expected
that the operating subsidiaries in the PRC will generate
sufficient future profits to utilise these tax losses. Deferred
tax assets in respect of the cumulative tax losses of
approximately RMB1,611,000 (2022: RMB1,389,000)
was provided as at 31 December 2023. The tax losses
will expire after 5 years from the year in which the losses
were incurred.

R2023F 12831 &~&EEA
HABENREBEBEEREOARR
6,445,0007T (20224 : AR
5,556,0007T) » AJ FB A2 3 8 A (3 =
BB ABMNKRKERKER
ERAEENERE FBEHETE
EENBARNELERENRE
mHEAZEREEB BRAR
MEBENEIERBEEENAR
#1,611,0007¢ (20224 : AR
1,389,0007T) 712023F 12831 HEt
REE - REEEFNEBEELE
FREFTSFEREIHR

BRI AR AT
BT FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Rt F5 ¥R M 5E (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

24.

25.

SHARE CAPITAL 24. g7
Number of Share
shares capital
i & B (N
RMB’000
ARET T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BRO.0IBTHEER
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 1220221 B1H ~ 20224
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 12831H2023F181H
F2023%12831H 10,000,000,000 90,179
Issued and fully paid BRITREE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, F22022F181H ~ 202245
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 128310 2023F181H
F20235%12831H 400,000,000 3,608

RESERVES

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity.

Share premium

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents cash contributions from Mr. Qi
in previous years.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses)
determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital. The statutory reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses and may
be capitalised as registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 19 September 2020, a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The board of directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of new shares as the board of directors of the
Company may determine at an subscription price at a
price which shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares on the offer date of the option; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares for the five
consecutive business days immediately preceding the
offer date of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years from the date of the adoption of
Share Option Scheme and shall expire at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the
10th anniversary thereof unless terminated earlier by the
shareholders in general meeting.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
21 days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of
the offer is duly signed, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company.

Save as determined by the board of directors and
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant options,
there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held or the performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised.

26. fBigfEst &
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26.

27.

28.

China

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme established by the
Company, if any, is 40,000,000, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company upon initial listing.
The total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme, if any, shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

No share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have
any significant commitments.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group does not have any
material related party transactions in the normal course of
its business.

Compensation to key management personnel

The directors of the Company were considered to be
the key management personnel of the Group. The
remuneration of the directors of the Company is set out in
Note 12.
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29. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023

are as follows:

Place and date

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

29. tHiB ABIRIRE

R2023F 12831 BB A S 1B
mr

Equity interests

of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share attributable to the Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital/registered capital Company place of operation
g BETRBERS/
MEBAT L PR3t 2 B EA HMEA KATREMRIE TEFHRBEME
2023 2022
2023 20226
Directly held:
ERFE !
Ample Best International Limited The BVI Authorised: US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
15 December 2016 Paid up capital: US$4
BEERERAR HEEYHE ETE 1 50,000% 7T REZRK
20165128150 HREK 4ET
Indirectly held:
BERE !
Maxi Access Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 January 2016
RRBRAR B BEEL 1B REER
2016515288
Wincox Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
28 December 2016
BHERAT &8 BREX BT REEZR
2016512428
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural The PRC Registered: RMB100,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Media Company Limited* (Notes (i) and (ii)) 2 June 2016 Paid up capital: RMB71,000,000
HEEBRUCBHEARAE (B5H1)K(i) FE 1 AR#100,000,0007T REER
201656828 BRER : ARMT1,000,0007T
Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver Training Company The PRC Registered: RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of driving training
Limited* (Note (i)) 24 April 2014 Paid up capital: RMB20,000,000 courses in the PRC
HEERFALKBBRREENFRAE (FEH) FE = - AR 20,000,000 TR R R BB HIER AR
2014545248 BEEA 1 AK20,000,0007T
Suiping County Shunda Driver Training Company Limited*  The PRC Registered: RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of driving training
(Note (i) 25 December 2012 Paid up capital: RMB2,000,000 courses in the PRC
BERIBEEZEREENERAR (i) e i - AR 2,000,000 R Bl R BR iRl R
20125128250 BREA  AEW¥2,000,0007T
Suiping Tongtai Occupational Training School Company The PRC Registered: RMB3,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of occupational
Limited* (Note (i)) 20 July 2020 Paid up capital: RMB3,000,000 training services in the PRC
BERRBEEN2RERAT () FE st - AE#3,000,0007T T FR B 4 8 2 3 AR 5
202075208 BREX: AKH3,000,0007T

*

official names of the companies are in Chinese.

Notes:

(i) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC.

The English names are for identification purpose only and the

(if) The registered capital has not yet fully paid up during the
years ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had unpaid share capital of RMB29,000,000 (2022:
RMB29,000,000) for this subsidiaries.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.

R ZBERBIKRZEARZER

ZEAH o

RABRIIZ B RAT

B E2023%F12B31HIEEER &
MEZE R E - R2023FE 12831
B AEEMZENBARRFTE A
F 29,000,000z (20224 : AR
29,000,0007t) Z A& ERR A
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes lease liabilities and borrowings disclosed
in Notes 21 and 22, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

30.

BEAEEER

FEFREEHEADERAERS

BEREENFELE

[Fl R @B 1L

BHERRATE > BRERKRE RS
RNE-BEBEFEEL FEBPE

RRERBRIRIFIN & o

FEENETEBOERES (8
W E2I 22D AIRBENEERR
RER) - HNBRRERIREEBYK
ERBEEANELER (BEE#
TRERfEE) - ~EBEHEEFE

The Group’s adjusted net debt to capital ratio are as BERLEERMT :
follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEET T
Current liabilities: mEaE:
Lease liabilities HESE 1,158 1,130
Borrowings EEN 45,230 55,230
46,388 56,360
Non-current liabilities: FERBERE
Lease liabilities HE&R 2,317 2,619
Borrowings R 9,000 -
11,317 2,619
Total debt Har 57,705 58,979
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEEY (152,359) (182,326)
Adjusted net debt KREFAE - =
Total equity ey 189,569 198,012
Adjusted net debt to capital ratio RABRFEEBEARLE N/A RiEF N/A R B
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30.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31.

(continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

30.

31.

BEAEEER (&)

KRBDEZERRSBERERE  F
BB —8 D ERATDEEFE
BEZHAKRESEERNERR
B RBEEAATDESTEZR +5&H
RBEETNREBITHRGO RE
MEIBUNRETHESNELRER
BERED BHEBEREAEEERY
féyo

ERTHR
SRMTHSEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Financial assets at amortised cost: IRi#HHTNEREE !

Trade and other receivables B 5 K EMME WIS
Bank balances and cash RITHEFKRIRE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Ri#HH AN EREE !

Trade and other payables B MEMENRIEA
Lease liabilities HEEE
Borrowings EE

82 132
152,359 182,326
152,441 182,458

9,406 12,430
3,475 3,749
54,230 55,230
67,111 71,409

EREEERAREAT 209
BT FEER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. R EMSEIEBERKE

210

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner. These has been no change
to the Group’s exposure or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from lease liabilities, borrowings, and bank balances.
Lease liabilities, borrowings and bank balances at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management.
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net debts (being interest-bearing
financial liabilities less bank balance and cash) at the

end of the reporting period.

R2.tRABEEERKRBE
(%)
(a) FIEEB @

TREFLEERFES BIN
BEEmafEmRTERKRIR
&) R EHARBIF KA

2023 2022
2023 20224
Interest Interest
rate per rate per
annum (%) Amounts annum (%) Amounts
FFIE(%) k] FERZE (%) &%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR AREBTT
Fixed rate borrowings ~ EBE™
Lease liabilities HEaE 5.4% to 12.8% (3,475)  5.8% t0 13.2% (3,749)
5.4%ZF12.8% 5.8%F13.2%
Borrowings B 4.25% to 8.0% (54,230) 4.45% 10 10.4% (55,230)
4.25%%8.0% 4.45%%F10.4%
(57,705) (58,979)
Variable rate deposits ~ FEER
Bank balances RITHERR 0.2% to 0.3% 152,359 0.3% to 0.4% 182,326
0.2%%0.3% 0.3%%£0.4%
Sensitivity analysis YR E D

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 10 basis points in saving
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
loss before income tax and increased/decreased
the Group’s retained profits by approximately

RMB152,000 (2022: RMB182,000).

2023F128318 » Mz ]
KIBEETR,/ EF10BF M
FrE HthE ST A8 B4
EENRFIERAIEGE MR
@, R R A EB RS R
FEETHRIE M, B O AR
152,0007s (20224 : AR &
182,0007T) ©

‘P EEZERARA S
TEC=-FER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
related primarily to certain bank balances and
other payables denominated in HK$. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R4 %5 #k R MY 5 (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

R.eRMEAREEBERBE
(%5)

(b)

B R

BN REREEMTARKRS
REBHAFERERERESHM
B BN B LB

AEBAENIIMNERRERE
A TTHENE TIRITARR K
HiENRBEER -A&EE
A 6 48 SM IS 0 R o SR T
EEETERIINERAR LR
BRERZBHEPINERE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign REEMIIMNESSHENEBEE
currency denominated monetary asset and liabilities RBENREEDT
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
&8 BE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 2020 20235 20225
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tn AR®Tr ARETH
HK$ BT (2,609) (2,524) 20 152

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in
RMB. No currency risk has been identified for the
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currency of the
subsidiaries in the PRC to which these transactions
relate. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
primarily arises from certain financial instruments
including bank balance and other payables which
are denominated in HK$. During the years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy
but management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 . ¢rRiRAMEEEHERLREKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#&)
(b) Currency risk (continued) (b) E¥REKE (8)
Sensitivity analysis B E 2T
2023 2022
20235 20226
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 2023 20224
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign (Increase)/ in foreign  (Decrease)/
exchange decrease exchange increase
rate  pre-tax loss rate pre-tax profit
BX RRAIEE BX FRRADER

E#/(FR) O8m) /B £/ (FB) (AL /1810
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:R

HKS BT 5% (117) 5% (119)
HKS BT (5%) 117 (5%) 119
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EE =M RiRET

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s maximum R2023F12831H » KERFR
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial HHN RS EERERERAE
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an BRRZHFREEBITEEM
obligation by the counterparties is arising from ELEMBEER JTARBEGH
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised B AR EE B SR
financial assets as stated in the consolidated BEENKR@EE

statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. R EIEEERIKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group regularly
monitors the external credit ratings of the financial
institutions based on available information at each
reporting date for its bank balances which are
placed in these financial institutions. The credit
rating information is supplied by independent rating
agencies where available and, if not available,
the credit management team uses other publicly
available financial information. The Group’s exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties.

For trade and other receivables, the Group
determines the ECL on these items individually by
estimation based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtor, general economic conditions of the
industry and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising
from bank balances as there was a bank which
individually contributed 81.9% (2022: 74.6%) of the
Group’s bank balances as at 31 December 2023.
The management considers that the credit risk on
liquid funds is low as counterparties are financial
institutions with good reputation.
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R2.TREKREEER
(&)
EEARK

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT KR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c)
(continued)

BT S ()

TR E%ﬁiﬁ'JZ!i%l%%ﬂi‘fé

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of

the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to HNEERKEAE  TZENRTER

ECL assessment: 5 E\FHTE\ .:?TE :

Internal Trade Other financial

credit rating Description receivables assets

NEIE SR A 8 5 WA HitngMEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and ~ Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired

AR TEHFENEARRE BUECEAARTE LoBRERESE 12BRRHEEHE

B-REERHE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays in full after due dates  Lifetime ECL - not 12-month ECL
but usually settle in full credit-impaired

ERLE BEHEACERIBEETHEERBERE 4LoBRRREEES 12EARBEERSE
R B-REERHE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL - not Lifetime ECL - not
credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources

Rk BEBANRAENERFIBERNTER> EHhBBRBEREEES S£HBNEHREES
EEREBEEM B-REEHE B-REERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-  Lifetime ECL - credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-
impaired impaired impaired

B8 FRBERAZEEREGERE YHBERRAGEES LoBHNBEHEES

B-EERE B-EERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in - Amount is written off  Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery

4 FRBERAZEHE ARARBMBREEAE MEBE GO

B EERKERR

BRI AR AT
BT FEER
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. £fiRAMEEEHERKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment (c) EERMERREN G (&
(continued)

Internal 12m or
credit rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
A& 12{8 B sk & an iR HA
EETR FRHEEHE REAE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARETR ARETR
Financial assets at amortised costs
BEERAHENERMEE
Trade receivables 18 Low risk Lifetime ECL 39 60
B 2R WGIE ER k& EonBREREEEE
Other receivables 18 Low risk 12m ECL 43 72
=R e gl 12ERBREEEE
Other receivables 18  Loss Lifetime ECL 1,428 1,428
(credit-impaired)
H R IE B8 o ENBREERE
(EERME)
Bank balances and cash 19 Low risk 12m ECL 152,359 182,326
RITHEEGRRE B 12 A EHEEEE
The following table shows loss allowance that has T 2R Y L E A FE R IE R 50
been recognised for other receivables: BB 1R .
Loss
allowance
BiaRHE
RMB’000
ARBFT

As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, /?2022%181H +2022F128318 »
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 2023%1H1H K&2023%12H31H 1,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32 . ¢rRiRAMEEEHERLREKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#&)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) RENEZERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REBRBESRER A&
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash BEER K ,\ETikthuu%E?]

equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

RS RRESEYKE
£ MR YA S
RERBNE

The following table details the Group’s remaining TREFVAERTHEBENG
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. BHAFEE - TRILBIER
The table has been drawn up based on the EEUEEZTHNRRE B

undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows

NEmEBEERMREERE
R TREEMNEREER
TRE-NFMERESFHF
FOoRARBREEEEANS

are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived REHRNF] R
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted
average Over 1 year Total
interest rate Within but within Over undiscounted Carrying
perannum  On demand 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
i KRR
THERNE RER kD 1255 BiBsE REMELH RAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT  AEBTRT AREBTR ARETn AR%ETRT  AEETR
As at 31 December 2023 1*2023512A31H
Trade and other payables ERRAMELTE N/A RER 9,406 - - - 9,406 9,406
Lease liabilities HEaE 10.5% - 1,465 2,330 368 4,163 3,475
Borrowings B3
- Fixed rate —EER= 6.2% - 47,324 9,286 - 56,610 54,230
9,406 48,789 11,616 368 70,179 67,111
Weighted
average Over 1 year Total
interest rate Within but within Over  undiscounted Carrying
per annum On demand 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
k4 RER
THERZ ZEX 1EA 1555 BiEcE RENBAH REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR ARBTr ARETR AREfT ARETR
As at 31 December 2022 120225125318
Trade and other payables BARHEMENTIE NA RER 12,430 - - - 12,430 12,430
Lease liabilities HE&R 10.8% - 1,481 2,242 880 4,603 3,749
Borrowings EEN
- Fixed rate RERIES 7.8% - 57,048 - - 57,048 55,230
12,430 58,629 2,242 880 74,081 71,409
B BERZERERAF

TEC=FER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. R EIEEERIKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (4&)

(e) Fair value (e) A¥E
The fair values of financial assets and financial ETRMEERTHEBENATFE
liabilities are determined in accordance with BARBEBEL UOBRRE
generally accepted pricing models based on AR ZERINEEAR
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates ABETHIRREREDNE
from observable current market transactions as TE o
inputs.
The management of the Group considers that the FEBBIEERAREBHEKAEK
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial ARNEMEEREHEER
liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate HERBRENRRSHERAFE
their fair values at the end of the reporting period. &

33.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33.mtEZEFIESAENY

ARISING FROM FINANCING iR

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRHEAMLKAKEBRRMEZEMEL
arising from financing activities, including both cash EENEE AERENIEREE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing FomMEBEGTEMELAGEASIF
activities are those for which cash flows were or future RAEELGERERERDEAM
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated BREMERERENREREN
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing RIRFEME o

activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREaMBRRWE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33.RtEZHFiESEENY
ARISING FROM FINANCING iR (48)
ACTIVITIES (continued)

Lease
liabilities Borrowings
HE&R EE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

At 1 January 2022 12202281 81H 2,260 41,750
Changes from finance cash flows: RERESRELE .

- Proceeds from borrowings —fERPTERIE - 46,230

- Repayment of borrowings —BEMER - (32,750)

— Interest paid on borrowings —BERFE - (4,452)

- Repayment of lease liabilities principal —fEEHE&ELRSE (1,309) -

- Repayment of lease liabilities interest ~—{EEHEEEF S (136) -
Total changes from financing cash flows RIEIRE MBS EN LT (1,441) 9,028
Other changes: Hihgs)

— Addition in lease liability —-HhEHERE 2,794 v

— Interest expenses (Note 9) —FERX (MEF9) 136 4,452

2,930 4,452

At 31 December 2022 and FA2022F128318 &

1 January 2023 2023F181H 3,749 55,230
Changes from finance cash flows: MERTRELT) !

- Proceeds from borrowings — &M ERIE - 70,730

- Repayment of borrowings —fBIEB - (71,730)

— Interest paid on borrowings —EfNfERFE - (4,095)

- Repayment of lease liabilities principal —fEEHE&ELSE (1,253) -

— Repayment of lease liabilities interest —EEHEE&EF S (135) -
Total changes from financing cash flows BB RS REL 5B (1,388) (5,095)
Other changes: Hh&s)

- Addition in lease liability —-HEHEERE 979 -

— Interest expenses (Note 9) —FEF% (M1E9) 135 4,095

il i A 4,095

At 31 December 2023 112023 12H31H 3,475 54,230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{ZE2023F12831HIEFE

34. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 34. T EIIRERXH

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group B E2023F12B31HIEFE » K&
had entered into new lease agreements for leasehold BEAHEELH THNHEEL MRS
lands and motor vehicles (2022: motor vehicles) under B (2022%F : [R8) sTuMBEE R
hire-purchase arrangements. As a result, the Group moAIL REBER DA A A
recognised addition of right-of-use assets and lease K 1#979,0007t & A K #979,0007T
liabilities at approximately RMB979,000 and RMB979,000 (20224 : AR #2,794,0007c & A
(2022: RMB2,794,000 and RMB2,794,000) respectively. K 1%2,794,0007t) WEEIMEAEE
EREEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
G B wRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZF20235F12831HIELEE

=l
A

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. &xAFHFEIR IR

OF THE COMPANY

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ABET T

Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EBARNKE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FESB B AR FUE 60,508 60,472
60,508 60,472

Current assets TMEBEE
Bank balances IR1T4EER 3 134
3 134
Current liabilities mEaE

Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 KREMERRIBEREER 4,795 4,140
Amount due to a subsidiary FES—FREM B AR A 11,975 8,818
16,770 12,958
Net current liabilities mEAERE (16,767) (12,824)
Net assets BERE 43,741 47,648

Capital and reserves R R ikt
Share capital EEEN 3,608 3,608
Reserves B4 40,133 44,040
Total equity FE ey 43,741 47,648

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 27 March 2024 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Qi Xiangzhong
5% [ e
Director

EF

Zhao Yuxia

HEE

Director

EF

KRB BHRNRAEE S F1L2024
FIR27THMAERRBLAENTE
ERRBFETFURE

mRERERARAR

BT FEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4o A
L=

Rt F5 ¥R M 5E (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &, ZE2023F12831HIEEE

36. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 36. =~ Elf#ME
Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

RipiEE Rt 4act

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT AR®ET T

At 1 January 2022 20221818 105,636 (59,950) 45,686
Loss and total comprehensive FREER 2 EEIBEEE

loss for the year - (1,646) (1,646)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 $220225FE12831H &

January 2023 2023F1H1H 105,636 (61,596) 44,040
Loss and total comprehensive FERNEE KR HEEIE4EEE

loss for the year - (3,907) (3,907)

At 31 December 2023 2023F12831H 105,636 (65,503) 40,133

37.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
Company proposed to raise up to approximately HK$40
million before expenses by way of a rights issue of
up to 200,000,000 rights shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.20 each and on the basis of one rights
share for every two existing shares. On 5 March 2024,
being the latest time for acceptance, a total of 3 valid
applications had been received for a total of 32,018,192
rights shares, representing approximately 16.01% of the
offered shares. The remaining 167,981,808 unsubscribed
rights shares, representing approximately 83.99% of
the offered shares, will be subject to the compensatory
arrangements. On 12 March 2024, being the latest time
of placing of the unsubscribed rights shares, 3,940,000
unsubscribed rights shares had been successfully placed
to one independent placee at the price of HK$0.20 per
unsubscribed rights share.

Details of the rights issue were set out in the Company’s
prospectus dated 20 February 2024 and the Company’s
announcements dated 16 January 2024, 23 January
2024,7 March 2024 and 19 March 2024.
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37. wREHIRFIR

RIEPERE > A RBEZUHEK
EABEBEBEESRI20EBTE
FEMRKRIBERMDIESE KR
in 2 B #1785 %£200,000,000
BREKREMEERLNIOEEE
7t (FOBREASZ AN o 5¥2024F3H5H
BPREBEMNR BRESHE=
MBEMBFE HkE$H32,018,192
BHEREKRD (HERZEERMDY
16.01%) &% ~167,981,8080% < &
REERKRMD BEREERMY
83.99%) B X M EZHEFTHRR o 72
202438120 (BB & RED A
RR1D 2 R B KFFR) > 3,940,0008%
REDBEHRERKRMNDERESRAES
BB AR IR 190.2078 T MBS AL THED
EFT—RBIAFLAC

HIEEBEH N A AT HEA2024
F2R20HMNEKRERZE KR AT H
BRA2024F18B16H ~2024%F1823
H2024F387H K&2024%3819
HEIAS



FINANCIAL RESULT AND SUMMARY
MR E R E

A summary of the published results and of the assets and ZAEBRBEFREMBEEREEBKE
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted ZHMBEREXZEAMEE - SEHBE
from the audited financial statements, is set out below. IEEHZIUI T o sZ B E A IEHE B K E 1%
The summary does not form part of the audited financial BAF§Fz>—84% e

statements.
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023%F 20224 20214 20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRE AE®ETFR AR®BFTRT AREFRT AREFR®
RESULTS e
Revenue WA 39,884 47,734 67,151 67,963 93,452

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFT S AT (518) /

A (9,756) (10,246) 1,613 9,644 31,179
Income tax credit/(expense)  FI{3MEE,/ (BH) 1,313 1,579 (5,063) (2,819) (12,095)

(Loss)/profit for the year EREEE NEL
attributable to the owners of EE(E518),/ % H

the Company (8,443) (8,667) (3,450) 6,825 19,084

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZBERE&RE

Non-current assets ERBEE 128,591 122,132 131,576 140,147 123,178
Current assets MBEE 159,761 183,096 178,239 175,367 194,168
Current liabilities TEEE (82,657) (98,475) (84,448) (99,411) (57,547)
Non-current liabilities ErBaR (16,126) (8,741) (18,688) (5,974) (56,495)

Net assets attributable to the ZEATEE A
owners of the Company RILEEFE 189,569 198,012 206,679 210,129 203,304

BREEIERAEEAT 223
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Qi Xiangzhong
Zhao Yuxia

Non-Executive Director
Yeung Cheuk Kwong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Cheng Chun Shing (resigned on 1 March 2023)
Chan Siu Wah

Goh Teng Hwee (passed away on 11 January 2023)
Wan San Fai Vincent (appointed on 1 March 2023)
Xu Jianpo (appointed on 20 April 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Tsang Chi Hon, CPA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Cheng Chun Shing (chairman) (resigned on 1 March 2023)
Wan San Fai Vincent (chairman) (appointed on 1 March 2023)
Chan Siu Wah

Goh Teng Hwee (passed away on 11 January 2023)

Xu Jianpo (appointed on 20 April 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan Siu Wah (chairman)

Qi Xiangzhong

Cheng Chun Shing (resigned on 1 March 2023)
Goh Teng Hwee (passed away on 11 January 2023)
Wan San Fai Vincent (appointed on 1 March 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Qi Xiangzhong (chairman)

Cheng Chun Shing (resigned on 1 March 2023)
Chan Siu Wah

Goh Teng Hwee (passed away on 11 January 2023)
Wan San Fai Vincent (appointed on 1 March 2023)

REGISTERED OFFICE
IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands
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HEADQUARTERS, HEAD OFFICE,

AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PRC

Baililiu Village

Zhutang Township, Suiping County

Zhumadian City

Henan Province
PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Rooms 1508-1513

Nan Fung Tower

88 Connaught Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS
Ma Tang & Co.

AUDITOR

Moore CPA Limited
(formerly known as Moore Stephens CPA Limited)
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
801-806 Silvercord Tower 1
30 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Henan Suiping Rural Commercial Bank Corporation Limited

Central Bank Corporation Limited, Suiping Branch

STOCK CODE
1871

WEBSITE
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
RN =E

DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have the following meaning:

“AGM”

MeRRBEKXE

“AGM Circular”

MRRBEARGEER

“Alpha Leap”

=

“Ample Star”

a2,

“Articles of Association”

MAMETR4RA)

“Audit Committee”

rEZE89)

“Board”
MEEg)

“Board Committees”

EEZ89)

B&
RAERPY X ESBAFE > LT
®EFN TR

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at on Friday, 30 June
2023 at 11:00 a.m. at 2/F, 35-45B Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong,
or any adjournment thereof;

KNRTEEFTN2023F6 308 (28 h) EF+—RREEHR IR RA35-
A5BSR2IERITHRRIBFASGHHEENEST ;

the circular dated 27 April 2023 published by the Company in respect The
proposals involving (1) general mandates to issue Shares and to repurchase
Shares; (2) re-election of Directors; and (3) notice of AGM;
ERABMMNMBITRMDERBORND 2 —RIEE QEREES; ROQREBFAE
BETIR 2 BEAA2023F4827TAZBX ;

Alpha Leap Holdings Limited (B EE¥ZRBRAE]), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 5 May 2016, whose entire
issued share capital is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong;

BREERERAB N2016FE5A5HN RBREXEESHMMIINERAE
HES BB TRAHTARTEES ;

Ample Star Global Limited (8 2IRIKBRAE]), a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability on 21 March 2014, whose entire issued share
capital is owned by China Caston;

BMERIKBRAE R2014F3821HN EBEXHEEMBIINERAE
HERWEETRARFRHRERES ;

the articles of association of the Company;

RAFEBERRAA

The audit committee of the Company, which was established on 19 September
2019 pursuant to the resolutions of the Board on 19 September 2019;
RAFINBEZZE S HIRBEESZEN2019F98 198 KRZEN2019F9819
HE&1L ;

the board of directors of the Company;

KRBEEEFE ;

The board committees of the Company, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee;

rABREFZES MBEZEZES FHNEETRELEZET,
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“China Caston”

ThEER)
“close associate(s)”
2R A

“Company”

I /N

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”
M2 ARG 3R )

“core connected
person(s)”
Mz O REAL

“Corporate Governance

Code”

MeEERTA

“Cosmic Hero”

T 5 )

“Director(s)”

MNEE

“Greater Sino”

M)

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BarkMaz (8)

China Caston 81 Finance Company Limited (FEEE81& /AR AT
(formerly known as China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (H7 [
B AL ESREBABRRAT)) (Stock code: 810), a company continued into
Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;

PEHEBERIEMERLAE FIBPEEHMEREEMERBRLAE) BRMHE
8 810) MNBEREFBLCENEAREERE ERMINBMERLT ;

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules;
BB LHRAFME T ZHE ;

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (B ERIZEKRABRAT), an
exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
and which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange;
BAERERERAT RHASHEIMMINERRERAE  HIN BT
FiRLET;

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and unless the context
requires otherwise, refers to Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Alpha Leap;

BELTTRAMETF2RE RXESEMREIIN IETRPRERER ;
has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules;
BE FHHRAIRE T2 HE ;

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 (which has been
re-numbered as Appendix C1 with effect from 31 December 2023) to the
Listing Rules;

EHRAIME+ 0 (B2023F 12831 HEEREFM AT SMIERC) FRENEZE

&aa;

Cosmic Hero Investments Limited (Z#E®R&E AR A E), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 6 June 2016,
the entire issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai Leung;
BIERERRAT > R2016F6 6N EBELFEZMALNERAF
HERERTREABEZRBRAEEES

director(s) of the Company;

KABESE;

Greater Sino Ventures Limited (f2Z£ 8 #& B R A F), a company incorporated in
the BVI with limited liability on 13 June 2014, the entire issued share capital of
which is directly owned by Ample Star;

BEARKRARAE RN2014F6813HAERBEXHESHMAIINBRAE
H2HEBITREAOHKREEREHES ;

MR ERZERARAR
B =FFR
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEkkMaAE (B)

“GI’OUp”

M)

“HK$”
rETl

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“IPO”
MTERAFEE
“Listing Date”
FEm BHA
“Listing Rules”
FrEmARA

“Main Board”

M3 Hy

“Ministry of Public
Security”
TAZER]

“Model Code”

MR ST A

“Nomination
Committee”

MRHZEEE

the Company and its subsidiaries;

TABREMBAT ;

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;
BRBEEERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
FEEBFHITHE ;

the initial public offering of the Shares, further details of which are set out in the
Prospectus;
BRONBR RS HE—FFBRANIBRER ;

24 October 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange;
RO RPrENR ETBB R BI20195F108248

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended from time to time;

BEBMER AR ARRSF EHRA EAREED ;

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel to GEM of the
Stock Exchange;

R FTEENES X ZM (FRIEREMS) » BN GEM BBEE T
1TE1F;

Ministry of Public Security of the PRC (A R MBI AL ) ;
REARIENBEALE ;

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 (which has been re-numbered as Appendix C3 with
effect from 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules;

EHRAIMREERT (B2023F 12831 BEREMAR T A M ERCI) P& - T E1T
ANEBETHESFXZNRETE] ;

the nomination committee of the Company;

TABRBEES ;
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“PRC” or “China”

Tea

“Prospectus”
HERER]
“Record Date”

rso&x B HA.

“Remuneration
Committee”

FES g

“Rights Issue”

TR

“Rights Share(s)”

Mt AR AR 17 1

“RM B!!

N

“SFO”

58 5 REAE 1R H

“Shareholder(s)”
TRZER

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BarkMaz (8)

The People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report and
for geographical reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special
Administrative Region and Taiwan;

REAREME ERARSRME2EMS > FEESE ORFIFHIITHE

PANN =
A /= >

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 October 2019;
KABHEBA2019F10811BNIBRER ;

Monday, 19 February 2024, the record date for the determination of the
entitlements under the Rights Issue;
2024281908 (28—) ' MECHKRARE SR EHE ;

the remuneration committee of the Company;
KRBIFHMNEEE ;

the proposed issue by way of rights of one (1) Rights Share for every two
(2) Shares in issue and held on the Record Date at the subscription price of
HK$0.20 per Rights Share on the terms and subject to the conditions to be set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 20 February 2024;
EERBHN AR BA2024F2820H 2 ER 2B REREBKHERET
MEREKKH0.208THRBEERN R BHSHFAEMKRBEEITRMNE
B—()RERKRO ZEEUHRKR A NETEIT;

up to 200,000,000 new share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Rights Issue, assuming no
change in the number of Shares in issue on or before the Record Date;
BREEBRTRODBENCHREHRN ZA L REL S RBHRSIE & E
T2 R AT RZAEPFEBi#E200,000,0000% Z R EE0.018B T 2 &M 5

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC;
REZEEBARE ;

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented and/or otherwise modified from time to time;
BEREPIFETI BB S RAGRA KFRKEST - Hak HBTEN;

holders of the Shares;

ROFAEA ;

MR ERZERARAR
B =FFR
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEkkMaAE (B)

“Shares”

TRZ 1% 1

“Shun Da School”

NEZEER

“Stock Exchange”

TE 32 AT
“substantial
shareholder(s)”
TEFERR]
“Takeovers Code”
T B <7 Al
“Tongtai Cultural”

M@z X1t

“Tong Tai School”

NaRER

“%”

r"/oJ

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
our Company, which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange;

RABIRATSREMEOIEATHNEBER BHUBTEE RN ERL
™

Suiping County Shunda Driver Training Company Limited* (& T 5% JIE 3 28 &
EZIIBRAT), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on
25 December 2012 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company;
FERIBZEEREEININERAB  R2012F12825BEHREMIILZBRA
B ARATIEEEENB AT ;

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
EBBMEXZFRAERAS ;

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules;
HELTRAMRETZEE

The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented
and/or otherwise modified from time to time;
EBRFRIAEEHEREZEGHEMNATNE - e kRO BB &1
BB~k HWBITEN ;

Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (5% 55 /& i@ Z= XL R 1E
AIR/AT)), a company established in the PRC with limited liability on 2 June
2016 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
HEEERXILEEARAT  R2016E6 2B TETREMIIZERAT 5
KABEEBEEERBAR ;

Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited* (5 & /& &
RABEEBERBIZIBRAE), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability on 24 April 2014 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company; and

HREBERAEKESBEERBEIEIIARAE R2014F4824HFERBEIKILZ
BRAT /A REIEEL2ENBLAR ; &

per cent.
Batbe
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GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BEhkkMiaz ()

1% il 57 &

This glossary contains explanations of certain terms used in AR fiisA = &H A A ERFTIFE A BRI
this annual report in connection with us and our business. &@21Fﬂ%i‘“ﬁ’]%$ﬂ§;°ﬁi%ﬁ§&ﬁ
These terminologies and their given meanings may not HMERMNEEHITHEEZERNEFNH L —
correspond to those standard meanings and usage adopted in o

the industry.
“A1 Vehicles”
FTA1EEEE &)

“A2 Vehicles”

I A28 B &
“A3 Vehicles”

FASERE )

“B1 Vehicles”
B1{EE i)

“B2 Vehicles”

I B2A B &

“C1 Vehicles”

rC1i8E &,

“C2 Vehicles”

FC2iaEH &

“C6 Vehicles”

FCeiEE i)

large passenger vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry
of Public Security;
ABEE —BRLZEE DN EmME ;

large trailer vehicles with a total mass equal to or more than 4.5 metric
tonnes, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public
Security;

MEBSLFNHARNASAMN A EE  fl—RB AL B DRIEmEER ;

vehicles for carrying 10 or more passengers as city buses, being a type of
vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;
EAWMARBRZEHFI0ORTU LFENERT BI—BER
Al

L EE DB B AR

medium passenger vehicles with a capacity for 10-19 passengers, being a
type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;

HEERBIOEOAWFERE I—BALEE DREMER ;

large and medium sized trucks and large and medium sized working
vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public
Security;

APERERAPEEEE I —BALEE D EWER ;

small manual vehicles, light-goods manual vehicles and light-duty manual
working vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of
Public Security;

N FHE EAFHEEREUFHERE I —BRALES
85l

|53 B9 B8

small automatic vehicles, light-goods automatic vehicles and light-duty
automatic working vehicles, being a type of vehicles classified by the
Ministry of Public Security;

N EEBE KA HEE KM BEFHFEE B —B AL S0 B
851 ;

trailer vehicles with a total mass of less than 4.5 metric tonnes, being a
type of vehicles classified by the Ministry of Public Security;
MEE/NR45AMNEE Bl —B AR o EBEHER ;

MR ERZERARAR
B =FFR
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)

BEkkMaAE (B)

“Large Vehicles”
KB

“qualified level | driving
school”

rTEER—RER

“qualified level Il driving
school”

rEER_RER

“Small Vehicles”

TNBYEE 8

A1 Vehicles, A2 Vehicles, A3 Vehicles, B1 Vehicles and B2 Vehicles, which
are generally used as commercial vehicles;

A14BERER A2SEEE G - ASLEE i - B1 B E M AB2EEH > SFABREE ;

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 80 training vehicles,
and is qualified under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving Training
Institutions (# B8 2 B¢ BT3B B85 4) to provide driving training
services in the PRC;

A (HPaE) oMU LilMBET S ERRBKBBENSEIIKEE
RAR TR BIEHE R IFIIARFBAER ;

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 40 driving vehicles,
and is qualified under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving Training
Institutions (#ENEE B BB E LK) to provide driving training
services in the PRC; and

A (HPaE) 40U FESEmMT S ERBREEREEREITIIEE
BERFRGEPREREEREIRBZNER ; K&

C1 Vehicles, C2 Vehicles and C6 Vehicles, which are generally used as
private and/or commercial vehicles.

CUAEEH - CiBE M HCOBER B EANR K, SEAE-
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